Public Document Pack

Havering

LONDON BOROUGH

CABINET

Wednesday Council Chamber -

730 pm 11 April 2018 Town Hall

Members 9: Quorum 3

Councillor Roger Ramsey (Leader of the Council), Chairman

Cabinet Member responsibility:

Councillor Damian White Housing

Councillor Robert Benham Children & Learning

Councillor Wendy Brice-Thompson Adult Social Services and Health

Councillor Osman Dervish Environment and Community Safety

Councillor Melvin Wallace Culture and Community Engagement

Councillor Clarence Barrett Financial Management, Transformation & IT

Councillor Ron Ower Housing  Development Company and
OneSource Management

Councillor Joshua Chapman Deputy Cabinet Member for Housing

Councillor Jason Frost Deputy Cabinet Member for Environment,

Regulatory Services & Community Safety

Andrew Beesley
Head of Democratic Services

For information about the meeting please contact:
Debra Marlow tel: 01708 433091
e-mail: debra.marlow@onesource.co.uk

Please note that this meeting will be webcast.
Members of the public who do not wish to appear
in the webcast will be able to sit in the balcony,
which is not in camera range.




Cabinet, 11 April 2018

Protocol for members of the public wishing to report on meetings of the London
Borough of Havering

Members of the public are entitled to report on meetings of Council, Committees and Cabinet,
except in circumstances where the public have been excluded as permitted by law.

Reporting means:-

¢ filming, photographing or making an audio recording of the proceedings of the meeting;

e using any other means for enabling persons not present to see or hear proceedings at
a meeting as it takes place or later; or

e reporting or providing commentary on proceedings at a meeting, orally or in writing, so
that the report or commentary is available as the meeting takes place or later if the
person is not present.

Anyone present at a meeting as it takes place is not permitted to carry out an oral commentary
or report. This is to prevent the business of the meeting being disrupted.

Anyone attending a meeting is asked to advise Democratic Services staff on 01708 433076
that they wish to report on the meeting and how they wish to do so. This is to enable
employees to guide anyone choosing to report on proceedings to an appropriate place from
which to be able to report effectively.

Members of the public are asked to remain seated throughout the meeting as standing up and
walking around could distract from the business in hand.



Cabinet, 11 April 2018

DECLARING INTERESTS FLOWCHART — QUESTIONS TO ASK YOURSELF

What matters are being discussed?

A4

D
P Does the business relate to or is it likely to affect a disclosable pecuniary interest. These will include the
interests of a spouse or civil partner (and co-habitees):
« any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation that they carry on for profit or gain;
| | t, office, trad fessi tion that th f fit i
+ any sponsorship that they receive including contributions to their expenses as a councillor; or the
councillor's election expenses from a Trade Union;
+ any land licence or tenancy they have in Havering
= any current contracts leases or tenancies between the Council and them;
« any current contracts leases or tenancies between the Council and any organisation with land in Havering
in they are a partner, a paid Director, or have a relevant interest in its shares and securities;
« any organisation which has land or a place of business in Havering and in which they have a relevant interest in its
shares or its securities.
N
o YES Declare Interest and Leave
P Might a decision in relation to that business be reasonably be regarded as affecting (to a greater extent than
E the majority of other Council Tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of ward affected by the decision)
R * Your well-being or financial position; or
S * The well-being or financial position of:
o
N o A member of your family or any person with whom you have a close association; or
A - Any person or body who employs or has appointed such persons, any firm in which they are
a partner, or any company of which they are directors;
L - Any person or body in whom such persons have a beneficial interest in a class of securities
exceeding the nominal value of £25,000;
1
N o Any body of which you are a member or in a position of general control or management and to
T which you are appointed or nominated by your Authority; or
E o Any body exercising functions of a public nature, directed to charitable purposes or whose
R principal includes the influence of public opinion or policy (including any political party or trade union) of which you are a
E member or in a position of general control or management?
S
T S
E— N
You must disclose the fo)
existence and nature of your
personal interests
P
E
c N/
u Would a member of the public, with . )
N knowledge of the relevant facts, You can participate in the
I reasonably regard your personal meeting and vote (or
interest to be so significant that it is NO remain in the room if not a
A likely to prejudice your member of the meeting)
R Y
Y E
S
] - Does the matter affect your financial position or the financial position of any person or body
N through whom you have a personal interest?
- Does the matter relate to an approval, consent, licence, permission or registration that affects
T you or any person or body with which you have a personal interest? NO
E - Does the matter not fall within one of the exempt categories of decisions?
R Y
E E
S s
T
Speak to Monitoring Officer in advance of the meeting to avoid allegations of
corruption or bias




Cabinet, 11 April 2018

AGENDA

1 ANNOUNCEMENTS
On behalf of the Chairman, there will be an announcement about the arrangements in
case of fire or other events that might require the meeting room or building’s
evacuation.

2 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
(if any) - receive

3 DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST
Members are invited to disclose any interests in any of the items on the agenda at this
point of the meeting. Members may still disclose an interest in an item at any time
prior to the consideration of the matter.

4 MINUTES (Pages 1 - 12)

To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 7™ February, 2018,
and to authorise the Chairman to sign them.

5 ROMFORD BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT PROPOSAL (Pages 13 - 24)
6 INTEGRATED COMMUNITY EQUIPMENT SERVICE (Pages 25 - 36)
7 EMPLOYMENT AND SKILLS PLAN (Pages 37 - 132)

8 QUARTER 3 CORPORATE PERFORMANCE REPORT 2017/18 (Pages 133 - 156)



Present:

Agenda Item 4

MINUTES OF A CABINET MEETING
Council Chamber - Town Hall
Wednesday, 7 February 2018

(7.30 -9.00 pm)

Councillor Roger Ramsey (Leader of the Council), Chairman

Councillor Damian White
Councillor Robert Benham
Councillor Wendy Brice-Thompson
Councillor Osman Dervish
Councillor Melvin Wallace

Councillor Clarence Barrett
Councillor Ron Ower

Councillor Joshua Chapman
Councillor Jason Frost

35 ANNOUNCEMENTS

Cabinet Member responsibility:
Housing

Children & Learning

Adult Social Services and Health
Environment and Community Safety

Culture and Community
Engagement

Financial Management,
Transformation & IT

Housing Development Company
and OneSource Management

Deputy Cabinet Member for Housing

Deputy Cabinet Member for
Environment, Regulatory Services &
Community Safety

Announcements were made in relation to the evacuation procedure in the

event of fire or other emergency.
36 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

There were no apologies for absence.
37 DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

38 MINUTES

Page 1



Cabinet, 7 February 2018

39

The minutes of the meeting of Cabinet held on 17" January, 2018, were
agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

THE COUNCIL'S FINAL 2018/19 BUDGET, MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL
STRATEGY AND COUNCIL TAX PROPOSAL

The Leader of the Council, Councillor Roger Ramsey, presented the report
to Cabinet.

The report followed on from various updating reports that came before
Cabinet in October, December and January, all of which advised and
updated on the position regarding the budget gap in the lead up to the
Budget Setting Cabinet meeting.

Cabinet agreed to receive the Second Dispatch Agenda which detailed the
full version of Appendix 1.

The Council is required to set an annual budget for 2018/19 and a Mid Term
Financial Strategy for the five year period ending 2022/2023. The report
details recommendations to Council for the formal Budget Setting process
and the setting of a Council Tax increase of 1%, plus a 2% Adult Social
Care precept, for the Havering element of Council Tax. The report
recommends to Council the Council Tax level at band D as £1363.83 before
the inclusion of the GLA precept.

The Local Government Financial Settlement (LGFS) has been confirmed
and some additional funding has been allocated as a result including the
Adult Social Care Supplementary Grant of £600,000 which will be placed in
reserves for that sole purpose. There has also been a change in the New
Homes Bonus which gives extra income of around £30,000 and some other
smaller adjustments in tariffs and top ups. This is all very welcome and
does not affect the budget recommendations being made to Cabinet in this
report.

The Senior Leadership Team of the Council continues to work hard to
develop proposals to balance the 2018/19 budget. Savings proposals and
the application of the Government Grants have reduced the budget gap of
£4.158 million in 2018/19 rising to £33.355 million by 2022/23 and this is
demonstrated in Table 1 of the report.

The Mid-term Financial Strategy and Budget Update report went for
discussion to the Overview and Scrutiny Board on 23" January, 2018.
There were no comments to be brought forward to Cabinet.

The results of the public consultation produced a wide variety of views and
were satisfying in so far as 60% agreed with the Council Tax Budget
Strategy.

The public engagement and budget consultation engaged to understand
residents’ views on 2018/19 Budgets and the Medium Term Financial

Page 2



Cabinet, 7 February 2018

Strategy (MTFS) saving proposals and Council Tax changes began on the
5™ January and closed at mid-night on Friday 2 February 2018.

There were a total of 251 responses. The top three priority services
responses want to protect are:

e School and education - 55.38%

e Adult Social Care - 36.25%

¢ Roads and Transport - 34.66%

The top three priority services responses want to reduce are:
e Parking - 50.60%
e Council Tax Support - 45.02%
¢ Planning and Building control - 39.84%

When asked if there were any comments on the Budget Strategy as a whole
there were 177 responses and these were grouped into themes as follows:
« Salaries: reducing councillor’s allowances and senior staff salary
« Council tax (general comments)
- Of the 40 that commented on Council tax increase,
o 16 were in favour of an increase
o 22 were not in favour whilst
o 2 were neutral
* Protecting vulnerable residents such as the elderly and children
service
* Roads: complaints about “unnecessary” council spending on road
improvements such as the installation of speed bumps, enforcement
of Yellow box junction
« Cutting council administration costs and back office spending
* Waste — introduction of bins
+ Central government cut
* No option in consultation for not cutting any services

There was a particular emphasis on Yellow Box Enforcement and whether
such enforcement is cost effective and whether such enforcement is
correctly used to generate income.

The Local Government Financial Settlement details also the schools
funding. The Government plans to introduce a national funding formula for
schools starting this coming financial year. Havering will be able to move
straight to this National Formula following consultation. This will mean that
all schools will receive a minimum increase of 0.5% per pupil up to a
maximum of 3% per pupil and this is demonstrated in Table 3 of the report.

One of the key aspects is the cessation of the Education Services Grant
from September, 2017. For 2018/19 a sum of approximately £0.590 million
has been included in the new Central School Services Block. This leaves a
shortfall against the cost of providing LA statutory services and this is
depicted in Table 6 of the report. It is intended that the shortfall will be
managed as part of the ongoing transformational review of the service

Page 3



Cabinet, 7 February 2018

which will include an investment in education traded services which will be
used to supplement the £0.835 million shortfall.

Table 7 of the report depicts the forecast overspend along each directorate
which is reducing. In the main, this has been due to the planned contribution
from the corporate risk budget to Children’s Services and further
improvements in Neighbourhoods, OneSource and the Chief Operating
Officer forecasts.

Demographic growth continues to impact on the level of demand for
services in the Borough particularly in housing and adult social care and this
is a trend that is expected to continue in the coming years.

Negotiations continue with the Government over the pay award increase.
Any changes in this will be reported back to Cabinet when known and an
update will be provided for the Council meeting, if available.

Fees and charges have been reviewed in order to deliver an increase in
income of 3%. Government and specific grants are reducing outside of the
general grant. The provisional Public Health Grant has seen a £0.289
million reduction.

The New Homes Bonus has been reduced by £2.640 million and it is
anticipated that this will reduce to approximately £3.8 million by 2018/19.
Levying Bodies need to be taken into account. The levies are part of the
Local Government Settlement and are therefore taken into account when
setting the Havering element of the Council Tax.

The estimated ELWA levy for 2018/19 is £15.992 million. If this is
confirmed, this will represent an increase of 7.15% or £1.067 million and is
£0.067 million more than expected. The ELWA levy is based on the weight
or rubbish disposed of by residents whether in the normal waste or by way
of recycling and this continues to present as a significant financial pressure.

Residents can assist here and make a substantial contribution to reducing
the future levy by participating in the Council’'s waste management and
recycling initiatives.

Payments to external bodies have seen a welcome reduction and initiatives
such as the Freedom Passes project have produced a benefit.

The Corporate Risk Budget is available to support the corporate
organisation to meet a range of necessary expenditure to meet financial
pressures and unavoidable overspends. It was reported in the 2017/18
MTFS that the Corporate Risk Budget has reduced significantly in recent
years. As margins reduce there is a greater need to balance the budget
tightly.

The Greater London Authority (GLA) precept covers the services of the
Metropolitan Police, the London Fire and Emergency Planning Authority, the

Page 4



Cabinet, 7 February 2018

London Development Agency together with the core functions of the GLA
and Transport for London. The precept is outside the control of the Council.
It has been very disappointing for Havering to have suffered such a
decrease in policing generally.

The Green Paper on Adult Social Care has been delayed until the summer
of 2018 so there is real uncertainty here. This has been reflected in the
assumption that the improved Better Care Fund will not continue beyond
2019/20. Cabinet will be updated as more information comes through in
relation to Social Care Funding and the Fair Funding Review.

Tables 10, 11 and 12 of the report detail the Capital Programme.

There are a number of schemes which were considered by Cabinet in
December. Most notably, these consist of Economic Development which
includes the Bridge Close Regeneration, Mercury land Holdings Business
Plan Schemes and Rainham Beam Park Regeneration. In addition the SLM
Leisure Contract was considered by Cabinet in November 2017.

Mercury Land Holdings has been successful in generating a worthwhile
income for the Council and it is hoped that the company will continue to
flourish.

Cabinet:

1. Noted the forecast outturn on service directorates at period 9 and the
actions being taken by SLT to manage expenditure within approved
budgets set out in section 5 of the report.

2. Approved the income generation and savings proposals as set out in
Appendix A of the report.

3. Considered the advice of the Chief Finance Officer as set out in
Appendix F of the report when recommending the Council budget.

4. Approved the following budgets for 2018/19:

e The Council’'s General Fund budget as set out in Appendix D of the
report.

e The Delegated Schools’ draft budget set out in section 4 of the report

e The Capital Programme as set out in section 9 and Appendix G of
the report.

5. Delegated to the Chief Financial Officer the implementation of the
2018/19 capital and revenue proposals once approved by Council unless
further reports or Cabinet Member authorities are required.

6. Agreed that the Chief Financial Officer be authorised to allocate funding

from the Capital Contingency included within the draft Capital
Programme.

Page 5



Cabinet, 7 February 2018

40

7.

8.

Agreed that the relevant Cabinet Member, together with the Cabinet
Member for Financial Management, ICT (Client) & Transformation be
delegated authority to commence tender processes and accept tenders
for capital schemes included within the approved programme under the
block programme allocations or delegation arrangements set out in this
report.

Agreed that to facilitate the usage of unringfenced resources, the Chief
Financial Officer in consultation with Service Directors will review any
such new funds allocated to Havering; make proposals for their use; and
obtain approval by the Cabinet Member for Financial Management, ICT
(Client) & Transformation.

Delegated to the Chief Financial Officer in consultation with Service
Directors the authority to make any necessary changes to service and
the associated budgets relating to any subsequent specific grant funding
announcements, where delays may otherwise adversely impact on
service delivery and/or budgetary control, subject to consultation with
Cabinet Members as appropriate.

10.Approved the schedule of proposed Fees and Charges set out in

Appendix J of the report, with any recommended changes in year being
implemented under Cabinet Member delegation.

11.Agreed that if there are any changes to the GLA precept and/or levies,

the Chief Financial Officer authorised to amend the recommended
resolutions accordingly and report these to the next Council meeting as
required.

12. Will recommend to Council for consideration and approval:

e The General Fund budget for 2018/19

e The Council Tax for Band D properties and for other Bands of
properties, all as set out in Appendix D, as revised and circulated for
the Greater London Authority (GLA) Council Tax.

e The Delegated Schools’ budget for 2018/19, as set out in section 4 of
the report.

e The Capital Programme for 2018/19 as set out in section 9 and
supported by Annexes 1, 2 and 3 of Appendix G.

e That it passes a resolution as set out in section 11.3 of the report to
enable Council Tax discounts to be given at the 2017/18 level.

THE HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT (HRA) BUDGET FOR 2018/2019
AND HRA MAJOR WORKS CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2018/19 - 2022/23

The Cabinet Lead Member for Housing and Deputy Leader of the Council,

Councillor Damien White presented the report to Cabinet.

Page 6



Cabinet, 7 February 2018

The report detailed the annual process required to set the HRA rents and
service charges for the financial year 2018/19 and the Capital Programme.
The approach adopted has been the same since 2012, enabling the
business plan to be designed to provide long term management to the
Council's housing assets and services.

The report reflects the update given to Cabinet in November, 2017 and
incorporates how the HRA can support the regeneration projects the
Council is proud to be taking forward, most notably the 12 Estates Joint
venture (JV) and the affordable housing provision on Bridge Close. It also
sets out the budget requirements for the operation of services.

The Deputy Leader indicated the primary functions of the report are to:

e Approve the rents to be charged for 2018/19

e Approve the service charges and other fees for 2018/19

e Approve the overall costs of running the housing landlord services,
and

e Approve the capital programme

For this year there is an additional function in that the report seeks
Cabinet

e To approve the funding for 12 sites JV and the Bridge Close JV
within the Capital Programme as detailed in the Cabinet reports of
November, 2017 and January, 2018. For this reason the Capital
Programme included in the report is a five year programme rather
than the usual three years. It was therefore agreed that the title of
the report be amended to read from 2018/19 — 20222/23 and not
2018/19 — 2020/21.

The Cabinet Lead Member and Deputy Leader of the Council went on to
detail the report contents.

Rents

The Council continues into a third year of a reduction in rents by 1% as set
out by the Government. This reduction will also be applied to Supported
Housing, namely sheltered housing and hostel accommodation. The overall
average reduction in rents is £0.97 per week.

This reduction is made when Housing Services have high rent collection
rates, low vacant property levels and has made significant efficiency in
operating costs over the last two to three years.

Service Charges
It is the aim of the Council to ensure that those benefiting from service

provision are paying for them and to ensure the cost of each service,
including overheads, can be fully recovered from service users. These

Page 7



Cabinet, 7 February 2018

principles have been adopted for a number of years and now meet with
good practice guidance.

Work has been carried out and will continue to improve the value for money
of services either by reviewing the staffing and costs of the service or by
renegotiation of contracts with some service providers. A limit of 25% has
been placed on such increases and this has led to some decreases in
charges.

Other fees and Charges

Garage charges have increased by 7% to fund repairs and upgrades.
Careline and telecare charges are increasing by CPI plus 1% or 4%.

Capital Programme

Stock investment, detailed in the report will ensure that the Council’s
existing housing stock will be maintained at the “decent homes standard”.

The investment in new build and regeneration projects supports the strategy
to increase the supply of affordable homes in the Borough which are
affordable at local income levels.

Cabinet agreed in January, 2018 to award preferred bidder status on the 12
estates initiative. The £63.3 million initial equity together with the £50.5
million for buy backs and rehousing costs are included within the 5 year
Capital Programme.

The cabinet Lead Member and Deputy Leader pointed out that the Bridge
Close JV detailed to Cabinet in November, 2017 agreed to fund 30%
affordable housing with the aspiration that 35% will be achieved.
Negotiations are progressing well to this figure.

Cabinet:

Agreed to amend the date in the title of the report to 2018/19-2022/23 and:

1. Approved the Housing Revenue Account Budget as detailed in
Appendix 1 of the report.

2. Agreed that the average rents chargeable for tenants in general
needs Council properties owned by the London Borough of Havering
be decreased by 1% from the w/c 2 April 2018 in line with the
indicative figures contained in paragraph 2.1.7 of the report.

3. Agreed that the average rents chargeable for tenants in supported
housing Council properties, such as sheltered housing and hostels,
owned by the London Borough of Havering, be reduced by 1% from
the w/c 2 April 2018 in line with the indicative figures contained in
paragraph 2.1.8 and 2.1.9 of the report.

Page 8



Cabinet, 7 February 2018

4, Agreed the four rent-free weeks for 2018/19 as being: w/c 20 August
2018, the two weeks commencing 17 and 24 December 2018, and
the week commencing 25 March 2019.

5. Agreed that service charges and heating and hot water charges for
2018/19 are as detailed in paragraph 2.2.2 of this report.

6. Agreed that the service charges for homeless households
accommodated in the Council’s hostels 2018/19 are as detailed in
paragraph 2.2.3 of the report.

7. Agreed that charges for garages should be increased by 7.5% in
2018/19 as detailed in paragraph 2.3.1 of the report

8. Agreed that the service charge for the provision of security and
support in sheltered housing for 2017/18 shall be as detailed in
paragraph 2.4.1 of the report.

9. Agreed that the Careline support charge should be increased by 4%
for 2018/19 as detailed in paragraph 2.5.1 of the report.

10. Agreed that the Telecare support charges should be increased by
4% for 2018/19 as detailed in paragraph 2.5.1 of this report.

11. Approved the HRA Major Works Capital Programme, detailed in
Appendix 2a of the report and refer it to full Council for final ratification.

12. Approved the HRA Capital expenditure and financing for the 12
Sites Joint Venture, detailed in paragraphs 3.19.1 to 3.19.8 and Appendix
2a of the report and refer it to full Council for final ratification.

13. Approved the HRA Capital expenditure and financing to acquire up
to 375 affordable dwellings from the Bridge Close JVLLP, detailed in
paragraphs 3.20.1 to 3.20.5 and Appendix 2a of the report and refer it to full
Council for final ratification.

14. Agreed to delegateto the Lead Member for Housing, after
consultation with the Director of Neighbourhoods, the Monitoring Officer and
the s151 Officer, authority to finalise agreement on the terms of the
acquisition of affordable housing on Bridge Close referred to in
recommendation 13 of the report.

15. Agreed to redirect both the balance in the RTB debt repayment
reserve and future RTB attributable debt receipts towards the funding of the
Estate Regeneration Programme and associated vacant possession COsts.

16. Agreed to release balances and redirect the proceeds from the
disposal of HRA shared ownership properties and other HRA disposals
towards the funding of the Estate Regeneration Programme, associated
costs of vacant possession and the HRA New Build Programme.

Page 9



Cabinet, 7 February 2018

41

TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT, PRUDENTIAL
INDICATORS AND MINIMUM REVENUE PROVISION STATEMENT FOR
2018/19

The report was presented to Cabinet by the Cabinet Lead Member for
Financial management, Transformation and IT, Councillor Clarence Barrett.

The Council is required to formally approve the Treasury Management
Strategy Statement, Prudential Indicators and the Minimum Revenue
Provision Statement following the recommendation from Cabinet.

A primary objective of the Treasury Management Service is to ensure that
the Authority’s cash flow is adequately planned, with cash available when
needed. Surplus monies are invested in counterparts or instruments
commensurate with the Authority’s appetite for risk and liquidity
requirements as priorities before considering investment return.

The second main objective is to ensure property funding of the Authority’s
capital expenditure plans. The capital plans provide a guide to the
borrowing need of the Council.

On 31° December, 2017 the Authority held £229.5 million of borrowing and
£230.3 million of investments. Table 1 of the report is based on the
proposed Capital Programme for 2018/19 which will require the Council to
borrow a further £10 million in 2019/20 and a further £30 million in 2020/21.

The borrowing strategy objectives will be informed by:
e Interest rate forecasts and the shape of the interest rate curve.
e Spread of current debt maturities to avoid high concentrations in any
year
e Shape of the Authority’s future capital finance requirement (CFR)
curve; and
e Balance of callable long term debt and non-callable long term debt in
the portfolio.
The Authority’s borrowing strategy continues to address the key issue of
affordability without compromising the long term stability of the debt
portfolio.

Appendix 4 of the report details the Authority’s Debt Portfolio of the
Authority’s fixed term borrowing and Appendix 5 details the Authority’s
Minimum Credit Rating Criteria but it should be noted that investment
decisions are never based solely on credit ratings and will take into account
other relevant factors such as external advice. There is confidence in that
investments would only be carried out through a very robust due diligence
process.

The CIPFA Prudential Code and TM Code requires authorities to set

treasury indicators and these are set out in Appendix 7 of the report. No
breaches are likely in 2018/19.

Page 10



Cabinet, 7 February 2018

42

Cabinet:

1. Approved the Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS)
2018/19.

2. Approved the Treasury Management and Prudential Indicators set
out in Appendix 7 of the report.

3. Approved the Annual Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Statement
for 2018/19 set out in Appendix 8 of this report.

4. Will recommend the annual TMSS and MRP statements 2018/19 to
Council for approval.

5. Delegated future changes required to this Strategy to the Chief
Financial Officer in consultation with the Cabinet Member for
Financial Management, ICT (client) & Transformation. This will
provide the additional flexibility to swiftly respond to changing
financial markets.

FINANCIAL INCLUSION STRATEGY

The Leader of the Council, Councillor Roger Ramsey presented the report
to Cabinet.

There are many individuals and families in the Borough in Havering and
nationally, experiencing financial difficulties and pressures due to rising
living costs, welfare reforms and stagnant salaries. This impacts
significantly on the general wellbeing of residents and also generates
demand on the services that Councils and their partners provide.

In order to address this, the Council has developed a new Financial
Inclusion Strategy which focuses on identifying, prioritising and tackling the
major causes of financial exclusion whilst also promoting services that will
facilitate financial inclusion.

The strategy, produced at Appendix 1 of the report seeks to help local
residents access the information they need to help them manage finances
and prioritise their financial commitments. In addition it helps to highlight
the importance of educating children and young people to ensure they know
how to access financial services both now and in the future.

The Financial Inclusion Strategy contributes to the achievement of all four
thematic areas of the Corporate Plan. It is one of a number of strategies
that the Council has in place to help prevent and mitigate the effects of
poverty and deprivation in the Borough.

Cabinet:

1. Agreed the Financial Inclusion Strategy attached at Appendix 1 of
the report.

Page 11



Cabinet, 7 February 2018

43

EMPLOYMENT AND SKILLS PLAN

The Employment and Skills plan report was presented to Cabinet by the
Cabinet Lead member for Environment and Community Safety, Councillor
Osman Dervish.

The local job market in Havering is based predominantly on low skilled
work and low wage levels. There are pockets of long term unemployment
and economic inactivity which leads to under employment, poor career
progression and in=work poverty.

The local job market is changing and as a result it is important that Havering
residents are equipped with the right skills to meet demand and to adapt to
future employment trends. Businesses need to be able to access a work
force that can meet their requirements and prosper economic growth.

It is also important to note that the Department for Work and Pension’s
(DWP) mainstream programmes have been developed nationally with very
limited input from Local Authorities. This Plan will allow Havering to tailor
input appropriate to the local need of the Borough.

Together with the Financial Inclusion Strategy there are a number of plans
and strategies in place to prevent and mitigate the effects of deprivation and
poverty. The Plan should therefore be read alongside other related
documents. There is not currently a strategy in place to address issues
relating to unemployment and underemployment. As a result the Council
commissioned consultants to develop this Plan which is commended to
Cabinet for approval in draft form to return back to Cabinet in April for the
final document to be considered.

Cabinet:

1) Approved the draft Employment and Skills Plan (Appendix 1 of the
report) for consultation with the local business community, Joint
Venture partners and other key stakeholders.

2) Agreed that a final version of the Employment and Skills Plan be
presented to the Cabinet in April 2018 for adoption.

Chairman

Page 12



_ Agenda ltem 5
5¢ Havering

izt L ONDON BOROUGH

CABINET

Subject Heading: Romford Business Improvement District

Proposal

Cabinet Member: Councillor Osman Dervish

SLT Lead: Steve Moore, Director of
Neighbourhoods
Report Author and contact details: Helen Payne, 01708 433276

helen.payne@havering.qov.uk

Policy context: The proposal relates to the Places and

Opportunities strands of the Havering
vision.

Financial summary: In order to proceed with the ballot the
council will incur a nominal charge of
£0.002m for Electoral Reform Society
services.

Should the BID ballot be successful the
Council would be liable for payment of an
annual levy of additional business rates
currently estimated at £0.023m per
annum,

The Council provides services to the BID
in order to collect the levy on NNDR; these
services are annual billing, in year account
maintenance, recovery and reconciliation.
The Council charges the BID for these
services at the rate of £0.020m per
annum.

RTMP has requested that the council
consider an advance payment to cover set
up costs in advance of the receipt of the
levy should the ballot be successful.
Subject to systems being established post
ballot to collect the initial levy payments,
the funding should be recoverable by the
Council within the financial year.

Is this a Key Decision? The proposal is the subject of a Cabinet
report because it will have a significant
impact on users/customers; and significant
implications for service delivery, and a

Page 13


mailto:helen.payne@havering.gov.uk

Cabinet, 14 March 2018

significant effect on two Wards.

When should this matter be reviewed? The BID period proposed is 5 years, after

which a further request would need to be
made to the Council for a re-ballot.
Agreement to a re-ballot would be a non-
key executive decision.

Reviewing OSC: Towns and Communities

The subject matter of this report deals with the following Council
Objectives

Communities making Havering [l
Places making Havering [x]
Opportunities making Havering (x]
Connections making Havering (1

SUMMARY

The Romford Town Management Partnership Limited (Company number 10315705)
(RTMP) has submitted a request to the Council in accordance with Business
Improvement District Regulations, to hold a ballot within Romford Town Centre, to
establish a Business Improvement District (BID). This report provides background
information on BIDs and on the priorities set out in the draft Business Plan, and on
the role of the Council in supporting and delivering BIDs. It seeks approval to
supporting the ballot being held and to voting to support it in relation to the Council’s
properties in the area.

RECOMMENDATIONS

The Cabinet is recommended to:

1. Review and approve the Romford Town Management Limited BID Proposal
to go to ballot in June 2018;

2. Agree to support the formation of a BID in Romford Town Centre, subject to a

successful ballot taking place in accordance with the Business Improvement
Districts (England) Regulations, 2004;

Page 14



Cabinet, 14 March 2018

11

1.2

1.3

1.4

. Note that the Council will be subject to payment of the levy on its properties

within the BID area; and,

. Agree that the Head of Property Services (one Source) be authorised to cast

the Council’s vote to support the establishment of the BID in relation to all the
council properties within in the BID area; and,

. Delegate authority to the S151 Officer in consultation with the Director of

Neighbourhoods to negotiate and settle agreements in relation to any
advance funding for the BID of no more than £230,000, subject to a
successful ballot, the creation of the BID and the production of a costed
workplan and cashflow acceptable to the S151 officer detailing the funding
requirements.

REPORT DETAIL

Business Improvement Districts

A Business Improvement District is a defined area in which a levy is charged
on all business rate payers in addition to the business rates bill. The levy is
used to develop projects which will benefit businesses in the local area.

(RTMP is a company limited by guarantee, formally established in September
2015 as a successor to the Romford Town Centre Partnership (RTCP) which
had been meeting as a discussion forum for the previous decade. The RTMP
aims to harness the combined power of the public and private sector to
improve Romford town centre and stimulate prosperity in Romford.

RTMP has submitted a request to the local authority to take the proposal to a
ballot in June 2018. The proposal sets out the services to be provided and the
size and scope of the BID. It also sets out who is liable for the levy, the
amount of levy to be collected, which is 1.5% of rateable value, how it is
calculated, and the businesses and organisations that would be eligible for
exemptions, such as non-retail charities and schools.

Businesses that are subject to the levy, as set out in the proposals, vote in a
ballot. This determines whether the scheme goes ahead. A successful vote
is one that has a simple majority both in votes cast and in rateable value of
votes cast. Each business entitled to vote is allowed one vote in respect of
each property occupied or (if unoccupied) owned by them in the geographical
area of the Business Improvement District.

Page 15



Cabinet, 14 March 2018

15

1/6

2.1

2.2

3.1

4.1

5.1

6.1

Once the Business Improvement District is in operation the levy is charged on
all businesses within the Business Improvement District area (regardless of
whether or how that business voted in the ballot).

BIDs can run for a maximum of 5 years before they need to seek renewal
through another ballot. The Romford BID term will be 5 years. If a BID is
established in Romford, it will be the second BID operating in Havering. The
London Riverside BID has been in operation since 2006, and has now
successfully held 3 BID ballots.

Romford BID

RTMP was set up in 2016 with the purpose of improving the town centre. It
currently has 5 Directors, including shopping centre managers, and business
managers from the town centre. .

During the course of 2017 the RTMP has been working with the wider
business community in the town centre to identify their priorities, and is
proposing a number of improvements outlined in their draft business plan as
summarised below.

Pledge One. Market, promote and inspire.

To reinvigorate our profile and promote the town as a prime destination
making sure people know about Romford’s unique offer. To create new and
engaging ways of putting Romford on the map - locally, regionally and
nationally.

Pledge Two. Create a safe, diverse and vibrant evening and night time
experience.

To enhance our offer so we can appeal more effectively to the modern
consumers who are increasingly demanding more from their town centre
experience. To encourage and support more diverse businesses, creating a
better balanced offer that enhances the vibrancy of our town centre. This is
while ensuring it operates well at all time periods and appeals to the full range
of people who live, work and play in our town centre.

Pledge Three. Ensure a warm welcome by creating a positive place.

To focus on making Romford clean, green, safe and ensuring a warm
welcome for all. To look at expanding our events and festivals programme
and through it reimagine our town centre delivering exciting public realm
improvements across the Romford BID area.

Pledge Four. Lead, champion and influence.

To represent the needs of the whole Romford business community, we will
make sure your voice is heard and aim to become a positive champion of their

Page 16



Cabinet, 14 March 2018

7.1

7.2

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

needs. We'll do this by improving communication, creating new ways to
network and helping share information both internally and externally.

BID Area

The proposed area to be covered by the BID includes Central Library, the
Como Street Car Park and properties opposite on North Street, as well as
properties within the boundary of the ring road, as set out in the map
appended to the report. The proposed area contains around 447
hereditaments of which 10 are owned by the local authority.

The Council will be entitled to votes for each of these 10 properties, and it is
recommended that the Head of Property Services votes on behalf of the
Council.

Council’s Role

Under the BID regulations the Council is obliged to support the establishment
of a BID once a formal proposal is received. The Council can veto a BID
proposal if it conflicts with any policies that the council already has in place or
it places a significantly disproportionate or inequitable financial burden on any
individual or group of businesses. The Council also plays pivotal roles as
regulator and service provider, and as custodian of the public realm.

The local authority is required to provide the relevant rateable value data to
the BID Company, together with establishing the necessary systems
(including software changes) to enable collection and enforcement of the BID
levy. The systems to provide this service are already in place for the London
Riverside BID and will operate in the same way for the Romford Town Centre
BID should the ballot be successful.

The local authority is required to set up and manage the BID ballot on behalf
of the BID Company. The register must link the persons eligible to vote to the
relevant property, and its rateable value. The role of the Electoral
Registration Officer is prescribed by regulations as the person who will create
the list. The holding and administration of the Ballot will be undertaken by the
Electoral Reform Society.

The local authority is required to provide statutory services to an acceptable
level, including via contractors. The local authority and RTMP will agree an
acceptable baseline service level for a wide range of environmental,
community safety and other services, and this has been set out in a set of
baseline service statements, signed off by officers. These will be defined and
listed in the BID proposal, so that business understand what services are
provided by the Council, and that additional services will be funded through
the BID levy. Any additional services provided are chargeable by the Council.

Page 17



Cabinet, 14 March 2018

8.5

9.1

10.1

10.1

11.

111

11.2

11.3

Over the last year, and in the lead up to the proposed ballot, the Council has
been providing staff resource and funding to support the RTMPs work on the
BID proposal. Specific staff resource will be continued until the ballot.

REASONS AND OPTIONS

Reasons for the decision:

Under the BID Regulations the Council is obliged to support the establishment
of a BID once a formal proposal is received. The Council can only veto a BID
proposal if it does not cover all of the points laid out in Schedule 1 of the BID
Regulations, or if it conflicts with any policies that the Council already has in
place. Officers will work with the RTMP to ensure that the BID proposal is
compliant with Schedule 1 requirements.

Other options considered:

Under the legislation the Local Authority must support the establishment of a
BID when asked by the BID proposer to provide such a request in line with the
terms of the regulations. Should the BID not proceed; the funding that would
have resulted from the levy will not be available to support improvements to
the town centre.

IMPLICATIONS AND RISKS

Financial implications and risks:

The Bid process is largely obligatory for the Council. However the provision
of funding in advance is a decision for the council to make on receipt of the
business plan and is not as such an obligation.

The following financial Implications pertain to the Council:

£0.002m BID Ballot

The Council is obliged to conduct and pay for the BID ballot. The Electoral
Reform Society will be contracted to undertake the Ballot and the cost of this
will be contained within the Development service.

£0.020m income from Levy Collection

The Council will provide services to the BID in order to collect the levy on
NNDR; these services are annual billing, in year account maintenance,
recovery and reconciliation. The Council charges the BID for these services.
Delays in entering into a BID may impact on the level of income received as
this amount may be pro rata in year 1. The council will charge VAT on this
service.

Page 18



Cabinet, 14 March 2018

11.4

11.5

11.5

11.6

11.7

11.8

If the BID is successful the Council will provide limited staffing resource to
coordinate the Councils input to the BID Board, and the services provided as
set out within the Baseline Agreements, and this will be contained within
existing resources.

£0.023m Bid Levy

The local authority as a property owner of 10 businesses with rateable value
fall within the BID boundary, if the ballot results in a BID the Council will be
liable for a £0.023m per annum Levy. Delays in entering into a BID may
impact on the level of Levy Charged as this amount may be pro-rata in year 1.

The cost of proceeding to ballot has been supported by the Council, and
includes the direct ballot costs and supporting the BID proposal development
process. Resources have been provided from within the Development budget
to support the work, and to fund the ballot process. All service areas affected
by the BID will need to identify funding streams in relation to their element of
the £0.023m Levy from within existing budgets

Request for payments in advance

The RTMP will be unable to commence activity until levy payments start to be
made. As this will not happen immediately post ballot, they have requested
the Council consider making an advance payment to fund setup costs.
Systems would need to be put in place following a “yes” vote to enable mid-
year billing, and the costs of this should be covered by the charges for the
billing process. Subject to this being done, bills could be sent out in early
October, and the bulk of the pro-rata levy should have been received by the
end of November.

The treatment of the up front payment from the Council would need to be
clarified in terms of the amount required, the set up costs or other outgoings
being covered, how much the RTMP was requesting and the length of time
over which the organisation would pay back the pre-funding. The council may
have to treat the advance as a soft loan and as such interest may need to be
charged on to the RTMP. The council would have to ensure that such
payments satisfied state aid requirements.

At present there is not enough information to confirm this position, and this
would need to be clarified during the ongoing negotiations. The amount of any
loan should be negotiated on the basis of a sustainable funding profile for the
BID company set out in a costed workplan and cashflow, and should be up to
a maximum of £230,000. Confirmation of this treatment would need to form
part of the delegated decision making included in recommendation 5 of this
report. If an advance payment was made, there is no specific budget
approved for this, so the sum would need to be drawn from corporate
reserves.

Page 19



Cabinet, 14 March 2018

11.7

12.

12.1

12.3

12.4

12.6

12.7

13.

13.1

14.

Below are the financial implications to the BID:

It is anticipated that a BID would result in securing external funding via the
levy into the Town Centre of up to £0.660m for a full year on the basis of the
current hereditaments.

Legal implications and risks:

Business Improvement Districts (England) Regulations 2004 (The
Regulations) provide the statutory powers and framework to enable a
Business Improvement District (BID) to be created. This report and its
appendix explains how a BID is established and sets out the BID Proposal
process and maps out the future stages in the process in the event that the
BID Proposal proceeds to Ballot.

At this stage in the process the Council, as billing authority, is only required to
instruct the Returning Officer to hold a ballot once satisfied that the Bid
Proposer has met all the requirements under the Regulations. Officers are
satisfied that these requirements have been met. Where the relevant billing
authority is of the view that the BID proposals conflict with a policy formally
adopted by and contained in a document published by the authority the
authority shall, as soon as reasonably practicable after receiving the
proposals, notify the BID body in writing explaining the nature of that conflict.

The Council has legal powers to enter into arrangements to facilitate the BID
including levy collection and may enter into a Baseline Agreement for the
Provision of Standard Services and an Operating Agreement to confirm
agreed arrangements. It should be noted that these do not constitute legally
binding agreements as these are subject to change from time to time.

Council has right to exercise a veto after the outcome of the Ballot if the
council consider the arrangements are likely to either conflict to a material
extent with any of their published policies or place a disproportionate and
inequitable financial burden on any person or group of persons through
manipulation of the BID geographical area or the structure of the BID levy.

It is highlighted that the Council as owner of hereditaments in the BID and
certain duties under the Regulations may not coincide. Although this is
unlikely in practice it may be necessary put in place arrangements to deal with
a conflict of interests. The role on voting is to be delegated as per the
recommendations in this report.

Human Resources implications and risks:

There are no Human Resources implications for the proposal.

Equalities implications and risks:

Page 20



Cabinet, 14 March 2018

14.1

None

The promotion of equality and enhancement of community cohesion will be
intrinsic to the Romford BID, which operates within the spirit of the Equality
Act 2010 and Havering Council’s Fair to All Equality Policy. No individual or
group involved with the BID will experience discrimination or detrimental
treatment due to any ‘Protected’ characteristic, as set out in equality
legislation. The BID will also be utilized as an opportunity to promote
improved health and wellbeing.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



Cabinet, 14 March 2018

Appendix A

2
§

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



_ Agenda Item 6
%¢ Havering

it L ONDON BOROUGH

CABINET

Subject Heading: Integrated ~ Community  Equipment

Service

Cabinet Member: Councillor Wendy Brice-Thompson, Cabinet

Member for Adult Services and Health

SLT Lead: Barbara Nicholls,  Director of Adults

Services and Health
Report Author and contact details: John Green, Head of Joint Commissioning
john.green@havering.gov.uk

01708 433 018

Policy context: Supports priorities in the Joint Health &

Wellbeing Strategy:

Greater integration between social care,
education and health in the provision of
support for adults and children most at risk

Financial summary: An Integrated Community Equipment
Service across BHR partners will release an
annual saving of £0.055m on current LBH
Community Equipment spend of £0.516m
(based on 2016/17 Outturn).

. . Expenditure or saving (including anticipated
Is this a Key Decision? income) of £500,000 or more

When should this matter be reviewed? 6 months following sign off

Reviewing OSC: Individuals

The subject matter of this report deals with the following Council
Objectives

Communities making Havering [x]
Places making Havering [
Opportunities making Havering 1
Connections making Havering 1

Place an X in the [] as appropriate

Page 25


mailto:john.green@havering.gov.uk

Cabinet, 11" April 2018

SUMMARY

Community Equipment is provided by the Council (“LBH”) to allow the frail, elderly
and physically disabled adults and children to live independently within their own
homes or community and school environments and to facilitate discharge from
hospital. This equipment ranges from simple daily living aids to more complex
equipment such as beds, lifts, hoists.

LBH currently commissions the service through the London Borough of Redbridge
(LBR) “Framework Contract for the Community Equipment Service” (“the
Framework”) originally established in 2011. The Framework was most recently
retendered in 2015 and Millbrook Healthcare Limited was appointed as sole
provider for a term of 4 years, from 1st December 2015 to 30th November 2019.

As part of the system wide partnership and governance arrangements it was
recognised that community equipment services were fragmented across Barking
Havering and Redbridge (BHR) and a piece of work was commissioned by the
Discharge Improvement Working Group (DIWG) to explore potential benefits of
establishing an integrated community equipment service. The DIWG is a group
established as part of system wide governance to explore opportunities to improve
the discharge process. The review evaluated the current and alternative integrated
service options in terms of service delivery, quality and value for money.

The recommendation was to establish a single Integrated Community Equipment
Service hosted and led by LBR through a section 75 agreement with all named
BHR partners across health and social care.

This recommendation was approved by DIWG on 4™ September 2017 and went on
to be approved by the Joint Commissioning Board (JCB) on 6™ September 2017
which is a sub group of the Integrated Care Partnership Board (ICPB). This
approval was subject to formal approval by each partner through their internal
governance arrangements.

RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that the Cabinet:

e Approves the Council joining an Integrated Community Equipment Service
(ICES) with BHR health and social care partners, hosted by London
Borough of Redbridge.

e Authorises the Director of Adult Services to sign the Section 101(LGA
1972) / Section 75 (NHS Act 2006) agreement and all further documentation
necessary to facilitate the participation of the Council in the Integrated
Community Equipment Service.

Page 26



Cabinet, 11" April 2018

REPORT DETAIL

1. Background

1.1

1.2.

1.3.

1.4

Community Equipment is provided by the Council to allow the frail, elderly
and physically disabled adults and children to live independently within
their own homes or community and school environments and to facilitate
discharge from hospital. This equipment ranges from simple daily living
aids to more complex equipment such as beds, lifts, hoists.

LBH currently commissions the service through the LBR “Framework
Contract for the Community Equipment Service” (“the Framework”)
originally established in 2011. The Framework was most recently
retendered in 2015 and Millborook Healthcare Limited was appointed as
sole provider for a term of 4 years, from 1st December 2015 to 30th
November 2019. The current participating authorities on the Framework
include:

e LBR (which commissions under joint Section 75 agreement on behalf
of both itself and RCCG);

e London Borough of Havering (“LBH”);

e North East London NHS Foundation Trust (“NELFT”), (which provides
intermediate care services to Barking and Dagenham CCG
(“B&DCCG”) and Havering CCG (“HCCG”);

e London Borough of Kingston;
e City of London; and
e London Borough of Newham.

The Framework provides that any public body who constitutes one of the
London Borough Councils and all NHS bodies associated with London
Borough Councils (including but not limited to Clinical Commissioning
Groups (“CCGs”)) may become a participating authority to the Framework
at any time during its term.

The other health bodies in Barking, Havering and Redbridge area (“BHR”)
commission equipment by a variety of alternative routes including:

e B&DCCG and HCCG procure in excess of £620K by ‘spot purchase’
direct from a variety of supplier’s;

e Barking, Havering and Redbridge University Hospital NHS Foundation
Trust (“BHRUT”) employ a mix of arrangements including purchasing
direct or assessing and requisitioning through LBH, LBB&D or the
CCGs.

London Borough of Barking & Dagenham (LBB&D) opted to
commission the service by arrangements through the “London
Borough of Kensington & Chelsea” (“LBK&C”) Framework.

Page 27



Cabinet, 11" April 2018

1.5.

1.6.

In 2016/17 the social care, education and health services within BHR spent
in excess of £4.4m on community equipment and the supporting logistics
services to stock, deliver and fit, undertake minor adaptation installations,
provide regular inspection and servicing, respond to emergency repair call
outs, collect equipment back when no longer required and refurbish and
credit items which are economically viable to reuse. BHR’s services,
excluding the activity for NELFT and BHRUT, delivered 19,323 orders
containing in excess of 26,000 items of equipment to 13,709 service users
/ patients.

Of the total BHR activity, LBH spent in excess of £0.516m, delivering 5,180
orders containing in excess of 5,760 items of equipment to 4,692 service
users / patients.

2. Review

2.1

2.2.

The eight social care, education and health bodies in BHR (“Partners”)
agreed to commission an independent review of the Community
Equipment Service to evaluate the cost benefits of alternative options to
establish a single integrated service across BHR. The remit for the review
commissioned by the Partners through the DIWG (5th June 2017) included
soft market testing (an approach by which indicative market values can be
obtained from providers without going through formal procurement
discussions) of contractor and supply chain providers and benchmarking
against commissioning best practice in the UK.

The review highlights that a number of the Partners are delivering a
fragmented service of lesser quality and at a greater cost due to:

a) Delay in delivering equipment to service users and patients due to a
combination of the plethora of alternative and complex administrative
arrangements, an over reliance on manual practices and lengthy
screening processes to authorise orders;

b) Fragmented services relying on multiple ‘local back office’ support
arrangements which are inefficient and costly;
c) The practice of procuring equipment directly from suppliers is not only

more expensive to purchase but also suffers hidden cost and risk due
to:

e The additional cost of new equipment as the items are not
collected, recycled and reused; and

e Risk of injury or fatality and cost as there are neither arrangements
to ensure that the equipment is inspected, serviced and maintained
nor service to undertake emergency repairs;

d) Diseconomy of scale and consequential loss in ‘buying power when
going out to tender.

Page 28



Cabinet, 11" April 2018

2.3.

2.4.

2.5.

2.6.

The recommendation approved by DIWG on 6th September 2017 was to
establish an “Integrated Community Equipment Service” (ICES) hosted
and led by LBR through a Section 75 / 101 agreement with each of the
health and social care partners across BHR.

Initially the service will be provided via the current LBR Community
Equipment Framework Agreement. The parties participating in the Section
75/101 agreement will form a partnership which shall then enter into an
Access Agreement with LBR to become a single Participating Authority
eligible to receive the services under the framework.

Subject to each partner obtaining the requisite approval to enter into the
Agreement, the intention is for the Agreement to come into force as soon
as possible. All those party to the Agreement will notionally form a single
entity that will then access the existing LBR Community Equipment
Framework as a “New Participant”. For those partners who, prior to the
Agreement, were not receiving the Service as an individual participant in
the Framework there will be a period of transition during which they will
move entirely to the new arrangement. The ICES will then be delivered
under the Framework until the expiration of the Framework on 30th
November 2019 before which partners will have to tender for a new
service.

The integrated service went live for LBR, BHRUT and the three CCG’s on
5" February 2018. LBH joined in shadow form with aligned operational
processes. LBH officers have continued to examine financial detail and
assurance around benefits for Havering, and following this due diligence,
are now seeking Cabinet approval to join the S75/101 agreement to realise
the full benefits of the partnership arrangement

3. Savings

3.1.

3.2.

3.3.

The financial case sets out the cost benefit analysis of the options broken
down by each Partner and detailed the key financial benefits and projected
savings. In summary it found that an LBR hosted ICES leveraging the
current Framework is the most cost-effective option specifically:

e Lower product costs — on average 14% below the best alternative on
Product Costs of £2.900m; and

e Equipment collection and re-use rates averaging 64% compared to the
next best alternative averaging 34%.

The financial case goes on to confirm that the Partners could potentially
release savings of c£0.952m per annum. Of this total it is estimated that
the total LBH saving is projected to be £0.077m per annum. Savings are
addressed in further detail in the financial section below.

The savings are generated through a combination of the following;
a) Switching to alternative better value products

b) Reducing the No. of orders issued from 1.1 to 1 per user pa

c) Increase collection and re-use of equipment

Page 29



Cabinet, 11" April 2018

Table 1, Appendix 1 provides a breakdown of the savings

4. Benefits

4.1.

4.2.

4.3.

4.4.

4.5.

4.6.

By extending the LBR framework to include health and social care partners
across BHR, the partners will order equipment through a single BHR ICES
service and common set of operating procedures.

Online requisitioning, authorisation and tracking will be managed through a
single online hosted Warehouse Management and Ordering system across
all partners replacing the current fragmented mix of manual and paperwork
processes and removing the bottlenecks and delays.

There is an agreed criterion to differentiate between Health and Social
Care need which will speed up ordering and authorisation process by
automating and streamlining in real time reducing necessary delays.

The new arrangement will ensure delivery of priority equipment (4 hours —
5 days) in support of the Home First and Admission Avoidance agendas.

Practitioners across the BHR system will be enabled to follow one process
and use one system reducing the time taken when ordering equipment.

This integration will provide a platform for a greater economy of scale and
buying power to take to the market to obtain better value at the next re-
tender in 2019.

5. Recommendation

5.1.

It is proposed that LBH together with the BHR Partners support LBR to set
up a joint ICES by entering into agreement under the provisions of Section
101 of the Local Government Act 1972 and Section 75 of the National
Health Service Act 2006. The BHR Partnership will include:

e Host, London Borough of Redbridge;

e London Borough of Havering;

¢ Redbridge Clinical Commissioning Group;

e Barking & Dagenham Clinical Commissioning Group;

e Havering Clinical Commissioning Group;

e Barking, Havering and Redbridge University Hospitals NHS Trust; and

e North East London Foundation Trust.

REASONS AND OPTIONS

Page 30



Cabinet, 11" April 2018

6. Reasons for the decision:

6.1.

6.2.

The findings from the review concluded that an integrated service hosted
by LBR will provide better quality, better value and generate the release of
significant savings.

The proposed integrated arrangement will remove some of the factors
contributing to a lower quality service including:

a) Delays in ordering equipment for service users due to the range of
alternative and complex administrative arrangements.

b) Fragmented services relying on multiple ‘local back office’ support
arrangements which are inefficient and costly

c) Diseconomy of scale and consequential loss of ‘buying power’ when
going out to tender

d) The practice of procuring equipment directly from suppliers which is
more expensive to purchase but also suffers hidden cost and risk due to
the additional cost of new equipment as the items are not collected,
recycled and reused.

7. Other options considered:

7.1.

The options evaluated included:

Option 1.

Option 2.

Option 3.

Option 4.

Option 5.

‘As Is’ — continue with current arrangements. This option was
discounted as it is inefficient, fragmented and costly for the
partnership, particularly the NHS;

All Partners in BHR go out to tender to establish an ICES. This
option is not possible at this stage as a number of the Partners
are legally committed to existing contracts for the next 1 to 2
years;

LBR host an ICES. This is the recommended option providing
better quality and better value. The LBR Framework already
provides a Community Equipment service to 4 of the 8 Partners
in BHR;

London Borough of Barking and Dagenham (“LBB&D”) host an
ICES. The Options Appraisal found that both in terms of quality
and cost this option falls significantly below the Option 3, LBR
host an ICES;

Health — CCGs go out to tender separately. This option was
discounted in the Options Appraisal as RCCG is already
committed through the LBR Framework and both LBR and
LBK&C only recently tested the market with a greater volume
and economy of scale.

IMPLICATIONS AND RISKS

Page 31



Cabinet, 11" April 2018

8. Financial implications and risks:

8.1.

8.2.

8.3.

8.4.

8.5.

The projected savings for LBH based on 16/17 activity are £0.077m per
annum which will be generated through a combination of:

a) Switching to alternative better value products — gross saving £0.053m

b) Reducing the number of orders issued from 1.1 to 1 per user per
annum — gross saving £0.010m

c) Increasing the collection and re-use of equipment — gross saving
£0.014m

The gross saving is shown before the cost of LBR's Management Fee of
£0.022m for hosting and managing the new ICES arrangement. LBR have
agreed that this fee will be charged at 50%, £0.011m until the point where
there is clear evidence that LBH are projecting a saving at or above the
target £0.077m detailed above. At that point the fee will increase to
£0.022m. While the Management Fee represents a new additional cost to
LBH it is a relatively small value and will be off-set by the projected
savings of £0.077m per annum before the Management Fee cost.

In respect of the financial management and control, LBR will set up and
manage a pooled budget to monitor and track the costs and partner
contributions to fund the service. Individual partner costs centres will be set
up within the pooled budget to ring fence, track and control each partner’s
budget. The provider's monthly Invoice will be split by each Partner and
supported by a detailed schedule of the Orders and transaction costs again
split by Partner. The charges will be posted against the cost centre for
each of the partners who will receive individual copies of their Invoice
Statement and supporting Orders and transaction costs. LBR will provide
a monthly financial report to the operations board detailing the budget and
actual spend to date highlighting under or over spends by partner together
with any underlying trends. The partners will maintain their own financial
monitoring and control arrangements as they do now and will have the
mechanism through the monthly financial report to the operations board to
check and reconcile their costs against the pooled budget. A year-end
reconciliation process will be in place to identify any under or overspend
and arrange for the reimbursement or recharge of any balance based on
each partner’s contribution compared to their actual spend.

The pooled budget for the next financial year will be set and agreed by the
partner’s through the Joint Commissioning Board as part of the annual
review and renewal meeting in January / February each year.

A potential financial risk of the new arrangements adversely impacting LBH
funding specific items of equipment using the Disabled Facilities Grant
(DFG) has been identified. A combination of the switch from Millbrook
invoicing LBH directly to LBR recharging through Partner contributions to
the Pooled Fund together with the additional LBR management fee could
open up the potential to challenge the funding as the direct audit trail is
removed, and the additional cost of the management fee charged by LBR
represents an additional pressure which is currently deemed to be

Page 32



Cabinet, 11" April 2018

8.6.

revenue, rather than being treated as capital and thus qualify to be funded
from the grant.

A number of steps have been identified to mitigate if not eliminate the risk
of challenge including:

a) Millbrook will provide an invoice statement to LBH identical in format

and structure to the current Invoice. This will provide the direct audit trail
to support the DFG funding

b) Explore the option with Millbrook to include an on-cost function on the

Invoice Statement to recover the additional management fee costs as
an integral component of the rationale and basis for providing the
equipment which will be compliant with the required basis to support
DFG funding.

9. Legal implications and risks:

9.1.

9.2.

9.3.

9.4.

The Care Act 2014 provides that Local Authorities have a statutory duty in
respect of adults over the age of 18 who are assessed as requiring either
community equipment or minor adaptations.

Furthermore, duties to children with disabilities (up to age 18), are set out
in the Chronically Sick and Disabled Persons Act 1970, the Children’s Acts
of 1989 and 2004 together with the Education Health & Care Plan (EHC)
requirements for Children with special educational needs and disabilities
(based on the Children & Families Act).

Under Section 101 of the Local Government Act 1972 and Section 75 of
the National Health Service Act 2006, certain local authorities and NHS
bodies are enabled to enter into integrated partnership arrangements in
relation to the exercise of certain functions of local authorities and the
NHS. Section 75 agreements aim to provide a more streamlined service
and to pool resources, if such arrangements are likely to lead to an
improvement in the way their functions are exercised. It is pursuant to
these powers that the Section 75/101 Agreement detailed in this Report is
proposed.

A section 75 agreement for the provision of services to a local authority by
a health authority and vice versa are excluded from the Public Contracts
Regulations by virtue of Regulation 11 as such an agreement is made on
the basis of an exclusive right pursuant to a law, regulation or published
administrative provision which is compatible with the Treaty on the
Functioning of the European Union. The same principle applies to a
section 101 agreement between local authorities. As such, the London
Borough of Redbridge are not under an obligation to conduct a competitive
process before awarding the section 75/101 agreement.

10.Human Resources implications and risks:

10.1.

There are no direct HR implications or risks, to the council or its workforce
that can be identified from the recommendations made in this report.

Page 33



Cabinet, 11" April 2018

11.Equalities implications and risks:

11.1. An Equalities Assessment is not required for the ICES agreement as there
are not anticipated to be any negative impacts arising from this proposal to
current and future users of this service. The current contract for service
delivery will remain in place, the Section 75 just allows for the integration
across partners to reduce the fragmentation and delays in the system.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

None

Page 34



Appendix 1

A

Item

U1 A WNR

~N

10
11
12
13
14

15

16
17
18
19

Page 35

B C D E
Expenditure Outturn Budget Budget
2016/17 2017/18 2018/19
fm fm fm
Equipment / Products 0.512 0.522 0.533
Delivery, Installation & Collection 0.108 0.110 0.112
Inspection, Servicing & Repair 0.084 0.086 0.087
Total Gross Cost 0.704 0.718 0.732
Credit on Collected Re-Used Items (0.188)  (0.192) (0.196)
Net Cost 0.516 0.526 0.536
Projected Saving under BHR ICES - (Based on 2016/17 Activity)
Switch to Alternative Better Value Products (0.053) (0.054) (0.055)
Reduce No. of Orders Issued From 1.1 to 1 per User pa (0.010) (0.010) (0.010)
Increase Collection & Re-use (0.014) (0.014) (0.015)
Gross Saving (0.077)  (0.078) (0.080)
LBR Management Fee 0.011 0.011 0.011
Net Saving (0.066) (0.067)  (0.069)
Projected Net Cost after Saving 0.449 0.458 0.468
Average
Service Delivery - Activity per
User
No of Users 4,692
No of Orders 5,180 1.1
No. of Items of Equipment 5,763 1.2
Average Cost per User (Exc PPM & Minor Adaptations) £132.06



This page is intentionally left blank



_ Agenda Item 7
%¢ Havering

it L ONDON BOROUGH

CABINET
11 APRIL 2018

Subject Heading: Employment and Skills Plan

Cabinet Member: Cllr. Osman Dervish — Lead Member for

Environment and Community Safety

SLT Lead: Jane West — Chief Operating Officer

Report Author and contact details: Deborah Moonasar — Skills and Business

Engagement Manager
Tel: 01708 432567

Email:
deborah.moonasar@havering.gov.uk

Policy context: The Connections theme of the Corporate
Plan contains a priority around facilitating
access to jobs and opportunities. It
commits that the Council will ensure that
residents are able to access employment
and training opportunities locally and that
we will ensure that the borough maximises
employment, high quality skills and career
opportunities. There is a specific action to
start a new Employment and Skills Plan
which will help residents into work and
support businesses with a better skills and
employment offer.

The Opportunities theme of the Corporate
Plan contains a priority relating to high
quality skills and careers and commits the
Council to working with businesses to
secure high quality skills and careers
through the investment of the new
Apprenticeship Levy. There is a specific
action to develop better approaches to
support the development of high level
skills and progression.

In addition, the Employment and Skills
Plan will play a key role in supporting
implementation of the Council’'s wider
regeneration strategies.

Page 37


mailto:deborah.moonasar@havering.gov.uk

Cabinet, 11 April 2018

Financial summary: There are minimal financial implications

(ESF) grant and Section 106 allocations.

Is this a Key Decision? ves

When should this matter be reviewed? By January 2021

Reviewing OSC: Towns and Communities

The subject matter of this report deals with the following Council
Objectives

Communities making Havering [
Places making Havering i
Opportunities making Havering (X]
Connections making Havering (X]

SUMMARY

In February 2018, the Cabinet approved a period of stakeholder consultation on
the Council’s draft Employment and Skills Plan 2018 -2021. This report sets out
the findings of the consultation and seeks Cabinet’s approval of the Plan and its
associated implementation plan.

RECOMMENDATION

That the Cabinet approves the draft Employment and Skills Plan (attached at
Appendix 1) and the associated Implementation Plan (attached at Appendix 3).

Page 38

resulting from approving the Plan for
consultation. Implementation of the Plan
is expected to cost £1.1m over three
years. Funding has been identified from a
combination of Council General Fund and
HRA budgets, European Social Fund



Cabinet, 11 April 2018

REPORT DETAIL

1. Background

1.1 Whilst Havering has employment rates which are higher than in neighbouring
boroughs, this masks a local job market based predominantly on low skill
jobs and low wage levels, and pockets of long term unemployment and
economic inactivity, leading to under-employment, poor career progression
and in-work poverty. The details of this are set out in the borough’s “data
story” at Appendix 2.

1.2 At the same time, the local economy and job market are changing and it is
important both that residents are equipped with the right skills to meet
current demand and adapt to future employment trends, and that businesses
are able to secure a local labour force which meets their requirements. This
requires a measured approach that will raise the ambition of residents and
instil in businesses the confidence to work in partnership with the Council
and providers to shape the local employment and skills landscape.

1.3In addition, the Department for Work and Pensions’ (DWP’s) mainstream
programmes, such as the Work Programme, have historically been
commissioned nationally with limited, if any, input from local authorities in
terms of preferred providers. The Work and Health Programme is now being
commissioned to replace the Work Programme and Work Choice. The Local
London Work and Health Programme (LLWHP) is designed to support the
long term unemployed and those with health or disability challenges to
access the labour market. This work is being led by the London Borough of
Redbridge on behalf of Local London and is estimated to be worth £47m
over five years. It will target 19,000 people who are in receipt of Job
Seeker’s Allowance plus the Employment Support Allowance Work Related
Activity Group (WRAG). Havering has fewer residents classified as WRAG
than other boroughs and so, because of the lack of scale and returns from a
provider perspective, there is a risk that Havering could miss out on its fair
share again if it does not take a planned approach to engaging with this. Itis
therefore also important that the borough makes appropriate provision for
undertaking this work locally as well as seeking to secure its fair share from
other funding sources.

Page 39



Cabinet, 11 April 2018

1.4The Council already has a number of plans and strategies in place to prevent
and / or mitigate the effects of poverty, deprivation and financial
exclusion. The Employment and Skills Plan should therefore be read
alongside, but does not replace, related documents such as the Demand
Management Strategy, Housing Strategy, Customer Experience Strategy,
Local Plan, Private Sector Landlord Licensing Scheme and Financial
Inclusion Strategy.

1.5However, the Council has not hitherto had a specific strategy to address the
identified issues relating to unemployment, under-employment, and the
current incongruence between the current and future skill needs of local
employers and the skills of local residents. Therefore the Council
commissioned the Rocket Science consultancy (“the consultants”) to develop
an Employment and Skills Plan (“the Plan”) for the Council (attached at
Appendix 1). This report summarises the key findings and
recommendations, as well as the feedback received from the local business
community and other stakeholders.

1.6 The proposed Employment and Skills Plan considers the challenges facing
the Council and the borough from two perspectives:

Demand management: Developing a responsive service based on an
assessment of:

o the scale of demand from residents on Council services;

o the level and type of activity that is currently carried out across
Council departments to help residents to develop skills and to access
and sustain employment;

o the effectiveness of this activity; and

o how such activity is funded and for how long.

Driving prosperity: Developing strategies for supporting the needs of
businesses through workforce development that will drive economic growth
in the borough.

1.7The consultants found that service delivery is currently fragmented across
the Council. The Employment and Skills Team currently has an
establishment of 2 Full Time Equivalents but has no core budget other than
to cover the costs of these staff. Meanwhile, other services also deliver a
variety of employment and skills related support. This fragmented approach
does not maximise the potential leverage of resources to secure greatest
benefit for the borough. In addition, the borough does not currently monitor
the impact of its various employment and skills interventions in a way which

Page 40



Cabinet, 11 April 2018

can inform future policy development and investment decisions or underpin
bids for new funding.

1.8As a result, the Plan is based on three core principles which should inform
future policy development:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Working towards the Havering Vision: Recommendations and
actions should have a clear relationship to, and contribute towards,
the achievement of the Havering vision.

Embedding a Havering way of working: Recommendations and
actions should rely on greater cross-service collaboration and
develop a universal ‘Havering way of working’ that is client centred
and focuses on reducing duplication and costs.

Preparing Havering for the future: Implementation of the Plan
should build the policy and delivery infrastructure for maximising
employment and skills funding and investment into the borough
beyond 2020.

1.9 The Plan envisages these principles being implemented through the delivery
of three priority areas:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Making the most of Havering’s strengths, relationships and
assets:

* Developing the local workforce and ensuring effective recruitment of
local people at key employment sites and in established sectors
facing workforce challenges, and

» Making better use of the Council’s resources and opportunities to
secure the borough’s fair share from external funding, and using the
Council’'s relationships, contracting and procurement activity to
secure greater social value for businesses and residents.

Improving prospects and prosperity: There are groups of residents
with specific challenges and needs, particularly those stuck in long
term unemployment or low paid / temporary / low quality work, lone
parents, and young people. Tailored packages of support are
needed to secure jobs for such people so that employment can be
sustained and careers developed.

Growing our own: Building on the strengths of an entrepreneurial
Havering, the growth of micro businesses in the borough, the rise of
self-employment and the ambition to create opportunities for local
people and care leavers.

Page 41



Cabinet, 11 April 2018

1.10

1.11

The draft Plan has been developed following extensive consultation
with various services across the Council. It assesses the labour
market and current services provided by various Council departments
to support residents into work.

Since the Cabinet meeting in February 2018, the local business
community and other key stakeholders have also been consulted on
the draft Employment and Skills Plan. A number of interested bodies
have been engaged with, including:

e The Apprenticeship Provider Forum

e Havering Chamber of Commerce

e Havering College

e Havering College’s Careers Forum

e The Residential and Nursing Care Forum
e The Homecare Forum

e Havering Business Network

e Various local businesses

Consultees generally welcomed the Plan and the general consensus
was that it is of good quality and focuses on the key areas. There
was broad agreement that the Plan should seek to ensure that the
skills developed within the local workforce are aligned with current
and future employment opportunities. Other key comments received
and the Council’s responses are outlined below:

Feedback Council Response

The Employment and Skills | A number of consultation events have
Plan needs to be aligned | been undertaken jointly by the
with the Economic | Economic Development and
Development Strategy and | Employment and Skills Teams.
must link to the Social Care | Liaison between the teams will

Academy. continue to ensure that the strategies
and associated work plans
complement one another
appropriately.

A section detailing the links with the
Social Care Academy has been
included in the Employment and Skills
Plan (in section 3.2) as a direct result
of this feedback.

Page 42




Cabinet, 11 April 2018

Feedback

Council Response

The borough must be clear
about its rationale for driving
growth and in which sectors.
Particular efforts should be
made to develop the skills
needed in the engineering
and manufacturing sectors,
in order to increase the
business base in the
borough and in so doing
provide future income to the
Council through business
rates as well as increasing
the earnings potential of
local residents

The case for action is set out in
Section 3 of the Employment and
Skills Plan. Sectors critical to the
Havering economy and the delivery of
Council services, as well as other and
emerging sectors important to the
growth and future prosperity of the
borough are outlined within Priority 3.
The proposed Plan sets out a number
of actions to support these sectors

through  improved targeting of
workforce  development  support,
including apprenticeships. The Plan

recommends that the Council agrees
a workforce development strategy for
each sector and works with its
provider network to develop a
brokerage package for each.

The Council needs to tackle
the needs of SMEs within
Havering, including by
ensuring that there is
sufficient space for start-ups
and other companies to
grow in Havering. The need
to develop housing units in
the borough needs to be
balanced with the needs of
a growing commercial
economy.

The Council’'s new Local Plan will set
out policies to guide how and where
development should take place in
havering up to 2030/31. This has
been informed by a robust evidence
base including an Employment Land
Review, the Romford Development
Framework and Rainham Masterplan.
It seeks to build a strong and
prosperous economy for Havering,
including by protecting and
intensifying the most important
employment land; supporting the
Business Improvement Districts in
Rainham and Romford, and
promoting opportunities for small and
medium sized enterprises. The
proposed Employment and Skills Plan
suggests that regular monitoring and
review meetings take place between
the Planning department and
Employment and Skills team to

Page 43




Cabinet, 11 April 2018

Feedback

Council Response

ensure that commitments
progressing well.

are

In order to move residents
into higher paid jobs, the
Council needs to ensure
that opportunities exist for
such employment.

The proposed Employment and Skills
Plan sets out a new approach to
commissioning employment and skills
support which rewards job outcomes

based on their qualty and
sustainability (e.g. their status and
pay level).

Up to date local economic
and business information
needs to feed into the
employment and  skills
agenda and to be shared
with local businesses.

A detailed “Data Story” was compiled
to inform the development of the
Employment and Skills Plan, which is
attached at Appendix 2.

A baselining study has also been
commissioned to inform the emerging
Economic Development Strategy, and
will also be used to guide future
employment and skills interventions.
A range of data relating to local
businesses and the local economy
has recently been added to the Data
Intelligence  Hub, where it is
accessible to local businesses and
residents as well as internally. This
will be kept regularly updated from
hereon in.

The proposed Plan also includes
actions for services to work together
to agree data sharing protocols
internally and externally, and to
collate greater intelligence on the
local offer and to use this to work with
providers to identify gaps in training
and vocational provision and develop
new projects / pathways to address
these.

The Employment and Skills
Plan must deliver the
requirements of local
employers. The upskilling of
residents needs to benefit

The proposed Plan sets out how the

Council intends to work with
providers, schools and colleges to
enable better connections and

communications between them, as

Page 44




Cabinet, 11 April 2018

Feedback Council Response
the local economy, rather | well as between them and employers,
than encourage residents | so that young people and other

and businesses to leave the
borough for better paid jobs
or a more highly skilled
workforce.

residents are able to access and
benefit from local career
opportunities.

The Council should carry
out a granular assessment
of geographical issues in
Havering with a view to
supporting employers to
source staff from areas that
are currently hard to recruit
from due to geography and
transport links.

Plans are set out within Priority 2 of
the Employment and Skills Plan to
work with key services within and
outside of the Council to help remove
the structural barriers to employment
faced by some residents, including
transport.

The Council’'s Corporate Plan further
sets out the Council’s commitment to

providing fast and accessible
transport links.  The Council has
committed to  enhancing the

borough’s transport network to ease
congestion in the borough and also to
continuing to negotiate for improved
transport infrastructure. It has
specifically committed to working with
partners such as Transport for
London and Crossrail to start studies
to support important projects such as
a north to south link by light rail or
tram, and to redesigning gallows
Corner to improve transport links in
the borough.

Delivery of the Plan should
be supported by a strong
and consistent engagement
plan. Employers should be
consulted on their
development plans over the
medium to long term, so that
local skills match local
needs as far as possible.
SMEs, in particular, need to
be engaged on a regular

The proposed governance structure is
illustrated on page 37 of the Plan and
includes a Provider Forum and
various business groups. The Plan
recommends streamlining and
simplifying  existing  engagement
mechanisms in order to disseminate
common messages and to inform and
publicise the employment and skills
offer more effectively. It recommends
the development of a corporate

Page 45




Cabinet, 11 April 2018

Feedback

Council Response

basis on the implementation
of the Plan. Providers also
need to be kept informed
about how implementation is
progressing, in order to
inform their own strategic
plans.

employer engagement strategy which
local employers, including sector
specific groups and BIDs will be
invited to inform. Through this
mechanism, various business
networks will be kept up to date on
the implementation of the Plan and
wider employment and skills activity,
along with other stakeholders such as
education and training providers and
the voluntary and community sector.
The proposed Plan also recommends
the continued development and
implementation of a “key accounts”
approach to responding to employer
needs,

Finally, the proposed Plan sets out an
intention to engage local employers
more closely in the development of
future bids for funding.

The Plan must have clear
criteria for measuring and

reviewing success,
outcomes and priorities.
Where possible,
performance  should Dbe
measured against  any

national rates.

The high level plan set out at pages
32-35 of the Employment and Skills
Plan details the desired outcomes
along with a number of measures and
targets. These will be developed
further as part of the corporate
planning process for 2018/19.

Where possible, local performance
will be benchmarked against other
areas and national averages.

Various impact assessment tools are
available to assist in evaluating the
impact of this type of work, and the
suitability of these for Havering's
purposes will be explored as part of
the mobilisation phase.

Page 46




Cabinet, 11 April 2018

REASONS AND OPTIONS

2 Reasons for the decision:

2.1Consultation carried out as part of the development of the Plan, both
internally and externally, has identified that the borough is not currently:

Maximising the benefit from the funding it secures;

Making the best use of its collective resources to support people into
sustainable work, or

Working most effectively to support key and growing employment
sectors that are important to the borough.

2.2The Plan considers in detail the challenges the Council faces in delivering
the proposed priorities and sets out the case for a more structured approach
to service delivery based on:

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

Managing and developing employment and skills provision through a
central jobs and skills brokerage service which co-ordinates services
and offers residents a consistent response based on their assessed
needs.

A more co-ordinated approach, utilising a single, corporate Referral
Management System, which enables a coherent process of
managing and tracking individual residents’ access to services across
the various providers both within and outside the Council. This
system will also assist the Council in measuring the impact of its
interventions.

The Council acting as an interface between employers and training
providers to develop greater employer ownership of skills
development and a training offer that is responsive to local
employers’ needs.

The Council providing strong leadership in the development of
strategic and operational partnerships and the development of
funding bids in co-ordination with sub-regional and London partners
including the Local London Partnership, the Greater London Authority
(GLA), the Skills Funding Agency, and the Department for Work and
Pensions (DWP).

Page 47



Cabinet, 11 April 2018

2.3 The Plan concludes that, in order to respond effectively to these challenges,
it is necessary to strengthen the existing Employment and Skills team to

enable it to:

o Provide a central co-ordination and monitoring function;

o Develop and deliver a jobs and skills brokerage service;

o Work with training providers and employers to co-produce and
develop customised training to meet business needs, and

o Develop support packages which maximise the leverage of existing

funding, including by building on the extensive work already
underway to create jobs and apprenticeships and raise local skill
levels through the regeneration of 12 key estates in the borough, as
well as through the Council’'s negotiation of S106 agreements and its
other commissioning and procurement activity.

2.41t is envisaged that the proposed approach will:

o Prevent residents having to move from provider to provider, often
repeating the same types of training and further disengaging from the
skills and / or employment process.

o Increase the ability of the borough to attract funding from a range of
sources, as it will be better able to demonstrate the kind of
coordinated and responsive infrastructure needed to deliver
programmes and outcomes.

o Assist the Council to develop targeted interventions for specific
priority/demand groups, outside of provision that is already funded
(for example through the ESF). This will enable greater value to be
added to current skills and employment provision and can be
developed to meet the full spectrum of training needs from entry level
to the higher level skills demanded by businesses.

o Encourage providers to work collaboratively with the Council and
each other to secure the type and quality of provision that is needed
to move clients into work and support them to progress in work and
sustain well paid employment.

o Engage employers in working with training providers to develop
‘employer led” training which meets the needs of industry, supports
workforce development, enhances productivity and, crucially, is of a
guality and scope that businesses are prepared to pay for.

2.5The consultants’ Cost Benefit Analysis estimates that the Council would
receive a “return” (in either cashable savings or cost avoidance) of around
£1.83 for every £1 invested in this area of work over the life of the Plan, with
the benefits accruing predominantly to those departments working with

Page 48



Cabinet, 11 April 2018

Other

2.6

1)
2)

3)

2.7

2.8

Finan

3.1

Troubled Families, the long term unemployed, those with complex health
conditions, looked after children (LAC) and care leavers, and those not in
education, employment or training (NEET).

options considered:

As part of the development of the Employment and Skills Plan, the following
alternative options were considered:

Do nothing

Implement the remainder of the Employment and Skills Plan, but not the
Referral Management System

Implement the Referral Management System but not the wider
Employment and Skills Plan

None of these options are recommended as it is considered that, if the
Employment and Skills Plan is not delivered in its entirety (including through
the implementation of a Referral Management System), the Council will not
be able to exert the necessary influence over and involvement in the myriad
of skills and employment activities that take place within Havering and the
consequential impacts on local growth and prosperity. Interventions would
not be most effectively coordinated and will opportunities would be lost to
maximise benefits by avoiding duplication.

The Referral Management System and the wider Employment and Skills
Plan need to be delivered alongside one another, and also in tandem with
the Employer Brokerage Service to be funded through the European Social
Fund, in order to provide a credible and attractive offer to residents and
businesses supported by a tangible jobs and training infrastructure beyond
that offered by sub-regional and regional skills provision.

IMPLICATIONS AND RISKS

cial implications and risks:

There are minimal financial implications resulting from approving the Plan.
Implementation of the Plan is expected to cost £0.456m in 2018/19, £0.407m
in 2019/20 and £0.252m in 2020/21. Estimated costs and funding sources
are summarised in Table 1 below:

Page 49



Cabinet, 11 April 2018

Table 1 — Costs and funding to deliver the Plan

Costs / Funding 2018/19 | 2019/20 | 2020/21 TOTAL
£ £ £ £

Costs
Staffing 253,217 | 253,217 | 200,029 | 706,463
Tracking system 20,000 5,000 5,000 30,000
Adult education (HCFHE) 14,542 14,542 0 29,084
Supplies and services 32,000 32,000 28,154 92,154
Membership and 3,000 3,000 3,000 9,000
subscriptions
Project delivery 132,791 98,823 15,737 | 247,351
TOTAL COSTS 455,550 | 406,582 | 251,920 | 1,114,052
Funding
Core staffing budget for| 150,990 | 150,990 150,990 | 452,970
Employment and Skills team
Core non-staffing budget for 25,330 25,330 25,330 75,990
Employment and Skills team
HRA funding for Community 75,600 75,600 75,600 | 226,800
Engagement
ESF grant 57,022 57,022 0 114,044
Business Risk Reserve 77,500 77,500 0| 155,000
S106 allocations for 69,108 20,140 0 89,248
Employment and Skills
TOTAL FUNDING 455,550 | 406,582 | 251,920 1,114,052

3.2Should the Employment and Skills Plan not be approved by the Cabinet,
the majority of activities would likely continue, utilising the funding sources

identified, but

interventions are currently provided.

Page 50

in the same uncoordinated manner

in which such




Cabinet, 11 April 2018

3.3However, draw-down of some of the Section 106 funding identified is
dependent on the Council being able to demonstrate that it has the
necessary infrastructure in place to support delivery of certain employment
and skills initiatives, so failure to agree the Plan could put at risk the
Council’s ability to draw down these funds. Should the identified funding
not be reallocated as proposed, the Council may be required to return this
Section 106 funding to the developers, which would not only mean that the
benefit of these funds would be lost, but might also impact on the Council’s
ability to secure future Section 106 funding for this purpose.

3.41t is essential that the conditions of the European Social Fund (ESF) grant
are adhered to in order to ensure that the grant is not withdrawn.

3.5Post 2020/21, replacement funding for the ESF funding will be sought via
the UK Shared Prosperity Fund. In addition, continued efforts will be made
to secure ongoing benefits via Section 106 agreements and to access other
external funding as it becomes available. Officers will also seek to deliver
additional benefits through the Council’'s commissioning and procurement
of services.

It should be noted that funding from the HRA is only available if it can be
demonstrated that its use is beneficial to tenants. It is envisaged that
delivery of the Plan will ensure such benefits are realised.

Legal implications and risks:

4.1Delivery of the Plan involves applications for grants and the use of Section
106 and grant funding. Legal advice will be available in relation to these
aspects.

Human Resources implications and risks:

5.1Implementation of the Plan will require additional staff resources with 4.5
new posts being created (including two apprentice posts) and recruited to
along with a vacant post already established. Posts that are externally
funded will be fixed term, with contracts aligned with the duration of funding
agreements. Job descriptions have been developed and will require
evaluation by the HR service under the Council's GLPC job evaluation
scheme.

5.2ESF funding agreements require adjustments to be made to all relevant job
descriptions to reflect that they are associated with delivery of ESF funded

Page 51



Cabinet, 11 April 2018

projects, and job descriptions have been accompanied by a note to this
effect.

5.3Any other HR implications and risks should be minimal and any that may
arise will be managed in accordance with advice from the HR service.

ICT implications and risks:

6.1 Advice will be required from the ICT department on the specification of the
Referral Management System and its compatibility with the Council’s other IT
systems.

6.2 Advice and guidance will also be sought from the Information Governance
team within the IT department with regard to data management, protection
and security.

Equalities implications and risks:

7.1The Employment and Skills Plan has been developed to support the
economic well-being and social inclusion of residents of the borough, with a
particular focus on those who are at the margins of economic wellbeing.

7.2The Public Sector Equality Duty (“PSED”) set out within section 149 of the
Equality Act 2010 requires the Council to have due regard to (i) the need to
eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment, victimisation and other
conduct that is prohibited by or under the Equality Act 2010; (ii) the need to
advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it, and (iii) the need to
foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic
and those who do not. The Council is committed to improving quality of life
for all, and supports wider social and economic growth through social and
physical regeneration which includes employment and skills activity.

7.3 A detailed Equalities Impact Assessment has been undertaken of the
Employment and Skills Plan, which is attached at Appendix 4. The
Assessment takes into account the accessibility of services and support by
all residents of the borough and sets out how people who share “protected
characteristics” will be supported to access this and to provide feedback on
their experience to better represent their needs.

Page 52



Cabinet, 11 April 2018

BACKGROUND PAPERS

None

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



Havering Employment and Skills Plan 2018 - 2021

ROCKET
SCIENCE Page 55




Havering Employment and Skills Plan 2018 -2021

Contents

1. Executive Summary 2

2. Introduction to the Plan 5

3. Making the case for action 9

4. The Employment and Skills Plan 27
5. The Referral Management System 42

6. Conclusion 53

Caroline Masundire
Associate Director

Rocket Science UK Ltd Rocket Science and the galaxy

70 Cowcross Street, London EC1M 6E) Page 56 logo are registered trademarks
www.rocketsciencelab.co.uk of Rocket Science UK Ltd



This document is the culmination of research, consultation and analysis conducted by
Rocket Science to support the development of an Employment and Skills Plan for
Havering for 2018 to 2021.

Although relatively understated, the employment and skills activity already taking place
in the council has the potential to be transformative, particularly for residents where
investment and support to date has been minimal or less effective than it might have
been.

The challenge for Havering is making its case for investment for government funding.
This is a borough that has relative wealth and is without the same scale of disadvantage
(in terms of numbers of people affected) as other areas within its devolved sub-region.
There are many unknowns about the future, but we are beginning to see the impact of
the London housing market and low value employment sectors in the borough (like
others) on the cost of living and homelessness.

Combined, and if left unaddressed, these factors will inevitably create greater
polarisation between wealth and disadvantage, and leave those already stuck in long
term unemployment or poor quality jobs further behind. Ultimately it will also lead to
increased demand on council services and budgets in the short and longer term.

Our assessment of the case for action has focused on understanding the impact
unemployment, poor quality jobs and low skills have on the costs of council services.
We have also determined where the council is missing out on employment and skills
investment by not having a strategic plan which is resulting in opportunities lost for the
council, businesses and its residents.

We have identified that the council is NOT: We have recommended:

Maximising the funding it secures and missing Improved processes for engaging and

out on over £2 million of external funding supporting providers to work in the
through ESF. The potential to continue to miss borough to help residents access training
out on this funding over the next two years is and employment.

very high if action is not taken. Developing programmes that better target

and support residents at risk of placing
high demand on council services.

Making the best use of its resources to support Establishment of a Referral Management
people into work and ensure this is sustainable. System to help coordinate employment
This is likely to impact on housing costs the interventions for clients accessing key
most. council services.

Continued support to help people manage
the transition to employment and ensure
they sustain employment

Page 57



We have identified that the council is NOT: We have recommended:

Working effectively to support key and growth Using secured funding to help make

employment sectors important to the borough savings in social care through workforce
development.
Developing responsive and integrated
sector focused interventions.

Our findings have shown that there is real potential for the council to use this plan to act
on several fronts. Recognising that this is the first Employment and Skills Plan the Council
has developed, we have structured it around three principles to support interventions,
with clear ambitions for change and for the future.

First Principle - Working towards the Havering Vision

Recommendations and actions have a clear relationship to, and contribute
towards, the achievement of the Havering vision (see section 2.2).

Second Principle - Embedding a Havering way of working

Recommendations and actions rely on greater cross-service collaboration and
developing a universal ‘Havering way of working’ that is client centred and
focuses on reducing duplication and costs.

Third Principle - Preparing Havering for the future

Implementation of the Plan should build the policy and delivery infrastructure
for maximising employment and skills funding and investment into the borough
beyond 2020.

How much will this cost?

We have estimated that the council spends approximately £400,000 per year to support
employment and skills activity. Yetin 2016/17 it has generated over £1.5 million alone
through the current Employment and Skills team and Adult College. It also has many
opportunities to support the agenda through funding vehicles at its disposal such as the
Apprenticeship Levy and social value provisions within procurement and commissioning.
Employment and skills activity generates income for the council.

Based on the cost benefit analysis conducted, the proposed Referral Management
System could also generate a return for the Council of £2.71 for every pound spent by
year 3. Potentially this could lead to £4.9 million in savings and cost avoidance over 10
years, although we expect returns to be greater.

But this is not just about a cost or return for the Council. Proposed interventions will
provide a return for local businesses and for the Havering residents that need it and will
benefit the most.

We are confident that the Employment and Skills Plan 2018 -2021 provides a blueprint
for the Council to:

Page 58



Havering Employment and Skills Plan 2018 -2021

o take concerted action, with clear returns in savings and cost avoidance to
support demand management, and

e apractical way forward to build capacity within the organisation to prepare the
ground for, and be more resilient to, changes in policy and funding for
employment and skills beyond 2020.

Rocket Science UK Ltd 2017 Page 4



2.1 Background

In September 2016, the Economic Development service commissioned Rocket Science to
undertake research and consultation into the development of an Employment and Skills
Plan and a business case for establishing an employer brokerage service. This work has
built on an assessment of employment and skills in the borough conducted in July 2014.
Our research and consultation has been focused on understanding the need and
potential opportunities for Council-led intervention.

It is important to acknowledge that this is the first time a strategic plan specifically
targeted at employment and skills interventions has been developed for Havering. It is
also important to note the forthcoming changes to funding, particularly the European
Social Fund (ESF), and overall uncertainty regarding replacement funding. There is also
uncertainty about the impact of devolution of the Adult Education Budget taking place in
2019/2020.

Employment and Skills has, until April 2017, been positioned within the Economic
Development service. It has been a relatively modest function to date with other
departments such as Housing having some employment and skills functions as their
remits have grown. This has led to a lack of coordination across the Council although the
majority of funding for employment and skills activity is managed through Economic
Development. This funding has been opportunity-led (i.e. responding to available
funding and initiatives) and linked to securing external funding and Section 106
agreements. However, during the course of this research, there have been internal
changes and departmental restructures and the Employment and Skills team has moved
into the Policy, Performance and Community service. The move represents a real
opportunity to embed employment and skills considerations across Council policy
making and commissioning, specifically in helping to achieve the Havering Vision.

This Employment and Skills Plan sets out recommendations and a business case for
developing a Referral Management Service. This is in addition to the ESF funded
employer brokerage service which is due to be delivered by the Employment and Skills
team.

2.2 Havering’s vision for employment and skills

The development of a new Employment and Skills Plan to help residents into work and support
businesses with a better skills and employment offer was a specific commitment in the Council’s
Corporate Plan for 2017/18.

Within its Corporate Plan, the Council committed to providing access to jobs and opportunities for

its residents. It has undertaken to ensure that residents are able to access employment and
training opportunities locally, including by matching employment opportunities to skill needs by

Page 60



developing a pilot employer brokerage service using European funding. Through investment in
business development and improving the transport network, the Council has committed further to
maximising employment, high quality skills and career opportunities.

The Council will continue to set an example for businesses by developing the skills of its
workforce through traineeships, apprenticeships and graduate programmes, as well as
by providing and coordinating training and upskilling opportunities for local residents
through European Social Funding (ESF) projects such as “Routes to Employment”. The
Council will also work with businesses to secure high quality skills and careers through
the investment of the new Apprenticeship Levy, which will work towards achieving the
government’s target of apprentices representing 2.3% of the workforce by 2020. The
Council will particularly consider how it can provide further opportunities for looked
after children; people who are not in education, training or employment (NEET); the long
term unemployed and disabled people in the borough. It has made a specific
commitment to ensure that young people leaving care are provided with a carefully
planned programme of support for their transition into adulthood, making sure they
have life skills and giving them the very best chances in education and employment.

The Council will utilise its relationships with businesses to establish sector specific
initiatives leading to local employment and to develop better approaches to support the
development of high level skills and progression.

2.3 Principles and priorities for the Employment and Skills
Plan

Reflecting on the opportunities for the borough, tight financial constraints and the need
to focus efforts where the Council has the greatest control, we have established guiding
principles to support both the buy in and implementation of the Plan.

First Principle Working towards the Havering Vision. Recommendations and
actions have a clear relationship to, and contribute towards, the
achievement of the Havering vision.

Second Principle Embedding a Havering way of working. Recommendations and
actions rely on greater cross-service collaboration and
developing a universal ‘Havering way of working’ that is client
centred and focuses on reducing duplication and costs.

Third Principle Preparing Havering for the future. Implementation of the Plan
should build the policy and delivery infrastructure for maximising
employment and skills funding and investment into the borough
beyond 2020.

Supporting these principles are three priorities for taking forward employment and skills

work in the Council for the benefit of the borough. These were identified early in our
consultation and have resonated well with stakeholders.

Page 61



Priority one Making the most of Havering’s strengths, relationships and
assets. This has two strands. The first is centred around building
Havering’s economy by developing the local workforce and
ensuring effective recruitment of local people at key
employment sites (e.g. Rainham) and in established sectors
facing workforce challenges (Construction, Health and Social
Care and Retail). The second is about making better use of the
council’s resources and opportunities to get the borough’s fair
share from external funding (e.g. from EU and any replacement
programmes, City Hall, the Apprenticeship Levy, Section 106
agreements and government investment) and using the Council’s
relationships and contracting activity to secure greater social
value for businesses and residents.

Priority two Improving prospects and prosperity. Whilst Havering has a
relatively high employment rate, there are groups of residents
with specific challenges and needs, particularly those stuck in
long term unemployment or low paid/temporary /low quality
work, lone parents and young people. Tailored packages of
support are needed to secure jobs for these people so that
employment can be sustained and careers developed.

Priority three Growing our own. This plays very well to the strengths of an
entrepreneurial Havering, given the growth of micro businesses
in the borough, self-employment and the ambition to create
opportunities for local people and care leavers.

2.3 Approach to the development of the plan

Applying these principles and focusing our approach on the identified priorities, this plan
sets out our understanding of the challenges and barriers facing Havering as well as the
opportunities that the borough is facing, so that recommendations for the plan are both
realistic and achievable. This has involved:

Consultation with the Leader, council Members and the Senior Leadership Team
as well as Heads of Services and officer leads to determine the ambitions,
expectations and potential of employment and skills interventions. This is
summarised in Chapter 3.

A review of employment and skills data to help identify potential targets for
support and to determine priorities for action. This has been summarised into a
short Data Story in Appendix 1 and illustrated in Chapter 3.

An assessment of the governance, commissioning and contracting arrangements
that Havering Council sits within, to determine the role for the Council and the
potential scale of external employment and skills investment into the borough.
This is set out in Chapter 3.

Page 62



Development of an overarching ambition for the plan including governance and
management arrangements, set out in Chapter 4

Research into, and an assessment of, options for different delivery models to
ensure that people are supported into and sustained in quality employment in
the borough. The options assessment that informed a subsequent consultation
workshop has been set out in Appendix 3.

A consultation workshop with service leads and members of the Senior
Leadership Team to explore options and recommend a preferred option. This has
led to the design of the preferred option, a Referral Management System, which
can integrate with the forthcoming ESF programme, as set out in Chapter 5.

An assessment of the cost benefits of the Referral Management System using the
Rocket Science Cost Benefits Analysis (CBA) Tool. The tool and methodology
guidance notes are set out in Appendix 4 and a summary of the anticipated
benefits and returns highlighted in Chapter 5. The Rocket Science CBA tool has
been designed to assess the potential savings / cost avoidance the Council could
achieve based on returns derived from reducing poverty through employment.

We would like to extend our thanks to staff from the Employment and Skills team for
their support of this work and help accessing insight and information from the Council.
We would also like to thank all those who have supported the research for their help and
insight.

Page 63



3.1 Summary of the challenges

On first impressions Havering, compared to other outer London boroughs, fares
relatively well in terms of employment. It has enjoyed a higher than average
employment rate, is relatively well connected and is considered a desirable place to live.

However, like many other boroughs, this picture masks some more challenging issues
such as low attainment rates for young people, low numbers of residents with higher
level qualifications, long term unemployment, the emerging impact of welfare reform on
families and the effect of the London housing market, all of which have the potential to
impact on current and future Council spending. Havering, like other councils, is focused
on making efficiency savings and determining the greatest returns it can bring by better
managing demand on its services.

Our assessment of the case for strategic action has focused on understanding the impact
unemployment, poor quality jobs and low skills have on the costs of council services.
We have also determined where the council is missing out on employment and skills
investment by not having a strategic plan which is currently resulting in opportunities
lost for the council and its residents.

Developing a case for action around employment and skills is complicated. A plan purely
focused on reducing costs and managing service demand through employment and skills
interventions is very different to a plan that is focused on driving economic growth
through workforce development. Our findings have concluded that the Plan will need to
consider interventions to:

prevent current and future costs of people either in or at risk of long term
employment and impacted by welfare reforms by reducing barriers to
employment and thereby helping to prevent homelessness and other negative
consequences, and

reduce the costs of services needed to meet statutory requirements through

workforce development, particularly in health and social care.

Whilst these interventions will contribute to the demand management agenda, it is
important also to acknowledge the need to consider what might be needed to support
local economic resilience and growth and prevent service demand into the future.

Page 64



Havering Employment and Skills Plan 2018 -2021

Greater local economic return from productivity, growth and

. Greater savings from reduced demand
retention =

Low need but sophisticated higher costsupport | High investment/Complex needs

* Sector based approaches and links to London Paossible higher return on reduced demand but
Local growth priorities higher risk and unprowven
* Coordinated investment and support packages Clients likely to be already known to council but
for employer/employves to increase skills and pay working with different teams/workers
Higher level skills, degrese lawel Further away from the labour market and never
likely to work

High
Win-wins/manageable needs Low investment/Complex needs
« Better coordination of services/data/suppert to = Passible higher returm on reduced demand
intervens earlier and package support betier = Mare likely to have worked at some point/have

+ Targeted job search, wark interviews and tailorad qualifications

inte wark and inwork support for those closer to |+ Complexity/oosts of employment will make

the labour market sustained employment difficult sowill need case
+ Support lecal recrultment gaps In core sectors ianagement

such a5 Health and Soclal Care

Clients already krsown to council improved
coordination of servicesidata internally to
facilitate access to malnstream government

W Low

Greater return for local employers Muaost challenging and least interesting to local employers

Figure 1 Understanding how employment and skills supports demand management and economic growth

This diagram attempts to summarise the differences between demand management and what
employers want and a local economy needs. As it shows, the higher the cost and complexity of
issues, the less attractive a person will be to an employer. It also shows that there needs to be
different approaches to address different needs. In this respect, developing a case for action has

several dimensions.

To set the context for this recommendation, the following section unpacks the challenges around:

o Costs - both in terms of prevention and reduction and current Council
investment

e Council influence — in terms of Local London, ESF and government commissioning

o Targets —who the Council should be supporting as part of the plan. The Data
Story in Appendix 1 sets out in more detail the key issues, numbers affected and
the potential impact.

Rocket Science UK Ltd 2017 Page 10



3.2 Understanding the demand management challenge

Although the borough has relatively high employment (currently at 77%), it does have
pockets of need for specific groups of residents that are long term unemployed, not
working or caught in low paid/unsustainable employment.

Many of these residents are likely to be presenting to council services and bringing
associated costs with them, some of which could be mitigated by helping them secure
sustainable employment. This is particularly the case for those impacted by the benefit
cap which is affecting 469 households. Most of these households (some 69%) need to
find up to £100 per week (and others need to find more) to address an income shortfall
which equates to working around 16 hours a week each year on the National Minimum
Wagel.

Welfare reforms introduced in April 2017 are also impacting on households with more
than two children. Coupled with the benefit cap, these households are at risk of
increased indebtedness and potential homelessness through not being able to afford
rent or mortgage payments. Findings from our consultation with Housing showed that
many families in emergency accommodation had been made homeless from the private
rented sector because of welfare reform. Our analysis of the data has also shown that
welfare reform is primarily affecting lone parents that have more than two children.

Health and social care

Demand on health and social care services is increasing and costs are rising, yet the
workforce is aging. Market conditions in the sector make it more attractive for
individuals to work in the private sector, at rates well above those the Council can afford.
This is creating a shortage of care workers in the borough, whilst the availability of jobs
in the sector is increasing. The Council is exploring new ways of funding support which
relies less on expensive agency staff and is focused on developing the Personal Assistant
market. This is where individuals are self-employed and provide care to people that is
brokered directly by social services at a significantly reduced cost. Although such
workers are self-employed, the Living Wage Foundation has established that these
workers should be considered eligible for the London Living Wage of £9.75° per hour.

Page 66


http://www.livingwage.org.uk/what-is-the-living-wage

Comparing this to the Homecare rate of £14.94 per hour?, the Council could save over
£5.00 per hour which equates to a reduction of about a third of the current hourly rate.

However, there are structural challenges facing the adult care sector around the quality
of jobs and level of pay. Based on current information, the borough needs to recruit at
least 400 Personal Assistants to meet projected demand and whilst self- employment can
be an attractive option it is not without risk as work and hours are not guaranteed. In
one of our interviews it was felt that costs to the Council could be prevented by having a
programme targeted at people affected by the benefit cap.

The Council has also launched a Social Care Academy across Adults' and Children's Social
Care which will offer clear responsive pathways for development for staff, managers and
partners. The Social Care Academy comprises six faculties: Social Workers in Training,
Social Workers and Advanced Practitioners, Leadership and Management, Alternative
Social Care Pathways, Audit and Evaluation, and Providers. The Council’'s Workforce
Development Strategy is being reviewed in line with this approach and the impact of the
Social Care Academy will be continue to monitored, particularly as the Council moves
towards providing more integrated services, both internally and with its partners.

On one hand, it makes sense to invest efforts to supporting people into the sector,
particularly where this offers flexibility around personal care arrangements. On the other
however, this may not generate the job security or financial return to meet the income
shortfalls faced by households affected by Universal Credit. Latest workforce information
provided by Skills for Care in October 2016 shows that, compared to London as a whole,
Havering has:

the highest turnover of direct carers at over 37% - 14% higher than London
average

the lowest pay across all levels — from professionals through to care workers

higher numbers of workers on zero hours contracts (5% higher than the London
average)

lower numbers of the workforce with a relevant qualification (at 37%, 17% less
than the London average).

This example illustrates the complexities of attempting to marry up demand
management with workforce development. Therefore, this Plan needs to consider what
needs to be done to address these workforce challenges in addition to reducing service
costs.

Page 67


https://www3.havering.gov.uk/Documents/Adults-and-older-people/Adult-care-costs/Non-residential-Care-Charging-Policy.pdf

Childcare

Another example that illustrates the interdependencies and complexities of demand
management and workforce development is within Early Years. There are 1,860 one
parent families in the borough and one parent families make up 80% of households that
are affected by Universal Credit*. They will need to work to ensure they do not fall into
arrears, face eviction and end up as homeless and presenting themselves back to the
Council for support. Without appropriate and accessible childcare, employment will be
impossible to secure for households that do not have access to other informal care
arrangements such as lone parents and those without extended families.

In some parts of the borough, particularly where there are higher numbers of
unemployed lone parents (e.g. Harold Hill), there is a projected deficit of Early Education
Entitlement places to 2020. Although the borough has sufficient childcare overall, this is
in places that — for some families - would be too difficult to get to and manage with other
caring and employment responsibilities, and without a car. For example, Hacton Ward
has an over-supply of places nearly equivalent to the under-supply projected in Harold
Hill. However it is important to note that many parents do not take up childcare near
where they live, so planning for places is complicated when factoring in personal choice.

Our consultation discussions also considered opportunities for working with lone parents
and adults in households in areas where there is a place deficit to train them into
childminding. This type of employment could better fit their lifestyle and family caring
needs. This would have a double positive impact for the Council, firstly by increasing the
number of early years places and secondly by reducing demand arising from welfare
reform. On the face of it, this would seem a sensible solution. However, childminding is
self-employment and financial sustainability is reliant on the following factors:

The age and numbers of children a childminder is registered to look after,
considering the numbers and ages of their own children and the suitability of
their premises to provide a service in the first place. If households have high
numbers of children, registration and numbers of places the childminder can
offer will be limited, impacting on the income they could achieve.

The ability to optimise income from full time places. This relies on attracting
parents that have reliable and sustainable employment. Providing childcare for
people on short term/zero hour contracts is unsustainable for the childminder,
which is why part-time or more flexible childcare can be difficult to offer. This
also impacts on the parent using the service who would be required to pay for a
place regardless of whether they work or not.

Page 68



The council is keen to increase the number of childminders and improve the quality of
provision, so this is clearly a workforce development issue. But unless childcare is
affordable and accessible for families impacted by welfare reform, reducing demand and
the costs of services will be far more difficult.

Our recommendation is that, to be effective, the Plan needs to deliver employment and
skills interventions from both the demand management and workforce development
perspective. This works towards achieving Priorities 1, 2 and 3.

3.3 Understanding current Council investment

Staff and resources

We estimate that the council currently invests around £400,000 per annum in
employment and related skills activity in some form or another. Some of this is linked
directly to the Employment and Skills team’s salaries and some is based on other
activities to help move people into work. Most of the Council’s current investment in
activity is linked to Information, Advice and Guidance (IAG) and in some cases
management support, delivered internally and provided by different service areas in
order to help:

reduce barriers to employment - such as childcare information provided by
the Family Information Services;

move people into employment focusing on early intervention — e.g. within
the Leaving Care service, or

prevent homelessness and rent / mortgage arrears.

Our findings show that, in most cases, IAG relies on referring clients into other services
and provision either to access training, support and/or a job. These services are often
delivered outside of the Council and providers are chosen based on the personal
knowledge of advisors or from advisors sourcing contacts independently. There is no
single source of information that captures provider information (i.e. what is provided,
where and by / to who, and what outcomes have been achieved), so tracking the impact
and measuring the quality of support in achieving sustained employment is very difficult
and, in many cases, non-existent.

Services are duplicating their efforts, particularly around employer engagement, and are
operating different case management and action planning approaches which results in
the potential for residents to disengage from support, especially when they transition
between services. The Troubled Families, Leaving Care, Housing and Housing Benefit
teams are applying different approaches to their client assessment and case work. In
some cases, teams are also likely to be working with the same clients.

Page 69




Havering Employment and Skills Plan 2018 -2021

Our assessment of this investment is that it is not joined up or coordinated and
outcomes are not tracked to ensure that the investment (internal and external) the
Council currently makes is leading to potential savings.

As part of the development of the Employment and Skills Plan, we have produced a cost
/ benefit analysis for a Referral Management System (see Chapter 5). When assessing
the costs and benefits of employment interventions, we need to look at returns that are
based on sustained employment. Although the Government generally measures
sustainment in employment as 26 weeks in employment, we suggest that sustainment
measures need to be longer — at least 12 months. This is to be reasonably confident that
potential savings or cost avoidance for the Council are both realistic and achievable.
However, unless sustainment is tracked effectively, it is hard to determine whether any
savings or returns could be or are being achieved.

Apprenticeship Levy

It is important to note the potential of the Apprenticeship Levy. Although only just
implemented, Havering Council must have 2.3% of its workforce working towards an
apprenticeship, the funding for which comes from its Levy contribution of 0.5% of the
PAYE bill.

The Havering Levy is being led by the OneSource HR service and plans are at an early
stage. Councils are using the funding in different ways to address both workforce
development needs (to support pay and career progression) and to support local
employment, particularly for young people.

Our discussions with Members highlighted the ambition to create an employment and
skills pathway for looked after children using the returns from the Levy to develop a
specific programme of support, work experience and learning. We have since learnt that
OneSource has developed a project with the Leaving Care team which is in its early
stages. As part of its corporate parenting responsibility and in respect of Ofsted’s
recommendations around bolstering support for transition into adulthood, we see this as
being a real opportunity to provide much needed support for care leavers. Our
assessment of the data showed that a high proportion of care leavers are Not in
Education, Employment or Training (NEET).

Rocket Science UK Ltd 2017 Page 15



Havering Employment and Skills Plan 2018 -2021

What does the Council secure through external funding?

The Employment and Skills team recently delivered a contract from the Flexible Support
Fund to deliver advice and support to households impacted by welfare reform up to
December 2017. The team has also been given an indication from London Councils that
it can access £114,000 of ESF funding to March 2020. The team has also generated
income (of £244,248 to be spent over the next two years) through Section 106 to work
with Segro and match funding from Harold Hill Ambitions and Gooshays developments.

Havering Adult College (which is part of Havering Council, and all its staff are LBH
employees) is wholly funded through the Skills Funding Agency. The Adult College
secured £1,555,940 funding in 2016/17. The college provides a range of vocational and
employment related training as well as offering employability courses to support local
residents through its partnership with Job Centre Plus.

The Public Health Grant provides £700,000 funding to deliver the Council’s statutory duty
to support careers information, advice and guidance and the tracking of young people in
the borough into education, employment and training which is currently contracted to
Prospects. In addition, the Troubled Families team can claim funding through two
employment and skills related outcomes and has two advisors provided by DWP to
provide employment advice to families.

Overall this paints a relatively healthy picture of the investment into employment and
skills related activity, although this is not as coordinated as it could be, nor is it
guaranteed beyond the lifetime of the funding period.

Devolution of the Adult Education Budget to the Mayor of London could be quite risky to
the borough and the Adult College when this comes into effect by 2020. Although
uncertain, decisions on that investment would be made at the London level and could
impact on Havering’s share depending on the mayoral priorities at the time and the
extent to which this is further devolved to Local London. In addition, there are other
funded programmes through various sources that the Council could access directly or by
working with others to secure opportunities for its residents. We explore this issue in
more detail in 2.4, but we estimate that the borough could be missing out on over £2
million from its fair share of skills and employment funding to 2019.

Rocket Science UK Ltd 2017 Page 16



3.4 Devolution and the employment and skills landscape

Strategic relationships

Havering sits within a relatively complicated employment and skills landscape. It has
functional relationships as part of the Local London sub-region, but also shares business
rate responsibility with Barking & Dagenham, Thurrock and Basildon. It has relationships
with both the London LEP and South East LEP and sits within a larger East and South East
area for skills development. The council also shares HR functions with Newham and
Bexley. We suspect that whilst there is a lot of activity at a strategic level, Havering is
losing out in terms of its employment and skills voice in such a crowded space. This is
unlikely to change.

Although the borough has clear need for employment and skills investment, this is not at
the same level and intensity as other boroughs. These other boroughs are likely to have
a greater say or at least a louder voice in relation to decisions affecting employment and
skills at the sub-regional level. These decisions will impact on investment, contracting
and the employment and skills infrastructure within the borough, which we explore
further on.

The following diagram illustrates this complexity and highlights a few of the strategic and
commissioning relationships Havering operates within. Whilst it is important that the
Council maintains a watching brief over these relationships, influence can be best
achieved through the Local London CEO and Leaders Forum. This is in recognition that
the various arrangements are being led and directed by different agencies, policy
agendas and government departments and the extent to which the Council can influence
and control this bigger picture is very limited.

Rocket Science UK Ltd 2017 Page 17



¢/ obed

Havering Employment and Skills Plan 2018 -2021

- -
el
-~
P S
~
s
¥ - -
/ ~——
78T
7/
Haringey /
JCP East
] P Ea Basildon
) District
JCP East
Hackney " = Councll
I
|
i
\

ESF North and East: London sub-region for y -

Eurapean Social Fund allocations -
JCP East District: Job Centre Plus Loc:
administrative district for DWP ‘ y

Skills vision - north sub-region: sub-region of S
east and south east Londan skills vision H
Business rates pool: Local Authorities who pool Szfr;{il HR :
their business rates bansa OO il
Local London: shared vision for these boroughs

Figure 2 Strategic relationships that Havering sits within

Rocket Science UK Ltd 2017 Page 18



There is a complicated map of employment and skills investment operating in the Local
London area and there are several ways in which Havering is disadvantaged.

DWP investment

Traditionally, the DWP’s mainstream programmes, such as the Work Programme, have
been commissioned nationally with limited if any input from local authorities in terms of
preferred providers. The Work and Health Programme is being commissioned to replace
the Work Programme and Work Choice and this is led by the London Borough of
Redbridge on behalf of Local London. This is estimated to be worth £47 million over five
years and targeting 19,000 people that are on Job Seekers Allowance plus the
Employment Support Allowance Work Related Activity Group (WRAG). Havering has
750° residents classified as WRAG, which is less than other boroughs and therefore,
because of lack of scale and returns from a provider perspective, there is a risk that
Havering could miss out on its fair share again.

European Social Funding (ESF) and other investment

In addition, there is a range of co-financing arrangements for the distribution of ESF
money to London through the DWP, SFA, London Councils, GLA and (more recently) the
Big Lottery Fund through Building Better Opportunities. Some of this funding is linked to
specific needs; some of it is linked to specific borough needs, and some of it is distributed
according to a mix of need and targeting specific geography.

All of this is commissioned independently by the co-financing body through their own
arrangements and there is little if any influence by London boroughs as to which
provider/solution they want in place. This has resulted in a complicated patchwork of
provision, delivered by many different providers, with different models, payment
mechanisms and outcomes and different contract management, monitoring and impact
measurement arrangements. There is no central directory of provision covering
opportunities for all residents or a cross-Council brokerage function to help connect
residents effectively to these programmes. The following chart illustrates where existing
contracts and ESF/SFA funding are being invested and the potential investment that
Havering could be accessing for its residents. We have sourced this information from
the websites of various commissioners (and, in some cases, is not clear or available to
view). Therefore, this illustrates the potential value rather than being a 100% accurate
analysis.

Page 74



Havering Employment and Skills Plan 2018 -2021

G/ obed

Sources:

Skills Funding Agency When not knawn allocated
Learning and Work Institute :\[::mu f,::ﬂEtsFm;m East
LEFP London are estimates e proportional to
Greater London Authority number of boraughs (ten)

Figure 3 Contracting and investment relationships

Rocket Science UK Ltd 2017 Page 20



Havering Employment and Skills Plan 2018 -2021

Based on our consultation and review of the data, our assessment is that referrals for
clients supported by the Council and possibly other residents are not being made
effectively into this provision. This is resulting in Havering not getting its potential share
of the £2.6 million investment we have estimated based on available data.

As there is no control and limited influence by boroughs and, at best, indicative
allocations for how contract investment needs to be spread across local authority areas.
Providers will invest in areas where they will get greater returns from their contract.
Participation in these programmes is, in most cases, voluntary (other than for those
mandated by Government and enforced through benefit sanctions), therefore decisions
regarding where providers focus their investment will be based on two things:

e Concentrating delivery in areas where there is a greater level of need and the
provider can meet most of their contract volumes. This results in clients from
areas with lower needs having to travel to provision, which:

o incurs costs for the client and could discourage them from participating,
and

o acts as a barrier for participation for clients that have mobility or health
issues, or those that are least motivated to take up the opportunity.

o Where they have an existing footprint and therefore can build on existing
infrastructure without needing to invest in new premises and staff.

The issue for Havering is that it is likely clients will face barriers to participation in these
programmes because of location and travel. Havering has always had lower levels of
need which has resulted in a weak provider footprint. This leads to a natural
disinvestment in the local provider infrastructure and results in less choice and limited
local provision for residents. Unless the Council commissions or provides services
directly, it will have little control or influence over what is provided and how. Therefore,
to ensure Havering get its share of this investment, it needs to incentivise and support
those providers commissioned by others to deliver services where they are needed most
in the borough.

Rocket Science UK Ltd 2017 Page 21



Havering Employment and Skills Plan 2018 -2021

3.5 Council-led interventions

Supporting demand management — Principles 1 and 2,and Priorities 1, 2, 3

In order to maximise the returns that could be achieved from Council-led interventions,
there is a need to create ways to improve the targeting and support of higher cost
residents, intervening earlier and preventing disengagement from support. In the short
term, this will be almost entirely concentrated on mitigating the impact of welfare
reforms and preventing costs to the Council linked to housing and homelessness. In the
longer term, it needs to focus on preventing long term unemployment for young people,
including looked after children and care leavers.

The Council should also consider what it could achieve by working with partners to
support the 360 people (JSA claimants aged 25-64 and ESA WRAG)” who have been
unemployed for longer than six months but less than one year to prevent them from
moving in to long term unemployment and to mandated programmes. Preventing long
term unemployment and reducing the amount of time people spend claiming
unemployment benefits has several positive impacts. Our work in Dundee highlighted
the increased probability of becoming long term unemployed between six and 12
months of claiming JSA. These six months represent a window of opportunity to make
concerted efforts to support people into employment and avoid long-term
unemployment. We know gaps in employment make people less attractive to employers,
and also that long term unemployment can lead to other health and wellbeing challenges
and present costs to council services in the future.

In terms of making the most of the Work and Health Programme investment into the
borough, the Council could also consider how to support those residents it is funding
through adult social care budgets who are also within the WRAG group (750). This will
require additional mapping to identify those receiving support that are in the WRAG
group. It will also be helpful to identify those that might be impacted by the benefit cap
in the future that are living in the private rented sector.

The following table shows our recommendations for the groups of residents the Council
needs to target in the short to medium term (within the next 12 to 18 months), the

/ Refer to the Data Story in Appendix 1

Rocket Science UK Ltd 2017 Page 22



Havering Employment and Skills Plan 2018 -2021

numbers affected and the types of interventions needed to help individuals access and
remain in sustained employment:

Rocket Science UK Ltd 2017 Page 23



6/ obed

Havering Employment and Skills Plan 2018 -2021

375 lone parent families affected by
Universal Credit
1450 families within the programme

€.200 families are living in expensive
hostel accommodation and in bed
and breakfast accommodation. As
they are not affected by Universal
Credit, this is creating high and long
term housing costs to the Council

34 Care Leavers are currently under
the care of the Council and 23 are in
the NEET cohort

375 claimants in the 18-24 cohort

Housing arrears

Eviction costs

Emergency and Temporary
Accommodation

Advice and Guidance

Council Tax

Costs for additional social work
support

Cost of failure to sustain outcomes
achieved because of subsequent
homelessness

Cost of hostel accommodation
Cost of private sector rented
accommodation (average per
family)

Cost of Bed and Breakfast
accommodation per family

Casework and support to help
looked after children into
work/employment

Costs for social work support
Costs to meet legal responsibilities
as a corporate parent

Possible homelessness/housing
costs

Early help and advice to move lone
parents/at least one adult in a two-
parent workless family household into
employment as early as possible —and as
soon as the youngest child is entitled to
15 (30) hours of free childcare

Removing barriers to employment — by
developing options for and improving
access to childcare and high level
employability skills

Sourcing of flexible employment that
supports caring responsibilities or family
friendly employers

Supporting families to sustain
employment through mentoring and
ongoing support

Budgeting and money management
advice

Interim financial help to cover shortfall in
rent to prevent arrears and evictions
Targeted support and mentoring to help
the young person through transitions into
work/independence

Access to training and vocational
opportunities such as apprenticeships
Establishment of sustainable and flexible
pre-apprenticeship and pre-employment/
traineeship opportunities

Rocket Science UK Ltd 2017

Page 24



The Council is awaiting confirmation of funding over the next two years to invest in
employment activity for local people through ESF. Meanwhile, we have conducted
research into best practice in the design of effective employment interventions in order
to recommend approaches to the Council and this is explained in more detail in
Appendix 3.

The Employment and Skills team will need to recruit additional team members to take
this work forward, using the external funding. To ensure that this programme does not
displace other provision, we suggest that this is an opportunity to help local people
access entry level jobs within the Council, its suppliers and key account employers.
Specifically, we recommend that the team develops the following elements with the
funded project:

Personal Assistant and Childminding Pathway - Including promotion of and
access to a self - employment programme. This would require working with the
adult social care and early years sectors to integrate their existing training and
support into an enhanced model. Some of the ESF funding could be used to pay
for specific training, DBS checks and possibly initial insurance/set up costs, with
an agreed qualification and registration requirement so that council teams can
be confident in referring clients.

Preventing long term unemployment - Targeting of young people aged over 18
who are at risk of becoming long-term unemployed as well as supporting people
who have been on Job Seekers Allowance for more than three months but less
than 12 into jobs with the council, its suppliers and development opportunities.
These groups are likely to be much closer to the labour market and require
minimal support and intervention to help them access work. We suggest that
this is kept very flexible but would focus on providing:
o enhanced advice and guidance to support job readiness,
o work tasters (where these can be arranged internally),
o removal of barriers to work such as providing travel cards, uniforms,
specific training/certification, or childcare support and
o case management support to help manage transitions into employment
once a job is secured.

Pathways to employment from the Flexible Support Fund and the next wave of
households at risk. We recommend that this funding is also used to target those
that have been supported through the recent FSF programme which was
targeted at Universal Credit Claimants to work with those households now to
prevent risk in the future. This will mean close working with the Housing team
on a referral pathway to this programme and additional support to help move
these people into sustainable work. It may be possible to use some of the
funding to support those individuals that are in part-time work but are not
earning sufficient money or working enough hours to cover their costs. This will
require quite sophisticated case management and job matching.

Page 80



There is a case for the Council to focus greater efforts on supporting broader workforce
development, particularly to help achieve the Havering Vision. However, this requires a
strategic approach to address longer-term workforce development, which is greatly
influenced by economic, funding and structural issues outside the control of the Council.

Clearly there is a strong argument for developing strategies that support the key sectors
for Havering - Health and Social Care, Construction and Retail and others relating to the
physical development taking place in the borough. We have set out in this chapter
where we recommend the Council focuses its efforts to support these sectors.

There is a further challenge in how the employment and skills agenda fits within the
broader economic and physical regeneration of the borough. Moving the Employment
and Skills team from Economic Development into the Chief Operating Officer’s
Directorate is beneficial and makes the most sense from a coordination and internal
influencing perspective. However, this runs the risk of losing some of the potential
connections and links with the Economic Development service that are easier to make
and develop when you are in the same team. Plans will need to be put in place to ensure
that workforce development is an integral part of the inward investment and business
growth offer which could be coordinated by the Employment and Skills team. In
addition, given that the success of both Economic Development and Employment and
Skills initiatives rely on businesses (many of them the same businesses) participating and
cooperating, the coordination and management of these business relationships is key.

We recommend that the Employment and Skills team works closely with Economic
Development to ensure businesses have a responsive and effective council offer. The
proposed governance arrangements and employment and skills impact assessment
process set out in 4.3 will facilitate this work and develop further over the lifetime of the
plan.

3.6 Summary

This chapter has provided an in-depth assessment of the case for action in developing
the Employment and Skills Plan 2018 -2021.

What has become very clear is the level of complexity and complication involved in
developing interventions to support the employment and skills agenda in the borough.

Based on our assessments drawn from consultation, research and analysis, the Council
needs to focus its efforts where it will have the greatest impact on services, prosperity
and the local economy.

The following chapter sets out how the council can achieve this.

Page 81



4.1 Context and recommendations

So far, this document has set out a case for action to help frame the design of an
Employment and Skills Plan. In this section, we present

a summary of the issues, challenges and opportunities using a SWOT analysis to
help set the baseline and ambition for action

an overall plan linked to the recommendations and clear ambition about where
the Council needs to be in 2021

the governance and management structures that will need to be put in place to
ensure the effective implementation of the plan.

We have already set out some guiding principles that clearly link all the
recommendations and actions to the achievement of the Havering Vision. These should
also encourage collaboration across teams and services to work together to reduce costs
of services and prepare Havering for changes in 2020.

The challenge facing any organisation embarking on a new way of working is significant,
particularly in an environment that is constantly subject to review and change as national
policy and investment shifts. We do not underestimate this challenge. We have focused
our thinking on actions that have a clear rationale for implementation, that have been
suggested as part of our consultation with staff and Members and can be measured.

The following SWOT analysis summarises the borough’s strengths, weaknesses,
opportunities and threats from both the council and local economic and policy
perspectives.

Page 82



€8 abed

Havering Employment and Skills Plan 2018 -2021

Summary of Strengths and Weaknesses

Strengths ______________ |Weaknesses

External

Internal

Commitment across the
organisation to use employment

as a means to supporting "at risk’

residents and existing examples
of practice and caseworking
High level of knowledge about
the borough, its history,
opportunities and challenges
amongst the workforce

& small but experienced
employment and skills team with
insight and knowledge of
workforce and structural
challenges in the borough -
examples of existing initiatives
such as business support for
social care providers

Relative success in securing
external funding for economic
development activity through
Section 106, European Social
Fund and Greater London
Authority

Highly regarded Adult Skills
provision through the Adult
College

Havering Vision as road map to
harness opportunities for the
borough and residents

External

+ Traditionally high levels of
employment within the borough
and higher levels of performance
in government funded
programmes

* Highly regarded FE college, the
borough is net importer of
learners and has key assets eg
Rainham Construction Centre

+ Lower levels of young pecple Mot
in Education, Employment and
Training compared to neighbours
and higher take up of
Apprenticeships

+ High levels of entrepreneurship
and business start up with
emerging high value sector in
Science and Technology, growth
in Construction

+ Regeneration and ‘London effect’
driving new opportunities for the
borough such as Crossrail and
Housing Zones, Rainham

+ Relationships with developers
such as Segro at London
Riverside and ambition to
improve transport and
connectivity within, across and to
the borough

Internal

-

Council has not had an
employment and skills strategy
in place due in part to labour
market performance and
perceived lack of
need/reluctance to intervens
Lack of knowledge of who is
working with at risk residents
and what interventions are in
place to help residents access
sustainable employment across
SErvices

Lack of cross service working
and tracking is resulting in
duplication of assessment and
referral processes and
potentially impacting en quality
of provision and
disengagement

Combined with lack of data and
insight on costs of supporting
residents and potential savings
means impact cannot be
assessed effectively
Organisational change
impacting on staff churn and
focus on immediate
savings/demand management
impacts on longer term
planning

-

Despite employment rate,
entrenched issues for
vulnerable residents, challenges
for Looked After Children, Lone
Parents and residents at risk of
homelessness including those in
work— this results in greater
polarisation and inegquality

Low base of medium/large
employers

Issue around job guality and
focus on low pay sectors will
impact on residents’ ability to
afford to live in the borough
and potentially create high
costs for the council as a result
of homelessness and welfare
reform

Employment and skills
commissioning is outside of
council’s contrel and influence-
limited engagement and
relationships with existing
provision

Havering is a 'poor relation’ in
devolution partnership as needs
are not as high as other
boroughs

Perceived low need has driven
disinvestment in provision
infrastructure resulting in
reduced access to opportunities
Mo oversight on quality and
performance of provision for
the borough

Sporadic employer engagement
and uncoordinated

Rocket Science UK Ltd 2017

Page 28



8 abed

Havering Employment and Skills Plan 2018 -2021

Summary of Opportunities and Threats

Opportunities

Internal

+  Transfer of employment and
skills function to directorate
with wide corporate remit is an
opportunity to embed
employment and skills oversight
across the organisation to
identify oppartunities and
enable greater collaboration

*  Leading to opportunities to
maximise resources and council
investment into service
COMMISSioning, procurement
through social value building on
Section 106

«  Improved insight and
intelligence on how services are
supporting high cost residents
result in improved collaboration
between services, supporting
early action and reducing
duplication of effort both in
terms of assessment and
support

+  Opportunity to use internal
assets such as the Adult College
to deliver targeted training and
support,

*  Lse community spaces to
provide space and resources to
deliver targeted support

External

Cpportunity to maximise
existing external funding
secured by the council £150,000
to suppaort residents and
council services through
improved collaboration and
Jaint planning

Investment in Referral
Management System to
maximise access to external
provision and secure over £2.6
million worth of provision to
residents and deliver savings to
the council

Mew programmes such as Work
and Health Frogramme
providing c£2million of support
to long term unemployed and
people with disabilities in the
borough

Opportunities for local residents
to secure employment through
regeneration and developmants
at London Riverside
Apprenticeship Levy for the
council can suppart some
Looked After Children and
extend to other groups
Improve coardination of
business and employer offer for
Havering businesses

Internal

Moving employment and skills =
function away from Economic
Development could impact on
connections to business

support, employer engagement
and regeneration activity — need

to ensure connections and
collaboration are maintained

and developed

Mot addressing workforce
challenges around adult social .
care and childcare in mesting
statutory support could result in
greater costs for the council

longer term

Lack of plan and strategy for
engaging with business, .
providers and stakeholders will
impact on extarnal investrment
being used to benefit the

borough

Face of organisational change

and future cuts in funding and
services could impact on the
delivery of employment and

skills plan in the future throuagh =
staff changes, cost savings

Focus on immediate demand
management may result in lack

of planning for longer term
impacts where council has little
cantrol ar influence ie young
people’s attainment rates

External

External funding through ESF
will be impacted by Brexit and
no idea of scale or type of
investmeant beyond 2018/19 -
planning beyond this is
impossible at moment — lack of
plan or strategy to support
council/borough to be ready for
the challenge could result in
lack of investment post 2020
Impact of Crossrail not known,
risk of skills flight and housing
plans forcing business flight -
tipping the balance on
affordability and access to
businessfoffice space

Extent of devolution powers not
known or role of the London
Mayor on decisions eq around
Adult Education Budget which
may impact on Havering's
alraady limited voice and
influence on employment and
skills decisions in the London
Local/ London area

Mew cuts and policies
introduced by Government
which will impact on services,
residents, infrastructure and
SConomy

Rocket Science UK Ltd 2017 Page 29



The SWOT analysis shows a mixed picture of challenges and opportunities, but a context
in which much can be achieved through improved coordination and targeted support.
The following 10 recommendations have been developed to respond to these challenges
and opportunities.

Priority 1 - Making the most of our assets, strengths and relationships to secure the
borough’s ‘fair share’ of employment and skills investment

Recommendations

1.1 Bring employment and skills investment into, and maximise what is already
commissioned for the borough through other agencies, by incentivising and supporting
providers to deliver services within the borough and helping residents to access and
benefit from these opportunities.

1.2 Enable savings and cost avoidance to be achieved through sustainable and quality job
outcomes for higher cost residents, by improving the coordination of existing
employment and skills activity within the Council and optimising returns for the borough
from external investment through the establishment of a Referral Management System.

1.3 Ensure that additional investment secured by the Council through ESF/DWP and
other sources such as Section 106 is focused on plugging the gaps in mainstream and
other provision and focused on supporting key sectors for borough (i.e. Health and Social
Care) or removing barriers to work (e.g. supporting childcare provision).

1.4 Ensure that, where appropriate, the Council’s key strategies, procurement and
commissioning and development plans realise opportunities for employment and skills
investment into the borough.

Priority 2 - Improving prospects and prosperity for residents in or at risk of poverty and
unemployment

2.1 Work with key services to provide a continuous assessment of ‘at risk’ residents and,
through the proposed Referral Management System, support them to access and sustain
employment to reduce their risk of presenting to Council services (particularly Housing).

2.2 Develop agreements and new ways of working with businesses and local providers to
help residents access sustainable quality jobs through effective employer targeting, work
interviews and phased employment to support transitions into work, as well as through
in-work support to help residents sustain their employment and reduce their risk of
cycling in and out of work.

2.3 Work with key services within and outside the Council to help remove the structural
barriers to employment faced by some residents, such as access to affordable childcare
and transport, and access to quality, relevant training.

Page 85




Havering Employment and Skills Plan 2018 -2021

3.3 Support key sectors critical to the Havering economy (e.g. Construction) and delivery
of Council services (e.g. Health and Social Care) through coordinated workforce
development interventions.

3.4 Support other and emerging sectors important to the growth and future prosperity of
the borough and higher value sectors (i.e. Logistics, Manufacturing, Engineering and
Technology) through better targeting of workforce development support including
apprenticeships.

3.3 Work with providers, schools and colleges to enable better connections and
communication between local employers and providers, so that young people/residents
access and benefit from career opportunities both locally, regionally and nationally.

The following sets out the Plan in more detail; the recommendations, the activities and
the ambition including outcomes and outputs to be achieved by 2021 and how these
contribute to achieving the Havering Vision.

Rocket Science UK Ltd 2017 Page 31



/8 abed

employment and skills investment

Havering Employment and Skills Plan 2018 -2021

High level plan 2018-2021

1 - Making the most of your assets, strengths and relationships and secure the borough’s 'fair share’ of

1.1 Bring employmentand skills investmentinto, and maximising what is already commissioned for the borough through other
agencies, by incentivising and supporting providers to deliver services within the borough and helping residents to accessand

benefit from these opportunities.
What do we need to do?

+ Develop relationships with external providers
and assess their ability/needs to deliver into the
borough and work with the council to deliver
1.2 - providing additional space and resources
as needed

+ Megotiate referrals into their provision through
1.2 in return for management information on
referral progress and success

* Provide ongoing support and connections into
existing and other initiatives/funding including
the Apprenticeship Levy

+ Encourage providers to locate services in the
borough and become part of a local provider
network to work together for the benefit of
local people and businesses

Where do we want to be in 20217

+  ESF investment from London Local and Pan
London commissioning inte Havering has been
optimised with over £2 million of this funding
supporting Havering residents

+ Havering Council has used its Apprenticeship
Levy to offer apprenticeships to local people
and has embedded a learning programme for
Looked After Children (LAC) to gain skills and
work experience

* Havering has developed a stronger and
effective provider infrastructure that is working
together to secure and maximise replacement
EU funding and other investment to support
employment and skills post 2020

How does this help us meet our vision?

Communities Making Havering - Supporting
vulnerable residents in our communities helping
them secure sustainable employment and reduce
risk of homelessness.

- Ensure our care leavers are given a good start to
their working life

Opportunities Making Havering - Supporting a
thriving local economy where local people benefit
from all of the employment and skills
opportunities that are available to them.

1.2 Enable cost savings to be achieved through sustainable and quality job outcomes for higher cost residents, by improving the
coordination of existing employment and skills activity within the council and optimise returns for the borough from external
investment through the establishment of a Referral ManagementSystem.

What do we need to do?

+ Establish the service function by April 2018 -
including recruitment of staff and put in place
management information system.

+ Agree internal case work model and referral
process to ensure consistency across key
services,

+ Work together with services to agree data
sharing protocols, internally and externally

Where do we want to be in 20217

+  Areturn of 272 pounds for every pound spent
on the service has been saved by helping
residents access sustainable employment and
demand on services has reduced

* 400 households have avoided homelessness by
securing sustainable employment

How deoes this help us meet our vision?

Communities Making Havering

- Supporting vulnerable residents in our
communities helping themn secure sustainable
employment and reducing their risk of
homelessness

-Ensure our Care Leavers are given a good start to
their working life

Opportunities Making Havering -Supporting
businesses to offer training and development
opportunities to local residents and help them
sustain their employment

Rocket Science UK Ltd 2017

Page 32



88 abed

Havering Employment and Skills Plan 2018 -2021

1 - Making the most of your assets, strengths and relationships and secure the borough’s ‘fair share’

of employment and skills investment

1.3 Ensure that additional investment secured by the council through ESF/DWP and other sources such as Section 106, is
focused on plugging the gaps in mainstreamand other provision and focused on supporting key sectors for borough (i.e.
health and social care) or removing barriers to jobs (i.e. supporting childcare provision).

Where do we want to be in 20217

What do we need to do?

+ Develop delivery model to support current
ESF/DWP investment to 2019 combined value
of £300,000.

+ Focus investment on areas which reduce
dependency on benefits/support service
delivery including — access to childcare and
Personal Assistant self-employment — MEET/&
months plus unemployed given turnaround
support to help access employment — LTU
and ESA target clients to get ready for the
Work and Health Programme

+ Through greater intelligence on the local offer
waork with providers to identify gaps in
training and vocational provision and develop
new projects/pathways for future delivery
supporting 1.1, 1.2, 2.2 and 3.1

50 residents are now operating as
childminders to address sufficiency shortfall
providing 100 places

100 residents are operating as Personal
Assistants and have contributed to a
reduction in agency costs for social care to
the council

300 MEETS over age 19 have avoided going
inte long term unemployment and are now
working

500 residents have secured sustained
employment including ESA/LTU through
programmes like the Work and Health
Programme

Greater insight on gaps in provision and
provider collaboration has improved the local
skills offer making it relevant and supporting
key employment sectors in the borough

Hew does this help us meet our vision?

Communities Making Havering

- We have supported vulnerable residents with
effective and efficient social care services by
having more Personal Assistants

- Increased early years provision in areas where
there is a deficit, contributing to a good start for
children to reach their full potential
Opportunities Making Havering

- Supporting a thriving local economy where
local people benefit from all of the employment
and skills oppertunities that are available to them
- Helping key sectors critical for making Havering
work for residents and businesses access to a
local skilled and experienced workforce

1.4 Ensure that, where appropriate, the council’s key strategies, procurementand commissioning and development plans are
assessed to identify the potential and then supported to realise opportunities for employmentand skills investmentinto the

borough.
What do we need to do?

+  Establish cross council agreement on the
development and embedding of an
Employment and Skills Impact Assessment
process across the council

+ Establish cross council governance on
employment and skills

+ Agree Terms of Reference, reporting on
performance and success (see Slide 10 on
gOVEMmance arrangements).

Where do we want to be in 20217

Opportunities for work, careers and
experience for our residents are systematically
secured through our suppliers and their
supply chain

Employment and skills impacts are routinely
considered and evaluated in policy and
strategy development and new service
delivery

Additional investment and support is being
leveraged through social value for
employment and skills activity in the borough

Hew does this help us meet our vision?

Opportunities Making Havering

-Working more efficiently internally and with
partners to support sustainable economic growth
that generates wealth and opportunities for local
people

Connections Making Havering

- Through improved business development
practice internally we are increasing access to
employment, high quality skills and careers for
our residents

Rocket Science UK Ltd 2017 Page 33



68 abed

Havering Employment and Skills Plan 2018 -2021

2 - Improving prospects and prosperity for residents in or at risk of poverty and unemployment

2.1 Work with key services to provide a continuous assessmentof "at risk’ residents, and through Havering Works (1.2), support
them to access and sustain employment to reduce risk of presenting to council services - particularly housing.

What do we need to do?

+ Agree a COMMON assessment process across
key council services to identify at-risk
residents and through commen action plan
and referral process recruit them into the .
service at earliest opportunity

+  Agree process for sharing data and insight on
client progress and assessment on potential .
savings from early intervention

Where do we want to be in 20217

A Havering Council commen assessment and
referral process for supporting residents into
work is embedded across key council services
Services are identifying "at risk’' residents
earlier and referring them into Havering Works
or alternative provision

Clearer insight on savings generated for the
council through residents accessing
employment has validated business case

How does this help us meet our vision?

Communities Making Havering

- Supperting vulnerable residents in our
communities earlier and helping them secure
sustainable employment to reduce their risk of
homelessness and falling into poverty.

2.2 Developagreements and new ways of working with businesses and local providers to help residents access sustainable
quality jobs through effective employer targeting, work interviews and phased employment tosupport transition into work and
in-work support tohelp residents sustain their employment and reduce their risk of cycling in and out of work.

What do we need to do?

+  Work with internal services, economic .
development and external providers to agree
and incentivise common approach and
messaging to local employers to support
recruitment of residents .
+  Use ESF and other funding to trial new ways of
supporting people into work into the borough
for target groups
+  Commission and deliver job outcomes thatare =
measured on quality and sustainability
potential ie status and pay level.

Where do we want to be in 20217

Local employers are confident and willing to
recruit local residents and are working with
providers and services to help them sustain
their employment

Employment pathways have been adapted
and higher numbers of at risk residents are
accessing employment and being supported
in employment

Payment on job outcomes that are at London
Living Wage and secure is common across
local provision

How does this help us meet our vision?

Opportunities Making Havering

- Supperting a thriving local economy where local
people are benefiting from accessing and
remaining in sustainable guality employment.

2.3 Work with key serviceswithin and outside the council to help remove the structural barriers to employmentfaced by
residents, such as access to affordable childcare, transport, access to quality, relevant training.

What do we need to do?

+ Use our resources and influence (1.1, 1.2, 1.3, =
1.4, 2.2) to work towards reducing barriers for
our residents to access and sustain
employment that we have influence over.

Where do we want to be in 20217

Collective and coordinated action within the
council and with our partners has helped
reduce barmers around access to childcare,
improved our local skills offer and plans in
place to improve transport connections

How does this help us meet our vision?

Connections Making Havering

- Through improved collaboration within and
outside the council we are increasing access to
employment, high quality skills and careers for
our residents.

Rocket Science UK Ltd 2017 Page 34



06 dbed

Havering Employment and Skills Plan 2018 -2021

3 - Growing your own — supporting local people and businesses to thrive

3.1 Support key sectors critical to the Havering economy (construction) and delivery of council services (health and social care)
through coordinated workforce development interventions.

What do we need to do? Where do we want to be in 20217 How does this help us meet our vision?
+  dentify support and funding to help our key « Dur key sectors are reporting improvement in Opportunities Making Havering - Havering's
sactors, working with businesses and providers productivity and recruitment through employers in our key sectors have access to
to better fit local provision to workforce needs workforce development support ie reduction in - resources and funding to support their training
+  Use ESF and other resources to support sectors skills gaps, increased local recruitment and development needs
and use local assets better (ie Construction + Increased insight and intelligence an local
Centre, BID for Retail and Leisura) workforce development needs has batter

shaped local provision — employers and
residents are choosing to waork with local
providers for their training and recruitment
needs

3.2 Support other and emerging sectorsimportant to the growth and future prosperity of the boroughi.e. logistics,
manufacturing, engineering and technology through better targeting of workforce developmentsupportincluding

apprenticeships.

What do we need to do? Where do we want to be in 20217 How does this help us meet our vision?

+  Agree our workforce development strategy for  +  Businesses already in the borough are Opportunities Making Havering — We will use
sactors and through our brokerage expertise, reporting that their workforce development workforce development support to augment our
package offers for sectors working with neads are being met locally inward investment offer and work with Segro to
economic development teams and our provider = MNew businesses are attracted to the borough ensure local people can access jobs at London
netwoark (in part) as a result of the local workforce offer  Riverside

3.3 Work with providers, schools and colleges to enable better connections and communication between local employers and
providers, so that young people/residents access and benefit from local career opportunities.

What do we need to do? Where do we want to be in 20217 How does this help us meet our vision?

+  Develop an effective local partnership between  »  Local people are henefiting from improved Opportunities Making Havering — Working with
providers and schoals through a Provider employer engagement through increased employers, partners and investors we will ensure
Forum to improve our collective messaging to opportunities for work experience, that opportunities are generated for local people
young people and learners on local career apprenticeships, traineeships, graduates to benefit from, supporting them to be part of our
opportunities, +  Local employers are reporting improved arowth and improve local wealth

+  Streamline our collective engagement with relevance of skills and aptitude of local people
local employers agree common messages and to support their recruitment and productivity
engagement protocols to underpin a universal
employer offer.

Rocket Science UK Ltd 2017 Page 35



4.3 Governance and management

This Plan relies on improved collaboration and cross-departmental support to make the
most of the funding and investment opportunities. Critical to its success will be effective
and clear governance. There have been various groups established to respond to specific
policy challenges such as the Welfare Reform Group. In our consultation, Members
expressed an interest in the idea of a Star Chamber on employment and skills.

Given the cross cutting nature of the interventions of the Plan and the need to bring
greater coherence to policy, services and investment, we are recommending the
establishment of a cross-departmental Employment and Skills Group reporting to the
Senior Leadership Team. The purpose of this group will be to oversee the delivery of the
Plan. It will also have a role to play in maintaining a watching brief of the employment
and skills agenda including new policy (e.g. around welfare reform and funding
opportunities) in order to develop a corporate response. The group will be administered
and serviced by the Employment and Skills team.

We recommend that the group is chaired by a Member and is drawn from a mix of
service heads and operational staff. This will include representatives from key services
such Housing, Care Resources, Troubled Families, and Havering Adult College as well as
Economic Development, other Children’s Services, Adult Social Care, Procurement and
HR.

The establishment of this group will help embed a process of review and action around
the employment and skills agenda supported by an implementation plan to measure
progress and performance.

The Employment and Skills team will need to be remodelled to have two clear functions;
a delivery focus which manages the proposed Referral Management System (see Chapter
5); and a strategic focus with clearer responsibilities for the strategic development of
employment and skills for Havering. The latter will include a quality management and
oversight function of the Plan’s performance, a role in developing external relationships
with providers and businesses and responsibility for new developments and funding.

The following diagram illustrates what we envision the governance and management
structure should be:

Page 91



Havering Employment and Skills Plan 2018 -2021

Suggested Governance Chief Operating Chaired by member

Structure officer e ————————
! Internal Cross

1
I Department !
—— i —— - J Emplnymen‘t and l
| Skills Group !

' - - . . . = ’
-
<11
v’ Sign off Strategy

Reviewing Performance of
Plan

. Employment and Skills
Impact Assessment Oversight

Emplu /ment

Functions Functions

26 obed

Demand Monitﬂ,ﬁng - e e = = = = ‘
Management Focus Universal —1_ _PLOEId_ELF_Oﬂ_.IT 2 Jd
_‘ Business Groups |

Figure 4 -Governance and management chart

Rocket Science UK Ltd 2017 Page 37



The current Employment and Skills team comprises 2.5 FTE led by the Employment and
Skills Manager. This will need to be increased (using external funding) to accommodate
delivery of the ESF programme. If the proposed Referral Management System (Chapter
5) is also approved by Council, this will increase the team by 4.0 FTE posts, two of which
will be apprentices. Responsibility for the delivery of the Plan will fall under the team

and be led the Employment and Skills Manager.

To enable effective communication of the Plan’s objectives, implementation of the Plan
and reviews of performance, the following sets out key stakeholders both internal and
external, their relationship to the Plan and the proposed engagement method.

To support this, the Employment and Skills team will become the single point of contact
for stakeholder engagement on employment and skills issues and for developing and
applying the corporate stance on policy and implementation. The Employment and Skills
team will have overall responsibility for ensuring that stakeholders are engaged, the Plan
is communicated, and any issues acted upon.

Internal

Stakeholder

Relationship to the delivery of
the Plan

Engagement method

Leader and Chief Executive

- Council and political
oversight

-Representation of the Plan at
Local London at Leader and
Chief Executive level

-Agreement of the Plan’s
recommendations at Cabinet
-Performance and
achievement reports

Lead Members

-Chair of the Employment and
Skills Group

-Support for implementation
at Cabinet

- Employment and Skills Group
meetings and progress reports
-Ad hoc support as required

Senior Leadership Team

- Support for implementation
at Council and directorate
level

-Performance and
achievement reports

Assistant Director of Policy,
Performance and Community

-Line management of the
Employment and Skills
Manager

-Member of Employment and
Skills Group

-Supervision and appraisals
-Monthly reporting

-Sign off of performance and
achievement reports

Assistant Directors and Heads
of Services — Housing, Adult
Social Care, Children’s
Services, Economic
Development, Procurement,
HR, Learning and

-Members of the Employment
and Skills Group

-Responsible for supporting
delivery of the Plan by helping
service areas deliver
effectively and remove any

-Terms of reference

-The overall plan and
supporting action plan
-Employment and Skills Group
meetings and progress reports

Page 93




Havering Employment and Skills Plan 2018 -2021

Achievement, Joint
Commissioning Unit, and
Public Health

blockages to delivery
-Oversight of the Employment
and Skills Impact Assessment
function

Service delivery — Emergency
Housing, Money Advice,
Community Development,
Early Help, Troubled Families,
and the Adult College

As above plus:

-Effective delivery of services
to support interventions
-Support for and
implementation of the
Referral Management System
-Agreement of and
implementation of a universal
case management approach
to employment and skills

As above plus:

-Reporting of service and
referral information for
performance management
-Close working with the
Employment and Skills team
-Ad hoc meetings or
workshops to support the
review, design and adaptation
of interventions

External

London Councils

- Funding of the ESF “Routes
to Employment” programme
-Advising and supporting
employment and skills policy
at London level within local
government

- Programme reporting on
Routes to Employment
-Attendance at networking
and officer level policy groups

Local London

-Important to keep up to date
with progress and issues
arising within the borough and
from devolution

-Link to the delivery of the
Work and Health Programme
in Havering and other Local
London commissioned/led
activity for employment and
skills.

- Leader-level as appropriate
- Chief Executive level as
appropriate

-Employment and Skills
Manager — office network
meetings

JCP

-Supporting referrals into
Council-delivered ESF
provision

-Funder of the Community
Budgets programme
(previously Flexible Support
Fund)

-Regular meetings with the
Employment and Skills team
-Attendance at associated
forums

Rocket Science UK Ltd 2017

Page 39




Stakeholder

Relationship to the Plan

Engagement method

ESF and Work and Health
Programme providers (e.g.
Reed, Serco, Prospects,
Seetec, Maximus)

- Support and links to the
Referral Management System
process including data sharing
and referral handovers

- Active management with the
Employment and Skills
Manager

-Attendance at associated
forums

Other employment and skills
providers (including the
college) and education
providers

- Insight and information on
provision to improve the
quality of the local offer
-Support for and possible
involvement in future bids for
funding

-Agreement of ways in which
to better support employers,
young people and other target
audiences

- Attendance at associated
forums

-Employment and Skills
Manager as designated single
point of contact for the
Council

Havering Business Forum -
To have a regular ongoing
dialogue with employers and
target sectors

-Access to local employers and
business that can provide
work placements and jobs
-Insight into the needs of local
businesses to inform
workforce development
activities

- Attendance at meetings and
reporting of progress around
the plan

-Advising on a local employer
engagement strategy

Section 106/other developers

- As above

- Planning department to
notify all developments to the
Employment and Skills Team,
so that contact and dialogue
can be established
-Monitoring and review
meetings to take place
monthly between the Planning
department and Employment
and Skills team to ensure that
commitments are progressing
well and adhered to.

Employers including sector
specific groups and BIDs

-Providing job opportunities,
work placements and
apprenticeships

-Insight into workforce
development needs
-Through sector approaches
and targeted initiatives

-Employer engagement
strategy for the Council and
borough

-Sector-based approaches to
support key and emerging
sectors

-Key accounts respond to
employer requests for
assistance with vacancies and
training needs

Page 95




Havering Employment and Skills Plan 2018 -2021

4.4 Summary

This chapter has set out the context, recommendations, governance and engagement
requirements for the Plan, as well as an overarching document that establishes the need
and ambitions for 2021. We believe this is achievable as the Plan provides a framework
for improved coordination and collaboration across the Council. The business case for
action is clear and most of the funding to achieve the Plan is in place — at least until
2019/20.

In the next and last chapter, we provide detail on the proposed Referral Management
System and what the returns might be from Council investment, including getting the
borough’s fair share of the employment and skills funding for residents.

Rocket Science UK Ltd 2017 Page 41



5.1 The case for intervention

Chapter 3 sets outs a detailed assessment of the employment and skills issues and
challenges facing the Council and proposed recommendations for intervention. In this
chapter, we provide further detail and an assessment of the costs and benefits of the
proposed Referral Management System. There are two main factors driving the business
case for developing a Referral Management System:

The first is ensuring that the investment and services the Council provides through a
range of services including Housing, Troubled Families and Early Help is helping clients to
secure sustainable employment and thereby reduce demand and costs.

Our assessment is that services currently have different models and approaches, most of
which are focussed on information, advice and guidance and referring on to other
agencies. There is no formal tracking of what happens to clients from that point on;
quality assurance of the provision they are referred into, or confidence that people are
accessing jobs and sustaining them. The Council can only be sure it is saving money and /
or avoiding costs if it has evidence that the clients it supports access and sustain work.

Even if clients access a job, there is no guarantee of its quality (i.e. pay, hours and
conditions). Coupling poor quality jobs with the lack of in-work support will result in
clients going back to unemployment as their work cannot be sustained longer term.

Our recent evaluation of a £2 million employment programme in another borough found
that over 40% of the people supported through it had returned to being unemployed
within approximately six months. This was because of the temporary nature of jobs
people accessed, low pay and inability of people to manage their employment because
of other pressures, e.g. childcare, travel and shift work.

The second is ensuring that the estimated £2.6 million of European Social Funding and
other investment in employment and skills that is commissioned outside of the borough
(i.e. through the Work and Health Programme) is secured for Havering’s benefit.

Our assessment is that this is certainly not the case for most of the provision that we
have currently identified. The reasons for this are many:

There is no current formal mechanism for engaging with external providers, nor
a single point of access for them to make effective connections to Council
services. This results in ad hoc engagement, if any. The exception to this is the
ESF Troubled Families programme which has a requirement to access referrals

Page 97



from Havering. There is likely to be other provision available to these families
that they are not accessing.

There is currently no single formal mechanism of keeping track of what is being
or has been commissioned by others into the borough. This results in the
borough being on the ‘back foot’ when it comes to negotiating with the
successful contractor on an offer for the borough.

Although providers may have indicative allocations for working in Havering, it
can be easier for them deliver their contract outputs and outcomes in other
areas where they have better connections, footprint and higher numbers of
clients.

If the borough is to secure its fair share of this funding, then it needs to improve its offer
to providers and incentivise them to work with the Council’s different clients.

A final consideration of the case for intervention is understanding what constitutes a
quality employment service. A great deal of research has been undertaken, nationally
and internationally, on what an effective employment service needs to look like. There
are seven elements:

1. Effective outreach to attract clients into the programme

2. Good quality assessment and eligibility checks

3. Induction and action planning that fits the needs of the client

4. One to one casework and support including tracking

5. Group activities where clients can work with and be supported by their peers

6. A suite of specialist activity to support the client, including training and support
to remove barriers to work such as childcare

7. In-work support to help the client maintain their employment.

The following diagram illustrates this pathway, and how support should not end once
employment has been secured.

Page 98



Havering Employment and Skills Plan 2018 -2021

Signposting elsewhere

I

1) Outreach/Referral

!

2) Needs/Eligibility
Assessment

7) In-work support

Financial support to
manage transition
ie travel, uniform

3) Quality induction to
Access to in-work i dls:eng?gement
- at this point
benefits and
budget
management

4) Casework: 1-1 Activity
Initial Meeting and Action Plan
Ongoing meetings
Job Applications

Regular contact
and supportto
sustain job

v
c
2]
-t
=
>
Q
S
1)
o.
o

Skills development
to support
progression

5) Group Activity: General
CVs, interviews, career paths

6) Specialist Activity
Support - health, benefits,
childcare
Specific job - recruitment
consultants, employer
workshops
Skills - ESOL, basic skills, HGV,

childcare, care

Supportto reduce
risk of losing job ie
breakdown of
childcare

Figure 5 - Effective pathway to employment and sustainment

Our assessment of current employment support in the Council is that this is at best
uncoordinated across services; casework is not universal and, in effect, services are
offering only a few of these elements (and in some cases only parts of them). There
appears to be no in-work support on offer other than that provided to care leavers who
have been helped into work through the Early Help team. It is therefore critical that
clients are supported into quality provision to increase their likelihood of getting and
sustaining employment.

Rocket Science UK Ltd 2017 Page 44



5.2 Consultation on the Referral Management System

On 12" January 2017, an options workshop was held with service representatives from
across the Council to explore three options presented for a referral management system.
Using personas of typical client groups supported by teams in Housing, Troubled Families
and Children’s Services, attendees mapped current Council approaches to support them
into employment. With this information and using their respective expertise, groups
assessed which of the following three options would provide the best outcomes for both
the Council and the client:

Option 1 — Signposting - Creating a referral process for clients across services
into existing external provision using a common database and with
additional support to secure opportunities from providers and track client
outcomes.

Option 2 — Signposting Plus — Similar to option 1, but offering an enhanced
service which includes internal matching to opportunities, additional case
work support and supporting retention of job outcomes through tracking
and regular in-work contact and support.

Option 3 — Creating a managing agent model — This required establishing a
new service whereby the Council could design and deliver a bespoke,
borough-wide service and bid alongside commercial providers to win
programmes and funding.

Groups were asked to reflect on the extent to which each option would enable people to
get a job quicker, sustain that employment longer and increase their income. In part this
was to help determine which option could deliver better outcomes, but also to develop
assumptions to support the Cost / Benefit Analysis in Appendix 4.

Although it was agreed that Option 3 would give the Council greater control and
influence over quality, delivery and performance, this would be at a considerably greater
cost to the Council with no guarantee of return in the short term. It would also require
establishing a centralised service which could compromise existing service arrangements,
particularly for Looked After Children and Troubled Families and require a long lead in
time.

Option 2 was considered the most appropriate option as it provided greater surety that
client progress and outcomes could be monitored than Option 1, as well as ensuring that
additional support was in place to help clients sustain those outcomes. It was also in
recognition that opportunities available to residents were time limited, as they are
funded through ESF, so every effort needed to be made to maximise the potential
investment for Havering before 2020. However, service leads were very clear that
Option 2 should not create a separate team of caseworkers. It should use existing
resources and systems better and provide added value and support to case workers
within each of the services working with the target client groups.

Page 100



A detailed assessment of the options for intervention and the requirements of an
employment service which informed the consultation into a preferred option is set out in
Appendix 3.

The following outlines the model, structure and potential costs between 2018 to 2021.

5.3 How will it work?

The service, which is an enhanced referral and case work model, requires two main
elements to make it work:

The first element needs to engage, support and enable external providers that
have an obligation to deliver services to Havering residents to operate effectively
in the borough. Providers need to be incentivised to focus efforts in the borough
and to have effective relationships with the Council. This includes:

o Access to targeted Council clients that are eligible for the provision on
offer. Providers need to meet their targets and know that clients are
eligible for provision.

o Support to ensure that referrals made to providers are “warmed” and
ready and therefore less likely to disengage from provision.

o Access to additional support and services that can add value to the
provider offer and help them achieve their contract outcomes. These
are likely to be one, all or a combination of advice services, premises
(provided free or at low cost to support delivery), access to vacancies in
the council, through its supply chain or other employer relationships and
any other training and support on offer.

In return, providers need to be willing to share information on progress and
outcomes of referrals so that these can be tracked and monitored internally. This
will enable the service to generate management information to track client
progress and identify where savings have been made and/or costs prevented. It
will also provide information back to services on their clients.

e The second is a universal process of assessing the ‘readiness’ of clients to be
referred into provision; their ability to secure a job and then access support to
help sustain that employment or move to alternative employment if needed.

o Providers are paid on achieving a job outcome and sustainment which is
often at 13 and 26 weeks of employment. To reduce the likelihood of
clients becoming unemployed during and post 26 weeks, additional help
needs to be in place. This is likely to be one, all or a combination of;

Page 101



ongoing mentoring/support to deal with any issues or challenges
faced by the client provided by the service

= early identification for those at risk of becoming unemployed
again (i.e. due to shorter term contracts or temporary positions)
and support put in place to help them find alternative work

= access to other support such as debt advice.

o This needs a common assessment process used by the different services
in the Council to assess readiness. Currently there are several different
processes of varying intensity and quality for assessing need and
delivering case work. For the model to work effectively this needs to be
done consistently and requires a universal ‘Havering’ assessment
process.

A tracking and monitoring system needs to be put in place to underpin these elements
and to gather the management information to illustrate the progress and outcomes
clients are achieving and the savings that are being made and / or costs avoided through
them securing employment. The system needs to be focused on tracking and reporting
interventions and outcomes but also able to interface with other systems being used
across the Council. This is to facilitate the exchange of data and information about
clients with their key or case workers as well as ensure that client contact is being
managed and recorded effectively.

This will require access by team members, case/key workers, the Employment and Skills
team and providers to share information on clients relevant to their employment and
progress. There will be a requirement to ensure that clients are willing to share data but
this can be built into consent forms and action plans.

The following charts illustrate the potential client journey and delivery structure:

Page 102



€0T obed

Havering Employment and Skills Plan 2018 -2021

Referral assessment

Service conducts

Service Ready for passed/logged into
referral? Referral Management
Service

sy Work readiness
assessment

identifies clients

Action Plan to
support Assessment of
readiness current training
opportunities

Provider action plan -
shared with Referral T —— P.rdefer L id I Options

Management e == provider referra pre_sented to
identified clientand

Service assessment i
services

Added value Clients settle in Back into the
support identified programme and Disengage Referral

and integrated receive support ? Management
into action plan to work Service

Data and progress
monitoring agreed
with provider

Ongoing

] - Provider outcome
Individual Client tracking and achieved - no
services sustains support to avoid

further support

Referral employment return to

Yes

Management unemployment
Service

Back to
Service .

Client journey

Figure 6 Proposed client journey for the Referral Management System

Rocket Science UK Ltd 2017 Page 48




0T obed

Havering Employment and Skills Plan 2018 -2021

Proposed structure

Referral Management

Service

l

Employment and Skills

Manager
Provider
Engagement and Development

External Facing

Role 1 FTE
Referral Management
and Retentions

Internal Facing

Warmed up referrals

Referral

ESF/other
Providers

including

: Opportunities to be matched
Havering

Council ESF
programme

Client progress

Management
and Matching
Service

N\

Referrals to be
matched

Opportunity,
Referral and

Recording System

|

Role 2 0.5 FTE
Tracking
Data Collection

ExternalAnternal Facing

Performance
and savings

1
1 *

LY
" Management »
information ,

- - - g

I#

Progress

Progress
and
outcomes

Housing

IMunity

Figure 7 - Proposed management and delivery structure

Children’

Rocket Science UK Ltd 2017 Page 49



We have suggested that this function could be serviced by two additional people. We
recommend the following:

e Provider development role - focused on developing opportunities with providers
and supporting retention of referrals. This should be managed by the
Employment and Skills Manager.

e Referral matching and management role - focused on developing referrals and
working with services to sustain employment outcomes. This role needs to be
recruited to.

e Data, information and analyst role (part time) - to support collection and analysis
of client and outcome data. This role also needs to be recruited to.

In addition, this model would require a client management and tracking system to be in
place. Our estimate based on the market is that this would require set up costs in year
one and license arrangements over the three years. We have estimated the set-up costs
to be up to £20,000 in our modelling but this could be achieved for less.

5.4 Assessing the costs and benefits of the service

We have developed a Cost Benefit Analysis (CBA) Toolkit to identify the savings to / costs avoided
by the Council over three years as a result of the intervention. These savings / cost avoidance
opportunities arise from reducing poverty-related demand for council services by reducing
unemployment in the borough. This model has been developed by Rocket Science as an alternative
way of modelling returns when cost information has been difficult to access.

The basis of this model is drawn from the 2016 Joseph Rowntree Foundation report “Counting the
Cost of UK Poverty”, a UK-wide study looking at what proportion of local authority spending was a
result of poverty.® For example, it found that 44% of spending on housing and 26% of spending on
Adult Social Services by local authorities was a result of poverty.

We have combined this with data indicating that around 20% of the borough’s households are in
poverty’ and an ONS study showing that “over the period 2007 to 2012, of people aged 18 to 59

http://www.learningandwork.org.uk.gridhosted.co.uk/wp-
content/uploads/2017/01/Work in _progress full.pdf

Page 105


http://www.learningandwork.org.uk.gridhosted.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/01/Work_in_progress_full.pdf
http://www.learningandwork.org.uk.gridhosted.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/01/Work_in_progress_full.pdf

who were not working and living in a household in poverty, 70% of those who entered employment
left poverty.”*° The causal links in the model are therefore:

Increased Reduce poverty in Less Local
employment Havering Authority spending

The model calculates the costs and benefits of the intervention — and the return on investment
which is the ratio of the two — for the first three years of the programme. This is because estimates
become less accurate the further into the future the model looks. However, we would expect
benefits from reduced poverty to last longer, and we have also included an indicative value of the
benefits from lifting one person fully out of poverty for 10 years.

Overall, we consider this model to be a conservative estimate of the savings that could be made
and costs avoided within three years. Reductions have been made in the calculations for
deadweight — what would have happened with no intervention — and to account for “optimism
bias”, as recommended by the Manchester New Economy CBA guidance. We have also conducted a
sensitivity analysis to identify which variables the model is most sensitive to, and ensured these are
particularly robust.

Under current parameters we estimate that the return on investment from the intervention will be
£0.69 per £1 in the first year, £2.14 in the second year, £2.71 in the third year, and £1.83 overall'’.

As we would expect, the return on investment increases over time, as more people are lifted out of
poverty and demand for council services readjusts. These figures have been based on working with
an average of 570 clients per year.

The benefits accrued for the Council over ten years of lifting one person fully out of poverty are in
the region of £22,818 in today’s price terms. Based on the projected numbers achieving the
outcome, in our analysis this would equate to over £4.9 million.

Page 106



Havering Employment and Skills Plan 2018 -2021

Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Total
£99,239 £95,244 £97,034 £291,517
£68,154 £203,509 £263,241 £534,903
£0.69 £2.14 £2.71 £1.83
1 : 0.69 1 0214 1 . 271 1 : 1.83

Figure 8 Headline figures from investment based on the CBA analysis in Appendix 4

The full cost benefit analysis spreadsheet and accompanying technical note can be found
in Appendix 4.

5.5 Summary

This chapter has set out the case for developing a Referral Management System, a
proposed delivery structure, client journey and an assessment of the possible returns to
the Council.

There are clearly a number of benefits from this service which align with the three
principles we established for the Plan; Achieving the Havering Vision, Embedding a
Havering Way of Working and Preparing Havering for 2020.

But this is not just about a return for the Council. This service provides a return for
residents and local businesses by maximising external investment in employment and
skills through improved provider engagement and management. Whilst it is difficult to
estimate what this will mean financially in practice, it is likely that a good proportion of
the estimated £2.6 million will be secured for the Havering residents that need it and will
benefit the most.

Finally, it is important to reflect on the potential client management data tool and
process to support cross departmental and service collaboration. Our findings have
shown what the potential could be around client centred support in mobilising services
to work together, sharing information and supporting efficient working across the
council.

In this respect, there is scope to consider the adoption of the Referral Management
System as an opportunity to pilot and learn lessons for future client management
structures and systems in the council.

Rocket Science UK Ltd 2017 Page 52



This report has set out for Havering Council a clear case for action, a roadmap and action
plan for delivery and an options appraisal for developing its employment and skills
capacity.

Although relatively understated, the employment and skills activity in the council has the
potential to be transformative, particularly for residents where investment to date has
been minimal or ineffective.

The challenge for Havering is making its case for investment for government funding, in a
borough that has relative wealth and is without the same scale of disadvantage (in terms
of numbers of people affected) as others within its devolved sub-region.

There are many unknowns about the future, but we are beginning to see the impact of
the London housing market and low value employment sectors in the borough on the
cost of living, which will inevitably lead to greater polarisation between wealth and
disadvantage.

We believe the findings and recommendations provide a blueprint for the Council to:

take concerted action, with clear returns on savings and / or cost avoidance to
support demand management and

a practical way forward to build capacity within the organisation to prepare the
ground for, and be more resilient to, changes in policy and funding for
employment and skills beyond 2021.

Page 108



60T abed

ROCKET
SCIENCE



http://www.rocketsciencelab.co.uk

Key issue

1) There are 10,950 residents claiming
employment related benefits, most of
which are likely already to be
supported by a council service or have
reduced council tax liabilities.

2) Limits came into force on 7t
November capping benefits at
£23§0 and further impacts

expegyed as Universal Credit is rolled
outQ

OTT ®

3) Welfare reform coupled with a
buoyant property market will be
affecting homeless rates as private
landlords end tenancies and tenants
fall into arrears due to Universal
Credit

4) The borough has a higher
proportion of lone parents compared
to other boroughs living in the more
deprived areas. These areas are
reported to have insufficient childcare
to meet the Early Education
Entitlement

Numbers affected

e 1,775 residents are claiming Job Seekers
Allowance. 475 (27%) have been unemployed
for over a year

* 6,210 residents are claiming Employment
Support Allowance. 30% of ESA clients are aged
55+. At least 830 will be out of working age in
the lifetime of the plan

e 730residents are in in the Work Related Activity
Group — WRAG. 78% have been unemployed for
longer than 2 years

e 1,155 residents are long term unemployed

* 469 households are affected by the benefit cap

* 315(67%) are facing a shortfall of up to £100 per
week - £5,200 extra needed over a year - Based
on the over 25 rate for the National Minimum
Wage (£7.20phr), they would need to work at
least 16 hours per week over 52 weeks to make
up the difference

* 81% of households affected have more than 4
children

e 100 families are living in Hostel accommodation
e C.100 families are living in Bed and Breakfast
accommodation

* There are 1,830 lone parents in the borough

* Harold Wood is projected to have a deficit of
631 Early Education Entitlement places from
2016/17 to 2020/21. There are also insufficient
places in some other wards

* 80% of UC claimants are lone parents

Impact and opportunities

Numbers will be targeted through the Work and
Health Programme but the Council has no influence
on the chosen provider for Havering

80% reduction from Work Programme spend but
WRAG not mandated

Long term unemployed likely to be presenting to
Council services now and at the end of working age
(due to limited pensions and personal savings)

Potential increase in rent arrears and impact on
those in the Private Rented Sector

Affecting those on JSA/ESA, lone parents and larger
families.

Larger families will face greatest challenges

Advice and guidance has been put in place and £50k
secured from DWP to support 50 families for one
year to December 2017.

Employment is the only real option to raise income
but the employment status of affected individuals is
not known

Families being evicted are predominantly from the
private rented sector and are on benefits
Cost to the council for emergency housing

Lone parents will be most affected by Universal
Credit

Childcare costs are disregarded within Universal
Credit but capped so create an issue for families with
several children.



5) The Troubled Families programme has
been operating in the borough and new
funding of nearly £5.6m has been made
available through the ESF for 10 boroughs
in the North and East London area to
2019. Contract has been awarded and
starting imminently.

6) Young People Not in Education,
Employment or Training (NEETS) in the
borough

o

jabl
Q

7) Youn?people, attainment rates and
apprengigeships— Havering ranks as the
secondHewest borough for attainment
rates at Levels 2 and 3

8) The Apprenticeship Levy was
introduced in 2017. Local authorities
have a statutory duty to provide 2.3% of
the workforce with apprenticeships and
0.5% of payroll levied, which can be
recouped to pay for training and
accreditation.

1,450 families to be worked with by 2020

98 have achieved continuous employment (13 to
26 weeks sustainment). 28 individuals have
achieved continuous employment to date in phase
2.

C.280 NEETs (around 4%) which is inline with
London average.

1% whose destinations are unknown (less than the
London average), with greater concentrations in
Havering Park, Gooshays, Harold Wood and
Romford

83 young people available for EET are aged 17/18
96 are not available for EET for various reasons.

23 are care leavers/in care, 17 are known to the
YOT and 23 have Learning Difficulties or Disabilities

Attainment gaps for disadvantaged young people
at KS4 and KS5 (31% and 30%) are double the
London average

Higher rate of participation (5%) in apprenticeships
for 16-18 year olds than London

The Council has 30 looked after children in semi
independent care

Care leavers service has helped 34 young people to
access employment and apprenticeships

165 employees estimated to be affected at
Havering

33 apprentices are currently employed in the
council

Programme targeting 2,941 families (min) over 10
boroughs. Funding equates to approx £1,900 per
family. Havering’s allocation is c.£180,000 but the
Council has little influence over delivery.

Likely to be families impacted by Universal Credit
and/or on benefits

ESF Programme delivered by a company with a
contract worth £35 million

Raising of the Participation Age (RPA) likely to have
made an impact on NEETs

However positive participation rates have reduced
for 17 year olds, suggesting this cohort is likely to be
experiencing greater challenges.

Pockets of issues for smaller groups, needing greater
tailoring of support and targeting

Havering is an importer of learners from other
boroughs

Apprenticeships and vocational routes require
functional level skills at Level 2 — so provision needs
to support young people who struggle with Maths
and English

Funding could be available to support
apprenticeships in the council during the lifetime of
the plan

Support workforce development for existing staff
Opportunities to support a ‘grow your own’
programme for local young people/adults into entry
level jobs, with a possible focus on LAC

Use existing resource in the Adult College to provide
training and maintain quality control



9) Vacancies are not being filled - UKCES data
published in 2016 highlighted that there are
considerable vacancies and hard-to-fill vacancies in
Havering.

10) Businesses are reporting that skills gaps are
causing greater challenges than vacancies, but only
27% have training budgets in place.

_e)
job)
11) ErS&doyee pay - Organisations pay their full-

time employees less than the London average and

womenare particularly disadvantaged.
N

12) Significant growth in micro-businesses. These
account for 92% of the business base (8,460).
Between 2012 and 2016 the number of businesses
in Havering increased by 2,285. 2,185 (96%) of
these were new micro businesses.

13) There is increasing demand for office space in
the borough. The projected growth in office space
is mainly attributed to ongoing demand for space
within Romford Town Centre.

There were 5,557 vacancies in Havering in
2015. 266 of these were in skilled trade
occupations; 199 were in professional
occupations, and 194 were for caring, leisure
and other services staff

There were 448 hard-to-fill vacancies

677 employers report that they have skills
gaps within their organisation

193 of these are among elementary staff, 172
are among managers and 126 are among
sales and customer services staff

Gross weekly pay for full-time staff in
Havering is £622.90 compared to the London
average of £632.40.

Women in Havering are paid £536.20
compared to the London average of £585
and c£140 less than men

The sectors with the greatest increase were
construction (450 new businesses);
professional, scientific and technical (450);
business, administration and support services
(285) and information & communication
(265).

There were only 40 new retail micro
businesses and the total number of small
retail businesses decreased by 5.

There is additional demand of up to 17,132
m2 of office space in the period up until
2031.

Net demand of industrial space is predicted
to be —24 hectares.

The vacancy rate for commercial office floor

1 oo

Employers report a lack of applicants with the
required skills or the required attitude,
motivation and personality to fill vacancies
This impacts on staff workload and loss of
business has a knock on effect on productivity.

Employers report that 1,782 staff are not fully
proficient. 482 of these are sales and customer
services staff, 369 are elementary staff and 301
are managers.

There is a range of skills gaps at both the higher
and lower end of job grades, so a tailored offer is
needed

Opportunity to use the BID as a means to raise
skills levels within the retail/service sector

There are signs of a low-wage economy in the
borough based on workplace analysis.

Investment and support for businesses needs to
be targeted to help those sectors that are
growing

Opportunities to align business planning and
support with workforce development and
connecting businesses to readymade talent to
enable them to grow

Conversion of office space as designated housing
may impact on the ability to grow the business
base and result in business flight

The new developments at Rainham supported
by Section 106 arrangements and opportunities

P —



¢TT obed

YEAR ONE EMPLOYMENT AND SKILLS
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN

Objective

Appendix 3

Actions

2018

2019

April-June

July- Sept

Sept-Dec

Jan-March

11

1.2

13

1.4

Bring employment and skills investment
into, and maximising what is already
commissioned for, the borough through
other agencies, by incentivising and
supporting providers to deliver services
within the borough and helping residents
to access and benefit from these
opportunities.

Develop relationships with external providers and assess their
ability/needs to deliver in the borough and work with the council to
deliver 1.2 — providing additional space and resources as needed

Negotiate referrals into their provision through 1.2 in return for
management information on referral progress and success

Provide ongoing support and connections into existing and other
initiatives/funding including the Apprenticeship Levy

Encourage providers to locate services in the borough and to work
together for the benefit of local people and businesses

Enable cost savings to be achieved
through sustainable and quality job
outcomes for higher cost residents, by
improving the coordination of existing
employment and skills activity within the
Council. Optimise returns for the borough
from external investment through the
establishment of a Referral Management
System.

Establish the service function by the end of April 2018 — including
through recruitment of staff and putting in place the referral
management system.

Agree internal case work model and referral process to ensure
consistency across key services

Work together with services and partners to agree data sharing
protocols, internally and externally

Ensure that additional investment secured
by the Council through ESF/DWP and
other sources, such as Section 106, is
focused on plugging the gaps in
mainstream and other provision and
focused on supporting key sectors for
borough (e.g. construction and health and
social care) and / or removing barriers to
jobs (e.g. supporting childcare provision).

Develop delivery model to support current ESF/DWP investment to
2020.

Focus investment on areas which reduce dependency on benefits
(i.e. by targeting those who are NEET, especially if for more than 6
months) / support service delivery (including access to childcare and
self-employment of Personal Assistants). Support LTU and ESA
target clients to get ready for the Work and Health Programme

Through greater intelligence on the local offer, work with providers to
identify gaps in training and vocational provision and develop new
projects/pathways for future delivery

Ensure that, where appropriate, the
Council’s key strategies, procurement and

Establish cross-Council agreement on the development and
embedding of an Employment and Skills Impact Assessment process
across the council




2.1

2.2

yTT abed

2.3

31

commissioning activity and development
plans realise opportunities for
employment and skills investment into the
borough.

Establish cross council governance on employment and skills

Agree Terms of Reference for the governance body/ies, including
arrangements for reporting on performance and successes

Work with key services to provide a
continuous assessment of ‘at risk’
residents, and support them to access and
sustain employment to reduce their risk of
presenting to Council services, particularly
housing.

Agree a common assessment process across key council services to
identify at-risk residents and, through a common action plan and
referral process, recruit them into the appropriate service at earliest
opportunity

Agree processes for sharing data and insight on client progress
andsavings achieved / costs avoided from early intervention

Develop agreements and new ways of
working with businesses and local
providers to help residents access
sustainable, quality jobs through effective
employer targeting, work interviews and
phased employment, supporting
transitions into work and providing in-
work support to help residents sustain
their employment and reduce their risk of
cycling in and out of work.

Work with internal services and external providers to agree and
incentivise a common approach and messaging to local employers to
support recruitment of residents

Use ESF and other funding to trial and evaluate new ways of
supporting people (especially from target groups) into work in the
borough

Commission and deliver job outcomes that are measured on quality
and sustainability potential, ie status and pay level.

Work with key services within and
outside the Council to help remove the
structural barriers to employment faced by
residents, such as access to affordable
childcare and transport, as well as access
to quality, relevant training.

Use our resources and influence to work towards reducing barriers
for our residents to access and sustain employment

Support key sectors critical to the
Havering economy (construction) and
delivery of council services (health and
social care) through coordinated
workforce development interventions.

Identify support and funding to help key sectors, working with
businesses and providers to better fit local provision to workforce
needs

Use ESF and other resources to support sectors and use local assets
better (e.g. through the development of a Construction Centre, and /
or a bid for retail and leisure)




3.2

33

Support other and emerging sectors
important to the growth and future
prosperity of the borough (i.e. logistics,
manufacturing, engineering and
technology) through better targeting of
workforce development support including
apprenticeships.

Agree a workforce development strategy for sectors and, through the
employer brokerage service and in partnership with the Economic
Development service and providers, package offers for sectors

Work with providers, schools and colleges
to enable better connections and
communication between local employers
and providers, so that young
people/residents access and benefit from
local career opportunities.

Develop an effective local partnership between providers and schools
to improve the collective messaging to young people and learners on
local career opportunities.

Streamline our collective engagement with local employers by
agreeing common messages and engagement protocols to underpin
a universal employer offer

GTT obed




This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 4

4¢ Havering

RTY LONDON BOROUGH

Equality Impact Assessment
(EIA)

Document control

Title of activity: Havering Employment and Skills Plan 2018 - 2021

This is :
1. astrategy which outlines the London Borough of Havering’s
approach to supporting the Employment and Skills agenda
and
2. A service to coordinate employment and skills provision
across the borough ( internally and externally) to ensure that
Havering is able to realise the full benefits of national,
regional and sub-regional provision

The service will deliver employment and skills brokerage to
local residents who are unemployed, under employed or at
risk of experiencing “in work poverty” through the provision of

U5 el EXEI: comprehensive wrap-around support consisting of :

¢ Information, advice and guidance

¢ Needs assessment

e Personalised action planning

e Training and employment support and in-work
support.

All Havering residents accessing this support will be issued
with a Havering Skills Passport which will ensure that
residents experience a consistent service that seeks to
improve their employment and skills situation. Residents will
be encouraged to engage in shaping and planning their

Page 117




career path in terms of progression, diversification and skills
development. Participants will be referred to provision
funded from various sources including Section 106
agreements and the European Social Fund (ESF). The
service will move residents as appropriate between the varied
provision to support residents into employment and training.

A Referral Management System will also be established to
match residents’ needs with appropriate provision, monitor
their progress and measure the impact of the interventions.

There will be opportunities for participants to provide
feedback on their experiences and help to contribute to the
future design of services to make sure that they meet
residents’ needs.

The service will work with employers and learning / training
providers to develop customised training to support local
residents into employment. It will develop strategic and
operational partnerships to progress the needs of local
residents and businesses in terms of employment and skills
from entry level to higher level skills.

Lead officer:

Deborah Moonasar
Skills and Business Engagement Manager
Policy, Performance and Community

Approved by:

Pippa Brent-Isherwood
Assistant Director of Policy, Performance and Community

Date completed:

09/01/18

Scheduled date for
review:

31/03/19

Did you seek advice from the Corporate Policy & Diversity team? Yes / No

Does the EIA contain any confidential or exempt information that
would prevent you publishing it on the Council’s website?

Yes / No

Page 118




1. Equality Impact Assessment Checklist

About your activity

1 | Title of activity

Havering Employment and Skills Plan 2018 - 2021

2 | Type of activity

This is :

1. astrategy which outlines London Borough of
Havering’s approach to supporting the Employment
and Skills Agenda

and

2. A service to coordinate employment and skills
provision across the borough ( internally and
externally) to ensure that Havering is able to realise
the benefits of national regional and sub regional
provision

Please see further details provided above.

3 | Scope of activity

The Havering Employment and Skills Plan is specifically
designed to support residents who are at risk of experiencing
disadvantage due to lack of skills, unemployment or under-

employment.

The work being proposed will include :

Development of targeted interventions for
specific priority/demand groups. This will
enable value to be added to current skills and
employment provision and can be developed to
meet the full spectrum of training needs from
entry level to the higher level skills demanded
by businesses.

A central management and coordination role
will facilitate a common referral process across
a range of provision including direct delivery
from within the Employment and Skills team and
other Council services.

Encouraging providers to work collaboratively
with the Council and other providers to secure
the type and quality of provision that is needed
to move residents into work and support them to
progress within work and sustain well paid
employment,

Page 119




e Utilising Section 106 funding and maximising
opportunities from the Council’s procurement
and commissioning activities to service local
labour market requirements.

e Employer Led Training Provision - The
Council has a role to play in engaging
employers in working with training providers to
develop “employer led” training, which meets
the changing needs of industry and also,
crucially, is of a quality and scope that
businesses are prepared to pay for.

e The development of a comprehensive local
partnership of providers, businesses and the
local authority to attract funding from a range
of sources. The ability to demonstrate a
coordinated and responsive infrastructure will be
key to attracting funding going forward.

This approach:

e Offers a multi layered and comprehensive approach by
utilising existing funding and support that is being
provided on a regional and sub-regional basis. This can
provide additional value when used alongside Planning
Gain and other funding opportunities to enhance and
augment provision.

e Utilises local partnership activity and funding to address
some of Havering’s specific needs (for example,
addressing job sustainability and progression through
improved skills levels linked to jobs available).

¢ Enables engagement in sector based approaches to
respond to employers’ specific needs, support
workforce development and enhance productivity.

The Plan will to respond particularly to the higher levels of
deprivation and unemployment within known hotspots in
Havering, particularly Gooshays, Heaton, Romford Town and
Havering Park. These wards have the highest numbers of
unemployment related benefits claimants, and the highest
number of claimants of Employment Support Allowance (which
supports people who cannot find a job through long term
illness or disability). They are the most income and employment
deprived wards in Havering and also have the highest numbers
of children living in poverty (according to the Indices of Multiple
Deprivation 2015).

Page 120 4




Is the activity new or

42 changing?

New

Is the activity likely to
4b | have an impact on Yes
individuals or groups?

5 | If you answered yes: Please see the EIA on the next page.

6 | If you answered no: N/A

Deborah Moonasar
Completed by: Skills and Business Engagement Manager
Policy, Performance and Community

Date: 12/01/18

2. Equality Impact Assessment

Background/context

The Employment and Skills Plan is specifically intended to support people who are disadvantaged
or at risk of becoming disadvantaged through lack of skills, unemployment, under-employment
and / or in-work poverty. The Plan sets out a range of activities that will be carried out to support
unemployed residents to access and sustain work, and also to help those who are in work to
increase their prospects of progression and increased prosperity.

As part of the proposed Referral Management System we intend to manage and monitor the
effectiveness of this activity in supporting residents, including those who have “protected
characteristics”. The system will also facilitate the movement of residents between programmes to
maximise their outcomes.

This activity will help us to :
o Ensure that Havering residents have access to all of the opportunities available to them.
o Efficiently and reliably move residents through programmes so that they are supported to
meet their employment and skills needs currently and in the future.
e Review, analyse and act on feedback from residents on the extent to which provision
meets their needs; the quality of their experience, and how we could better shape activities
in the future to meet residents’ needs.

The Employment and Skills Plan 2018-21 is intended to respond particularly to the higher levels of
deprivation and unemployment within known hotspots in Havering, particularly Gooshays, Heaton,
Romford Town and Havering Park. These wards have the highest number of unemployment
related benefits claimants, and the highest number of claimants of Employment Support
Allowance (which supports people who cannot find a job through long term iliness or disability).

Gooshays, Heaton and Havering Park are the most income and employment deprived wards in
Havering and also have the highest numbers of children living in poverty (according to the Indices

Page 121




of Multiple Deprivation 2015).

Whilst the borough appears to enjoy a relatively good economic outlook and experiences some of
the lowest levels of unemployment when compared to other London boroughs, there are areas
where support is needed to lift the economic prospects and wellbeing of residents, especially
amongst groups with “protected characteristics”.

The EIA

Age: Consider the full range of age groups

Please tick (v) the Overall impact: Positive
relevant box:

Despite a 76.5% rate of employment (higher than the London average),

Positive v Havering residents experience comparatively poor rates of pay, levels

of education and skill levels. This situation will impact on the future
Neutral prosperity and wellbeing of residents. The Employment and Skills Plan

aims to address this by supporting residents to improve their
employment prospects.

Negative The implementation of a Referral Management System will ensure that
the council is able to monitor and improve as necessary the support
provided to those with “protected characteristics”

Evidence:

Havering has 252,800 residents (Nomis 2016). The borough current experiences some of the
lowest wage rates and levels of educational attainment in London. Households earnings average
£44,430 per annum compared to £48,530 in other outer London boroughs and a Greater London
average of £51,770.

Low qualification levels are a prominent issue for Havering, as almost three quarters of the adult
population have either no qualifications or are qualified only to level 1 or 2, with less than a quarter
having attained degrees. The proportion of Havering residents with NVQ1 qualifications and
above is 85.8%; slightly above both the UK and London averages. However, the proportion of 16-
64 years olds with NVQ2 qualifications and above is below the UK average. 70.2% in Havering
have this qualification compared with 76.4% across London and 73.3% across the UK. These
figures suggest that the Further Education is one of the key areas that require improvement in the
borough.

The figures are heavily skewed by the 50-64 population, but there are relatively low levels of level
4 and above qualified residents across all age brackets, whilst the future projections for the
London job market are heavily skewed towards higher level qualifications, particularly level 4,
being necessary. Havering has a low proportion of people with skill levels of NVQ4 and above
with 25.7% of 16-64 year olds holding a qualification at this level and above, compared with 49.1%
across London and 36.0% across the UK. The percentage of 16-64 year olds with NVQ3 level
gualifications is also below the UK and London average, with Havering at 47.8% compared with
64.7% for London and 56.7% from the UK as a whole.

The borough also ranks low in the London tables for A Level and Equivalent Outcomes. For
example, the borough ranks 28" out of the 33 London boroughs in terms of Key Stage 5 points per
entry. This puts the number of points per entry at 4% below the London average.

Page 122 6




There is a historically significant issue of early school leaving with over 50% of the adult population
having left full-time education aged 16 or under. This means that Havering has the highest
proportion of the adult population that left education aged 16 or under compared with neighbouring
boroughs, which is significantly above the London average (24%).

Sources used:

http://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/Imp/la/1946157270/subreports/einact time series/report.aspx?

Havering Employment and Skills Plan 2018-21
Renaisi Havering Skills and Employment Study 2014

The Havering Data Story — Rocket Science November 2016

Disability: Consider the full range of disabilities; including physical mental, sensory and
progressive conditions

Please tick (v)
the relevant box: | Overall impact: Positive

. Y
Positive The Employment and Skills Plan will impact positively on this group of

residents as currently the support provided to this group of residents is un-
Neutral coordinated and often of an inconsistent quality. Through the delivery of the

Employment and Skills Plan, the Council will work to ensure that outcomes for
, this group of residents are monitored and that people with disabilities are able
Negative to influence the design and development of future support.

Evidence:

There are 7,788 residents aged between 16-64 living with moderate physical disabilities, and 809
people aged 16-64 with moderate or severe Learning Disabilities living in the borough. Gooshays,
Heaton, Romford Town and Havering Park have the highest numbers of claimants of Employment
Support Allowance (ESA), which support people who cannot find a job due to long term illness or

disability.

There is currently no specific provision within the borough for this group of residents and access to
mainstream provision is un-coordinated. There is strong evidence that health and wellbeing can
be enhanced through employment activity, and the Council is keen to utilise this route to enhance
the life chances and wellbeing of people with disabilities.

Through the delivery of the Employment and Skills Plan, the Council will facilitate support and
referral networks and will be able to monitor the impact of programmes. Access to activities and
referral networks will be maximised by coordinating with departments and services such as
Improving Access to Psychological Therapies (IAPT), Adult Social Care, Public Health, and
relevant voluntary and community sector organisations to make sure that these opportunities are
well publicised to those requiring them.

Sources used:

This is Havering

Page 123 !



http://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/lmp/la/1946157270/subreports/einact_time_series/report.aspx?

Sex/gender: Consider both men and women

Please tick (v)

the relevant box: | Overall impact: Positive

Positiv \Y . . , .
osttive Delivery of the Employment and Skills Plan will support all residents of

Havering and will be mindful of the responsibilities of those residents with
Neutral caring responsibilities for children and / or other family members.

There is some evidence of vender inequality in pay between males and
females within the borough, so we will work to raise attainment and
achievement levels to bring about a greater balance.

Negative _ _ _
The implementation of a Referral Management System will ensure that the
council is able to monitor and improve the support provided to both men and
women.

Evidence:

Males in Havering typically command higher salaries than their female counterparts (at £36,530
compared with £28,243). The Council will work to achieve greater wage equality for females
where possible but, as a whole, we will work with both groups to raise skill levels and progression
prospects since Havering experiences some of the lowest wage rates in London. This is
particularly relevant when set against rising housing and living costs and the impact of thresholds
of Housing Benefit Support.

Sources used:

GLA intelligence — Borough profiles
Nomis
The Havering Data Story — Rocket Science November 2016

Ethnicity/race: Consider the impact on different ethnic groups and nationalities

Please tick (v) Overall impact: Positive
the relevant box:

Havering is one of the most ethnically homogenous places in London, with

Positive v 83% of its residents recorded as White British; higher than both London and

England as a whole. About 90% of the borough’s population was born in the
Neutral United Kingdom. This is a changing picture, however, and continued growth

in the BAME population is expected. Delivery of the Employment and Skills
Plan will work to support BAME groups to actively participate in and benefit
from employment and skills interventions. BAME communities are a target

_ group for ESF funding so will particularly benefit from the employer brokerage
Negative service to be delivered through this route. The associated targets will be
integrated into the work programme of the Employment and Skills team. The
implementation of a Referral Management System will further ensure that the
Council is able to monitor and improve the support provided to BAME groups.

Page 124




Evidence:

While Havering is one of London’s least diverse boroughs, 10% of the population was born
outside of the UK according to the 2011 census. The majority of residents born outside of the UK
were from Ireland, Nigeria and India as well as Eastern Europe. It is projected that the Black
African population will increase from 3.8% in 2015 to 5.2% of the Havering population in 2030.

Sources used:

This is Havering 2016

Religion/faith: Consider people from different religions or beliefs including those with no
religion or belief

Please tick (v) Overall impact:
the relevant box:

- There is no information held at either local or national levels that can be used
Positive , . i

to carry out a viable EIA against this factor

Neutral \%
Negative
Evidence:

Please see above

Sources used:

N/A

Sexual orientation: Consider people who are heterosexual, lesbian, gay or bisexual

Please tick (v) Overall impact:
the relevant box:

- There is no information held at either local or national levels that can be used
Positive . g .

carry out a viable EIA against this factor

Neutral Vv
Negative
Evidence:

Please see above

Sources used:

N/A

Page 125




Gender reassignment: Consider people who are seeking, undergoing or have received
gender reassignment surgery, as well as people whose gender identity is different from
their gender at birth

Please tick (v) Overall impact:

the relevant box:

Positive There is no information held at either local or national levels that can be used
carry out a viable EIA against this factor

Neutral Vv

Negative

Evidence:

Please see above

Sources used:

N/A

Marriage/civil partnership: Consider people in a marriage or civil partnership

Please tick (v) Overall impact:

the relevant box:

Positive There is no information held at either local or national levels that can be used
carry out a viable EIA against this factor

Neutral Vv

Negative

Evidence:

Please see above

Sources used:

N/A

Pregnancy, maternity and paternity: Consider those who are pregnant and those who
are undertaking maternity or paternity leave

Please tick (v) Overall impact:
the relevant box:

There is no information held at either local or national levels that can be used

Positive carry out a viable EIA against this factor. However it is known that there

around 16,000 children in the borough aged 0-4 and, as part of the delivery of
Neutral the Employment and Skills Plan, we will be supporting parents (particularly

lone parents) to find flexible employment and training support to suit their
Negative circumstances.

Page 126 10




Evidence:

There are approximately 16,000 children aged 0-4 resident in the borough and 1,860 one parent
families in the borough. One parent families make up 80% of households that are affected by
Universal Credit. These parents will need to work to ensure they do not fall into arrears, face
eviction and possible homelessness, and so present themselves to the Council for support.
Without appropriate and accessible childcare, employment will be impossible to secure for
households that do not have access to other informal care arrangements (such as lone parents
and those without extended families). Some parts of the borough (e.g. Harold Wood) have
particularly high numbers of unemployed lone parents compared with the rest of the borough.

Sources used:

https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/Imp/la/1946157270/report.aspx

The Havering Data Story — Rocket Science November 2016

Socio-economic status: Consider those who are from low income or financially excluded
backgrounds

Please tick (v) Overall impact:
the relevant box:

The Employment and Skills Plan will specifically work with residents who are

Positive v from low income or financially excluded backgrounds, who will be able to

access support across a range of provision as outlined in the background to
Neutral this EIA. The support will be consistent, comprehensive and support residents

for as long as they wish to be supported to a) seek employment; b) gain
_ further skills and progression whilst in work, and c) transition to further
Negative opportunities.

Evidence:

The average gross annual pay for residents is £ 32,274.

There are 11,953 unemployed claimants in receipt of Housing Benefit. There are also 3,955
employed claimants in receipt of Housing Benefit, which means these households or individuals
are experiencing “in work poverty”.

Sources used:

London Borough of Havering Housing Benefits team
GLA Intelligence — borough profiles

Page 127 11



https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/lmp/la/1946157270/report.aspx

g¢T abed

Action Plan

type of provision
and success in
meeting the needs
of this group of
residents

accredited skills
Numbers supported into
non-accredited training
Numbers supported into
work experience
Numbers supported onto
Apprenticeships

Identified Action taken to
Protected : . L , ,
el s negative r_mtlgatf Outcomes and monitoring Timescale Lead officer
impact impact
People with No Referral Numbers of residents April 2018- March Deborah Moonasar
disabilities or Management accessing services 2021 (Skills and
long term System will Numbers supported into Business
Qc?ﬁlc;?tions monitor the take employment Engagement
up, quality and Numbers gaining Manager)
type of provision accredited skills
and success in Numbers supported into
meeting the needs non-accredited training
of this group of Numbers supported into
residents work experience
Numbers supported onto
Apprenticeships
Numbers supported into
volunteering opportunities
All age groups | No Referral Numbers of residents April 2018- March Deborah Moonasar
Management accessing services 2021 (Skills and
System will Numbers supported into Business
monitor the take employment Engagement
up, quality and Numbers gaining Manager)

12



62T obed

Protected

Identified

Action taken to

characteristic n_egative mitigate Outcomes and monitoring** Timescale Lead officer
impact impact*
¢ Numbers supported into
volunteering opportunities
People No Referral e Numbers of residents April 2018- March Deborah Moonasar
experiencing Management accessing services 2021 (Skills and
the full range of System will e Numbers supported into Business
idr:iﬁch;lilr?;S’ monitor the take employment Engagement
physical up, quality and e Numbers gaining Manager)
mental, type of provision accredited skills
sensory and and success in e Numbers supported into
progressive meeting the needs non-accredited training
conditions of this group of e Numbers supported into
residents work experience
e Numbers supported onto
Apprenticeships
¢ Numbers supported into
volunteering opportunities
Men and No Referral ¢ Numbers of residents April 2018- March Deborah Moonasar
Women Management accessing services 2021 (Skills and
System wiill e Numbers supported into Business
monitor the take employment Engagement
up, quality and e Numbers gaining Manager)

type of provision
and success in
meeting the needs
of this group of
residents

accredited skills

¢ Numbers supported into
non-accredited training

¢ Numbers supported into
work experience

e Numbers supported onto

13



0¢T abed

Protected

Identified

Action taken to

characteristic n_egative mitigate Outcomes and monitoring** Timescale Lead officer
impact impact*
Apprenticeships
¢ Numbers supported into
volunteering opportunities
Minority ethnic | No Referral ¢ Numbers of residents April 2018- March Deborah Moonasar
groups and Management accessing services 2021 (Skills and
nationalities System will e Numbers supported into Business
monitor the take employment Engagement
up, quality and e Numbers gaining Manager)
type of provision accredited skills
and success in e Numbers supported into
meeting the needs non-accredited training
of this group of e Numbers supported into
residents work experience
¢ Numbers supported onto
Apprenticeships
¢ Numbers supported into
volunteering opportunities
Those who are | No Referral ¢ Numbers of residents April 2018- March Deborah Moonasar
pregnant and Management accessing services 2021 (Skills and
those who are System will e Numbers supported into Business
lr%naotlz:tn?:(mo% monitor the take employment Engagement
Y up, quality and e Numbers gaining Manager)

paternity leave

type of provision
and success in
meeting the needs
of this group of

accredited skills
¢ Numbers supported into
non-accredited training
e Numbers supported into
work experience

14



TET obed

Protected Identif_ied Action_taken to - _ _
L negative mitigate Outcomes and monitoring** Timescale Lead officer
characteristic . .
impact impact*
residents Numbers supported onto
Apprenticeships
Numbers supported into
volunteering opportunities
Those who are | No Referral Numbers of residents April 2018- March Deborah Moonasar
from low Management accessing services 2021 (Skills and
:‘innce?nn;ieaﬁ; System wiill Numbers supported into Business
excluded monitor .the take employment Engagement
backgrounds up, quality and Numbers gaining Manager)
type of provision accredited skills
and success in Numbers supported into
meeting the needs non-accredited training
of this group of Numbers supported into
residents work experience
Numbers supported onto
Apprenticeships
Numbers supported into
volunteering opportunities
Review

e This Equalities Impact Assessment will be reviewed annually. The next review will be carried out by 30" April 2019.

e The review will reflect quantitative data accessed from the Referral Management System in relation to the outcomes
achieved by the groups identified within this Equalities Impact Assessment. The Referral Management System will collect
and collate data on residents generically and will be able to provide comparative reports on the benefits delivered to
residents with “Protected Characteristics”. Data will be anonymised and handled in accordance with the General Data
Protection Regulations (GPDR) to be implemented from May 2018.

15



ZsT abed

The review will also capture feedback from residents who have accessed employment and skills provision. This data will be
compiled throughout the year and capture information on the quality, suitability and appropriateness of provision to meet their
needs.

16



_ Agenda Iltem 8
Havering

LONDON BOROUGH

CABINET
11 APRIL 2018

Subject Heading: Quarter 3 Corporate Performance Report
(2017/18)

Cabinet Member: Councillor Clarence Barrett

SLT Lead: Jane West, Chief Operating Officer

Report Author and contact details: Pippa Brent-Isherwood, Assistant Director

of Policy, Performance and Community
phillipa.brent-isherwood @havering.gov.uk
01708 431950

Policy context: The report sets out Quarter 3 performance
against each of the strategic goals set out
in the Corporate Plan

Financial summary: There are no direct financial implications
arising from this report. However adverse
performance against some corporate
performance indicators may have financial
implications for the Council.

All service directorates are required to
achieve their performance targets within
approved budgets. The Senior Leadership
Team (SLT) is actively monitoring and
managing resources to remain within
budgets, although several service areas
continue to experience financial pressure
from demand led services.

Is this a Key Decision? No

Page 133


mailto:phillipa.brent-isherwood@havering.gov.uk

Cabinet, 11 April 2018

Is this a Strategic Decision? No

When should this matter be reviewed? The Corporate Performance Report will be
brought to Cabinet at the end of each
guarter, with an annual report brought at
the end of Quarter 4.

Reviewing OSC: The six overview and scrutiny sub-
committees (Children and Learning, Crime
and Disorder, Environment, Health,
Individuals, Towns and Communities)
have each selected a basket of indicators
that they will track performance against
throughout the year. Progress against
these indicators will be reported to the
Overview and Scrutiny Board on a
guarterly basis. Many of these will either
duplicate or be “feeder” indicators for the
Pls featured in the Corporate Performance
Report.

The subject matter of this report deals with the following Council Objectives

Communities making Havering [X]
Places making Havering [X]
Opportunities making Havering [X]
Connections making Havering [X]
SUMMARY
1. The Corporate Performance Report provides an overview of the Council’s

performance against each of the strategic goals. The report highlights areas of
strong performance and potential areas for improvement.

2. The report identifies where the Council is performing well ( ) and not so
well ( ). The definitions applied to the report are as follows:

. = outside of the quarterly target, or ‘off track’
. = on or better than the quarterly target, or ‘on track’
3. Where performance is rated as ", ‘Corrective Action’ is included in the

report. This highlights what action the Council will take to improve performance.

4. Also included in the report are Direction of Travel (DoT) columns, which
compare:

e Short-term performance — with the previous quarter (Quarter 2 2017/18)
e Long-term performance — with the same time the previous year (Quarter 3

2016/17) page 134



Cabinet, 11 April 2018

5. A green arrow () means performance is better and a red arrow (/) means
performance is worse. An amber arrow (- ) means that performance has
remained the same.

6. For Quarter 3, a or status has been provided for 37 of the 47
Corporate Performance Indicators and five of the 18 perception / engagement
indicators.

Quarter 3 Summary — Corporate Performance Indicators

Communities 6 8
Connections 2 4
] Red
. Green
Opportunities 2 5
Places 3 7
0 5 10 15
Quarter 3 Summary — Perception / Engagement Indicators
1
Red
Green
4
7. In summary, of those PIs classified as either on track or off track:
o 24 (65%) of the Corporate Performance Indicators have a (on
track) status
e 13 (35%) of the Corporate Performance Indicators have a (off track)
status

Page 135



Cabinet, 11 April 2018

e 4 (80%) of the reported perception / engagement indicators have a
(on track) status

e 1 (20%) of the reported perception / engagement indicators has a
(off track) status

This is a decline in performance on the position at the end of Quarter 2 (when

71% of performance indicators were rated and 29% were rated as )
but an improvement since Quarter 2 in terms of the perception / engagement
indicators (from 75% being rated and 25% being rated ).

The current levels of performance need to be interpreted in the context of
increasing demand on services across the Council. Also attached to the report
(as Appendix 2) is a Demand Pressures Dashboard that illustrates the growing
demands on Council services and the context that the performance levels set
out in this report have been achieved within.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That the Cabinet:

1. Reviews the performance set out in Appendix 1 and the corrective action that

is being taken.

2. Notes the content of the Demand Pressures Dashboard attached as Appendix

2.

REPORT DETAIL

COMMUNITIES MAKING HAVERING

1.

1.1

The Council’s progress in delivering this theme of the Corporate Plan has been
broadly positive, with performance against 57% (8 of 14) indicators being rated
Green or “On Track”.

Highlights:

(Pl 7) Pupil progress in eight subjects from the end of primary to the end of
secondary school (the “Progress 8” score) improved on last year, resulting in
Havering’s ranking improving 42 places to 72 out of 152.

(PI 8) The proportion of looked after children who cease to be looked after as a
result of permanency continues to improve and was above target at the end of
Quarter 3. Up until the end of December, 24 children had been granted either
an Adoption or Special Guardianship Order, which is significantly improved on
last year’s outturn.

(PI 17) Take-up of self-directed support (SDS) within Adult Social Care is above
target and improved on both the previous quarter and the same time last year.
As at the end of Decemberpaeg@ WeBG 1,766 service users receiving their care



Cabinet, 11 April 2018

1.2

through SDS, representing 87.7% of service users. At the same time the
previous year, there were 1,775 recipients of self-directed support, representing
85.1% of the client base.

Improvements required:

(PI 1) Indicative figures suggest that rates of reoffending for those completing
alcohol treatment referrals and drug rehabilitation requirements are significantly
higher than target. Many offenders have complex needs relating to issues such
as substance misuse, mental health and housing issues. The Council’s
commissioned drug and alcohol support services provider is drafting a joint
working protocol with Mental Health and Children’s Services to reduce
offenders’ propensity to re-offend. The Community Rehabilitation Company
(CRC) has also employed a specific Interventions Manager to improve
communications with partner agencies so that risks of re-offending can be
identified and addressed at an earlier stage.

(Pl 13) The percentage of care leavers in education, employment or training is
significantly below target. However it should be noted that the local target was
set to be deliberately stretching. Havering performs well against this measure
compared with other London boroughs, ranking 7" out of 33 in a peer
benchmarking exercise carried out in September 2017. There is an ongoing
focus on the outcomes of care leavers through the Face to Face Pathways
Innovation Programme. A job club officially started on 22 February at The
Cocoon following a successful funding bid to the DWP. An application has also
been made to the DWP Community Budget to enable a programme to be
delivered aimed at supporting young people to attain employment and/or
embark on further education.

CONNECTIONS MAKING HAVERING

2.

2.1

2.2

The Council’s progress in delivering this theme of the Corporate Plan has been
positive, with performance against 67% (4 of 6) indicators being rated Green or
“On Track”.

Highlights:

(Pl 21) There has been a further reduction in avoidable contact for Customer
Services during this quarter. Performance against this indicator is now firmly
below target (where lower is better), at 18.28% against a target of 25%. This
means there are fewer customers seeking clarification of correspondence,
chasing visits (e.g. repairs or missed waste) or the status of applications /
correspondence submitted.

Improvements required:

(P1 22) The programme at Beam Park Station has slipped due to a gas pipeline
intruding into the platform area and delays in partners signing off the design of
the station. Following a high level meeting with the GLA, the slippage due to the
pipeline and subsequent redesign work has now been resolved. The GLA is how
taking full project responsibility, post GRIP 3 (design stage) through to
completion. Officers will continue to liaise with the GLA and other partners to
ensure this integral part of the B'S%Inégailgdfzvelopment is delivered on time.



Cabinet, 11 April 2018

OPPORTUNITIES MAKING HAVERING

3.1

3.2

The Council’s progress in delivering this theme of the Corporate Plan has been
positive, with performance against 71% (5 of 7) indicators being rated Green or
“On Track”.

Highlights:

(Pl 28) The number of investment enquiries converted into a new business or
expansion has exceeded the annual target. During Quarter 3, six businesses
relocated within the borough (safeguarding jobs and retaining business rates)
and 47 new businesses moved into Havering.

(PI 33) At the time of writing, the planning application for the proposed new
Hornchurch Sports Centre is to be considered by the Planning Committee on 5
April 2018. Tenders for the construction have been received and awarded,
subject to planning permission being granted. Construction is due to commence
in May 2018.

Improvements required:

(Pl 35) The number of businesses expressing an interest in relocating to the
Borough which have a turnover of £10m+ or international recognition is
considerably below target. This is a new indicator and the target set was overly
ambitious particularly in light of the increase of permitted development activity in
the borough. The Economic Development Strategy and Master Planning for
Romford Town Centre will seek to address the current retraction in commercial
development to create a balanced environment going forward. An inward
investment magazine and campaign have also been launched to an audience of
industry leaders from various development, planning and architecture
organisations at an event in central London.

PLACES MAKING HAVERING

4.

4.1

4.2

The Council’'s progress in delivering this theme of the Corporate Plan is also
strong, with performance against 70% (7 of 10) indicators being rated Green or
“On Track”.

Highlights:

(Pl 41) The number of anti-social behaviour (ASB) offences committed during
the first nine months of the financial year is 12% below the profiled target and
13% below the number that had been committed at the same point last year. A
reduction of 623 calls against last year represents good progress towards
achieving the year end target of fewer than 6,100 incidents.

(Pl 43) The proportion of adult safeguarding cases in which the adult’s desired
outcomes were expressed and either fully or partially met (at 96.2%) is above
target and improved on both the previous quarter and the same time last year.

Improvements required:

(P1 38) The level of waste per head of population presented to the East London
Waste Authority (ELWA) is above target and higher than during Quarter 2. If
tonnages continue at this level during Quarter 4, we will outturn slightly above
target, however tonnages are projected to decrease through the winter months

Page 138



Cabinet, 11 April 2018

as the amount of garden waste reduces. The Waste team continues to deliver
various waste prevention campaigns and the Council is reviewing operations in
Highways and Grounds Maintenance in order to reduce waste. Along with the
ELWA, the Council is also considering strengthening policies targeting potential
commercial waste entering the domestic waste stream at the household
recycling centre.

(P1 39) The number of burglary offences committed remains above target and is
higher than last quarter. Residential burglary has increased by 37% compared
to the same period last year despite pre-planned targeted operations in the run
up to Christmas to disrupt offenders. Delivery of Safe Zones will continue to
increase awareness of crime prevention in areas which have historically
experienced burglary and the police will continue to raise awareness of simple,
proven and cost-effective products to deter burglars.

(PI 40) The number of non-domestic violence with injury offences committed is
slightly above target, at 1,002 to the end of Quarter 3, against a target of 996.
Havering has seen a 2.8% increase in this crime type, whilst London as a whole
has seen a 3.2% increase. In December 2017, two multi-agency nights of action
were held in Romford and Hornchurch which involved licensing inspections,
swabbing of premises for drugs, and stops and searches of individuals, which
resulted in several arrests. Feedback from licenced premises and door staff was
very positive, and further operations are planned for the coming months.

PERCEPTION / ENGAGEMENT INDICATORS

5.1

5.2

Highlights:

67% of families supported by the Early Help service between January and
December 2017 showed continued overall progress following their initial
assessment, against a target of 50%.

Improvements required:

The percentage of respondents to the Police Public Attitudes Survey who are
worried about crime in the area has improved compared with the previous
quarter and previous year, but is slightly above target, at 29% against a target of
28%. The Community Safety Communications Plan continues to be delivered to
help reassure residents that Havering remains a relatively safe borough in which
to live and work. Findings from the survey will inform the development of the
communications plan for the year ahead.

The full Corporate Performance Report is attached as Appendix 1.

REASONS AND OPTIONS

Reasons for the decision: To provide Cabinet Members with an update on the
Council’'s performance against each of the strategic goals set out in the Corporate Plan

Page 139



Cabinet, 11 April 2018

Other options considered: N/A

IMPLICATIONS AND RISKS

Financial implications and risks:

There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. However adverse
performance against some Corporate Performance Indicators may have financial
implications for the Council.

All service directorates are required to achieve their performance targets within
approved budgets. The Senior Leadership Team (SLT) is actively monitoring and
managing resources to remain within budgets, although several service areas continue
to experience significant financial pressures in relation to a number of demand led
services such as Housing and Children’s and Adults’ Social Care. SLT officers are
focused upon controlling expenditure within approved directorate budgets and within
the total General Fund budget through delivery of savings plans and mitigation plans to
address new pressures that are arising within the year.

Further information on the financial performance of the Council has been reported as
part of the Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) report to the Cabinet in February.

Human Resources implications and risks:

There are not any implications arising directly from this report that impact on the
Council’s workforce.

Legal implications and risks:

Whilst reporting on performance is not a statutory requirement, it is considered best
practice to review the Council’s progress against the Corporate Plan and Service Plans
on a regular basis.

Equalities implications and risks:

The following Corporate Performance Indicators currently rated as “Red” could
potentially have equality and social inclusion implications for a number of different
social groups if performance does not improve:

e (Pl 1) Rates of reoffending for those individual offenders completing drug and
alcohol treatment referrals (measured through a follow-up 6 months after
completion)

e (Pl 4) Percentage of looked after children who are in long term foster
placements (lasting 18 months +)

e (PI 5) School readiness - % of children achieving a good or better level of
development at age 5 (EYFSP)

e (PI6) % of children in good or outstanding schools

e (PI 10) Carers receiving a needs assessment or review and a specific carer’s
service, or advice and information

e (Pl 13) Percentage of care leavers in both education, employment or training
and suitable accommodatio?)

age 140



Cabinet, 11 April 2018

e (PI 39) Number of burglary offences
e (PI1 40) The number of non-domestic violence with injury offences

The commentary for each indicator provides further detail on steps that will be taken to
improve performance and mitigate these potential inequalities.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

The Corporate Plan 2017/18 is available on the Council’s website at:
https://www.havering.gov.uk/downloads/download/575/corporate and service plans

Page 141


https://www.havering.gov.uk/downloads/download/575/corporate_and_service_plans

This page is intentionally left blank



Corporate Performance Report: Quarter 3 2017/18

RAG Rating

Direction of Travel (DOT)

GREEN

On or better than target
On track

Short Term: Performance is better than the previous quarter
Long Term: Performance is better than at the same point last year

RED

Worse than target
Off track

Short Term: Performance is the same as the previous quarter
Long Term: Performance is the same as at the same point last year

Short Term: Performance is worse than the previous quarter
Long Term: Performance is worse than at the same point last year

Line.no

Indicator and Description

Value

2017/18 Annual
Target

2017/18 Q3
Target

2017/18 Q3
Performance

Short Term DOT against Long Term DOT against

Q2 2017/18

Q3 2016/17

4¢ Havering

LONDON BOROUGH

Description
Outturns reported cumulatively (C)
QOutturns reported as a snapshot (S)
Outturns reported as a rolling year (R)

Comments

Service
& Supporting Service

Communities: Healthy and Active Lives

abed

v

Rates of reoffending for those
individual offenders completing
drug and alcohol treatment referrals
(measured through a follow-up 6
months after completion)

Smaller is
better

14% (Alcohol)

38% (Drugs)

14%
(Alcohol)

38% (Drugs)

39% (Alcohol)
45% (Drugs)

RED

- NEW

NEW

Following Q3, the rate of those reoffending following completion of an Alcohol
Treatment Requirement is at 39%, significantly higher than our target of 14%. The re-
offending rate for those completing Drug Rehabilitation Requirements has seen a rate
of re-offending at 45% compared to our target of 38%.

Corrective Action: Many offenders have complex needs, e.g. relating to substance
misuse, mental health, housing and homelessness issues. The Council's
commissioned drug and alcohold support services provider (the Westminster Drugs
Project) is drafting a joint working protocol with mental health and children's services in
order to help offenders develop more effective coping strategies and so reduce their
propensity to use drugs and re-offend. Work is also taking place to strengthen the
relationship with the National Probation Service and the Community Rehabilitation
Company, both of which have struggled to attend meetings recently due to
restructuring and other priorities within their own organisations. The CRC has now
employed a specific Interventions Manager to improve communications with partner
agencies so that risks of re-offending can be identified and addressed at an earlier
stage.

Policy, Performance
& Community
« Public Health

erl

The number of people who die from
preventable causes like
deprivation, accidents, and air
quality — but not related to clinical
care, per 100,000 population (R)

Smaller is
better

Better than
England (Annual
3-year rolling
period)

Better than
England
(Annual 3-
year rolling
period)

164 per 100,000
population
(2014-2016)
GREEN

- N/A

157 per 100,000
population
(2013-2015)

The latest available data relates to the period 2014 - 2016. For this period, Havering's
mortality rate from preventable causes (164/100,000) was not significantly different
from the London average (169/100,000) but was significantly lower than the England
average (183/100,000).

Although the 2014-2016 rate for Havering appears higher than the previous period
(2013-2015), the difference is not statistically significant.

Public Health
* Environment
« Adult Services
« Children’s Services

% of people (aged 65 and over)
who were still at home 91 days
after discharge from hospital into
reablement / rehabilitation services

Bigger is
better

87%

N/A

N/A

- N/A

N/A

This indicator is not measured until Q4

Adult Services

Commun

ties: A good start for every chi

d to reach their full potential

% of LAC who are in long term
foster placements (18 months+)

Bigger is
better

65%

65%

61.5%
RED

64.4%

NEW

There are currently 88/143 Looked After Children who have been in their placement for
at least 18 months. However there are a number of LAC who have been in their
placements for just short of 18 months so we should see improvements in the
upcoming months.

Corrective Action: There is a service wide focus on looked after children being cared
for in a suitable and long term family environment. In the first instance consideration is
given to adoption and Special Guardianship Orders, however long term fostering is in
the best interests of many LAC. The number of LAC achieving permanency through an
SGO has increased this year and it is likely that the other consideration for these
children would have been long term fostering. If we combine the % of LAC in long term
fostering with the % granted an SGO or adoption we can see that over 80% of our LAC
are achieving permanency through some means. This focus on permanency will
continue.

Children’s Services




Line.no Indicator and Descrition value 2017/18 Annual 2017/18 Q3 2017/18 Q3 Short Term DOT against Long Term DOT against Comments Service
. P Target Target Performance Q2 2017/18 Q3 2016/17 & Supporting Service
The proportion of children achieving a Good or better level of development at age 5
improved again this year and remains above national levels (with Havering ranked
52nd out of 152 local authorities), but did not quite reach the local target.
’ o . o .
Schoql readiness - % of children Bigger is 2% 71% Corrective Action: The LA has applied to the Strategic School Improvement Fund Lea_\rnlng &
5 achieving a good or better level of 73% 73% (2016-17) - N/A . P ! " . Achievement
development at age 5 (EYFSP) better RED (15/16 Results) |(SSIF) to help improve pupil judgements. From the first round of funding, a bid for a . Children’s Services
joint venture with Redden Court and Royal Liberty was successful. The second round
of applications for funding shut at the end of October, in which a joint venture with
Broadford and Mead proposed a programme to raise the number of pupils achieving
higher attainment levels at the foundation stage. This funding bid was successful
The percentage of children in good or outstanding schools has decreased during Q3
from 84% to 81% and is now just below target.
There were three inspections during the last quarter. One school retained its previous
judgement, one came out of special measures and one school fell from a Good rating .
% of children in good or Bigger is 81% to Requires Improvement Learning &
6 . 83% 83% 84% 80% ’ Achievement
outstanding schools better RED . Children’s Servi
Corrective Action: Havering schools had been under inspected up to the end of ens services
Quarter 3, with only six inspections taking place to date compared with 12 to 15 for the
same period in previous years. There have been 11 inspections in Quarter 4, the
outcomes of five of which are yet to be reported publicly. If initial judgements remain,
T we should see an improvement in performance of one percentage point by year end.
Q-) iﬁg';ﬁ;og;esrm;s s;éﬂggﬁ(‘)ftrs: Bigger is -0.04 014 The Progress 8 score improved upon last year’s result to be in line with the state- Learning &
10 p Y . 99 -0.1 N/A (2016/17) -0.04 . funded national average (-0.03), resulting in Havering's national rank improving 42 Achievement
end of secondary school (“Progress| better (15/16 Results) ) , .
() ” GREEN places to 72 of 152. « Children’s Services
8” score)
E % of looked after children who So far this period 2017/18 we have seen 24 children cease to be looked after due to
ceased to be looked after as a Bigger is o o 26.7% o o the granting of an adoption order or a special guardianship order, which gives us a " 5 .
8 .b result of permanency (Adoption and|  better 20% 20% GREEN 21.3% 15.9% year to date outturn of 26.7%. This is a great improvement on our 16/17 outturn of Children’s Services
Special Guardianship Order) 14.7%, and comfortably above our 17/18 target of 20%.
- . . . Learning &
0, 0,
9 % of par_en_ts rece|y|ng an offer of | Bigger is 85% primary N/A N/A - NEW NEW Data is available on an annual basis and will be available in the Q4 report Achievement
their first choice school better 80% secondary h , :
« Children’s Services
Communities: Families and communities look after themselves and each other
To date 402 carers have been assessed. At the same stage last year there had been
Carers receiving a needs 680.
10 assessment or review and a Bigger is 620 240.8 203.9 140 335 Adult Services
specific carer's service, or advice better ’ RED Corrective Action: Work is currently ongoing to identify where carers have been
and information involved in an assessment in order to data cleanse. Significant improvements are
expected in Q4.
Performance is very strong and the year end target was exceeded in Quarter 2. )
. Policy, Performance
Performance has decreased as the end of Quarter 3 but has still surpassed the end of X
X N and Community
year target. The strong performance can particularly be attributed to the success of . Cult d Cust
11 Number of volunteers supporting | Bigger is 1135 1090 1,172 1226 NEW volunteering initiatives within Housing Services. The largest drop in volunteers for this u ure;\an ustomer
Council services better ! ’ GREEN ’ quarter was in Library Services. This is due to seasonal variance as students who . Hcce§s
were available during the summer period to support the Summer Events Programme . Child o,usgg .
have now returned to colleague and university etc. Libraries have also experienced raren’s services
. N . « Environment
success in volunteers securing paid employment.
. This indicator is currently in development by the Joint Commissioning Unit and will be
Placeholder: Reported outcomes Bigger is co-produced with newly commissioned providers. The start of the new contracts has Adult Services
12 for residents delivered by the 99 TBC (Annual) N/A N/A - N/A N/A p Y p ) K N
X better been delayed from September to February, hence the delay in confirming the target «JCU
community and voluntary sector ) ) S
and outturns associated with this indicator.

Communities: Supporting vulnerable residents in our communities




Linene Indicator and Description Value 2017/18 Annual 2017/18 Q3 2017/18 Q3 Short Term DOT against Long Term DOT against ST Service
. Target Target Performance Q2 2017/18 Q3 2016/17 & Supporting Service
There are currently 81/146 Care Leavers that are in both education, employment or
training and suitable accommodation. Prospects is commissioned to work with schools
to identify those at risk of not participating and provide early intervention to reduce
NEET levels locally. Care leavers are specifically targeted for support. It is also
important to note that, whilst current performance against this indicator is disappointing
to the Council, the local target was set to be deliberately stretching. Havering
performs well against this measure compared with other London boroughs, ranking 7th
out of 33 in a peer benchmarking exercise carried out in September 2017.
Corrective Action: There is an ongoing focus on the outcomes of care leavers through
the Face to Face Pathways Innovation Programme. Most recently, an application has
% of care leavers in both Bigger is 55.5% been made to the DWP Community Budget to enable us to deliver a programme| Children’s Services
13 education, employment or training better 75% 75% RiED 55.2% 55.2% aimed at supporting young people to attain employment and/or embark on further| < Policy, Performance
and suitable accommodation education. If successful, the programme will be launched in four phases and will focus and Community
on functional skills qualifications, becoming ‘work-ready’ and stepping into
employment. In addition to this, the Council has been awarded funding from the DWP
to set up a Job Club at The Cocoon. The Job Club will officially start on 22/02/18 and
will operate on a fortnightly basis. To start with, the Job Club will be comprised of drop.
in sessions that provide practical support and help to unemployed young people in
care and care leavers aged 16 — 24. We will also bring in employers, agencies and
service providers to contribute their expertise, skills and training to the Job Club during
events and workshops. The % of care leavers in suitable accommodation remains
above the 95% target. Consideration is being given to ensuring that the categorising of
the accommodation as ‘suitable’ takes into account the young person’s view as well as
that of the professionals involved.
0
Q) The reduction against last year can be largely attributed to a repeat rate of 6.2% in Policy, Performance
1£Q The proportion of repeat victims of | Smaller is 27% 27% 25.2% 25.8% 29.5% July 2017 against an otherwise regular level of demand. This in turn has lowered the and Community
() domestic abuse (C) better GREEN : ’ average rate to 25.2%, which sets Havering on course to achieve the annual target of » Adult Services
L an average rate lower than 27%. « Children’s Services
.b Number of families assisted in An increase in prevention activity means that families can remain in their
finding their own housing Bigger is 60% accommodation or move into alternative accommodation before they become .
1501 solution/prevented from becoming better 40% 40% GREEN 69.4% . NEW homeless. Therefore, the need for temporary accommodation which can be costly and Housing
homeless per month unsuitable is reduced.
Rate of permanent admissions to Smaller is 356.8 At the end of quarter 3, there had been 165 older people newly admitted into long term
16 residential and nursing care homes 660 480 . 209.8 538.6 residential or nursing care. At the same stage last year there had been 247. As with Adult Services
. better GREEN . L I
per 100,000 population (aged 65+) previous quarters the majority of new admissions are over the age of 85.
Number of adults and older people There has been an increase in the percentage of people who receive their care via self
who can choose how their support Bigger is 87.7% directed support from Quarter 2 to Quarter 3. There has also been an increase in the
17 is provided to meet agreed health better 86% 86% GREEN 86.5% 85.1% percentage of people who receive this service from December 2016 to December Adult Services
and social care outcomes in the 2017. As at December 2017 there were 1,766 people receiving their service through
year (self-directed support) self-directed support.
The number of instances where an There is no target for this indicator as the definition was not approved until well into
adult patient is ready leave hospital 17/18. There is also no long term direction of travel as the measurement of this
18 for home or move to aless acute | Smaller is TBC TBC 5.02 6.3 R N/A indicator changed from _16_/17 tq 17/18. To date in 17/18 there has been an average of Adult Services
stage of care but is prevented from | better 11.69 days delayed. This is an improvement on Q2, when there was an average of
doing so, per 100,000 population 12.4. Data for this indicator is likely to change for the positive due to resubmissions of
(delayed transfers of care) Non Acute data.
Pla(;%rli:do‘iiciaségi?;nr?ﬁ;:nng Bigger is This_indicator is curreptl_y_ in development by the Joint Commi_ssioning Unit. _'_rhe Adult Services
19 ) ) TBC TBC N/A - NEW - NEW service has collected initial data, which appears largely positive, but is awaiting
community service (home care better - e . B «JCU
service) independent verification of these results from Healthwatch before reporting this.

Connections: A digitally enabled borough




Line.no

Indicator and Description

Value

2017/18 Annual
Target

2017/18 Q3
Target

2017/18 Q3
Performance

Q2 2017/18

Short Term DOT against Long Term DOT against

Q3 2016/17

Comments

Service
& Supporting Service

20

Improved Socitm score for the
www.havering.gov.uk website

Bigger is
better

NIA GREEN

The Council has been awarded 3 out of 4 stars in a review of its website and how it
provides quick and easy ‘customer journeys’. The Better Connected survey was
carried out on 416 council websites by The Society of IT Managers in the Public Sector
(Socitm). As well as performance in tasks, the survey looks at the quality of a
website’s search function and its accessibility for mobile devices and for people with
disabilities. The result puts Havering in the ‘providing a good service’ category and
recognises the improvements taking place as part of our Customer Experience
Programme to improve the way we do business with our customers. A web review
project was started in the wake of the web project ending to further improve the
customer user experience and start the more detailed page rewrites to eliminate any
customer confusion as they transacted with us. The Socitm report highlighted Adult
Social Care as being in need of an improved journey and as such a dedicated working
group has formed to bring Carepoint content onto the Havering website whilst
overhauling the entire ASC offering on the site.

Culture and Customer
Access /
Transformation
» OneSource (ICT)

21

Avoidable customer contact for
Customer Services

Smaller is
better

25%

18.28%

0
25% GREEN

22.23%

NEW

Monitored monthly within a two hour sample window period, Q3 has experienced a
reduction in avoidable contact being recorded by the Contact Centre. The main
reasons for avoidable contact are customers seeking clarification of correspondence
issued and chasing visits (e.g. repairs, missed waste ) and the status of various
applications / correspondence they have submitted.

During Q3 Customer Services handled 80,633 calls. 18.28% (amounting to 14,745
calls) could be classed as unnecessary.

Culture and Customer
Access /
Transformation
» OneSource (ICT)

Conned&gons: Capitalising on our location and connectivity

Completion of Governance for
Railway Investment Projects
(GRIP) stage 3 at Beam Park
station by November 2017

N/A

GRIP stage 3
achieved

N/A Off Track

Off Track

NEW

The programme has slipped for GRIP 3 completion due to gas pipeline issues and
delays to design sign off by C2C. The GLA has agreed to convert additional funding
required to complete the GRIP 3 process to non repayable grant subject to LBH
agreeing the terms of a Deed of Variation.

Corrective Action: Following a high level meeting with the GLA, the slippage due to
the pipeline and subsequent redesign work has now been resolved. The GLA is now
taking full project responsibility, post GRIP 3 (design stage) through to completion.
Officers will continue to liaise with the GLA and other partners to ensure this integral
part of the Beam Park development is delivered on time.

Development

23

Delivery of public realm
improvements at the borough’s
three Crossrail stations

N/A

Improvements
delivered

N/A Off Track

Off Track

NEW

Romford Crossrail supplementary works have now been completed. Gidea Park
works are on track and progressing well. The Harold Wood scheme is not on track
due to a slipped programme from a Crossrail contractor, over which Havering has no
direct control.

Corrective Action: It has been agreed with TFL to carry forward funding to 2018/19 to
achieve full spend and deliver works. Consequently the end date has now changed to
accommodate the delay.

Development

Connections: Fast and accessible transport links

24

Improve air quality in the borough
by reducing the level of NO2

Smaller is
better

40 pgm-3

N/A N/A

NEW

NEW

The Air Quality Action Plan has been given approval at Cabinet, and consultation
launched which ends on 18/03/18. The GLA has responded with only small
amendments required and complimenting it as a, 'well put together plan'.

The Council has also had conversations with the GLA regarding major investment in
transport infrastructure to provide residents with better and more suitable transport
choices. These will inevitably contribute to meeting this Performance Indicator
resulting in lower emissions.

Environment
« Development

Connections: Access to jobs and opportunities




Linene Indicator and Description Value 2017/18 Annual 2017/18 Q3 2017/18 Q3 Short Term DOT against Long Term DOT against ST Service
. Target Target Performance Q2 2017/18 Q3 2016/17 & Supporting Service
This indicator looks at the percentage of people subject to the ‘Care Programme
. . . Approach’ who are in paid employment. The number of people subject to the CPA will .
Proportion of adults in contact with Bigger is 8.7% vary across the course of the year. There has been a drop in the number of people Adult Services
% secondary mental health services | oy o 7.2% 2% GREEN 10.9% 7.8% who are on CPA from December 2016 to December 2017 (a decrease from 604 in + Policy, Performance
in paid employment December 2016 to 527 in December 2017). There has also been a decrease in the and Community
number of service users with mental health needs (on CPA) who are in paid
employment from 68 in September 2017 to 46 in December 2017. However as a
percentage, performance has overall improved from 2016/17 and is above target
Proportion of adults with learning | Bigger is 4.3% Performance for this measure is currently on target . We currently have 22 service Adult Services
26 R X 8.3% 4.3% X - N/A 4.3% users with a learning disability in paid employment. At the same stage last year there | « Policy, Performance
disabilities in paid employment better GREEN "
were also 22. and Community
Opportunities: First class business opportunities
The PI encourages strategic growth in London Riverside by supporting CEME in
increasing workspace and providing relevant support to young businesses in a
prominent sector for the borough. The Pl complements the corporate priority
Number of jobs created and identified in the Corporate Plan as “Opportunities making Havering” by maximising
safeguarded through Economic Bigger is 0 opportunities for businesses in the borough. pevelopment
27 , : . 10 1 0 NEW « Policy, Performance
Development’s London Riverside better RED R
Programmes Corrective Action: The target is based on a 2 year programme, which ends on and Community
31/01/19. CEME and LBH are re-profiling the outcomes because staff changes within
CEME have created a delay in achieving quarterly targets. Targets should be on track
by programme end.
. . Performance is strong and has exceeded the year end target. There was a total of 53
Number of investment enquiries to . . e X . s
. Bigger is 81 new/safeguarded businesses in Q3, 6 of the businesses have relocated within the Development
28 the Borough converted into a new 50 38 28 NEW I . . X -
-U business or expansion better GREEN borough, safeguar_dlng jobs and retaining business rates, and 47 new businesses » Communications
QD moved into Havering.
Q Total number of planning
D applications approved for new or Bigger is
29|_\ extended commercial floor space, kggtter 75 N/A N/A - NEW NEW This is an annual target. Data collection is underway for reporting in Q4. Development
-b providing at least or greater than
~ 100sq of floor space.
Opportunities: High-quality skills and careers
The NEET and Not Known three month average was changed by the DfE to cover the
December, January and February period, rather than the historical calculation which
was based upon the November, December and January figures.
4.2% is an indicative figure based on the following: Learning &
% of 16-18 year olds who are not Smaller is 4.2% Final December 2017 performance was 4.2% Achievement
30 in education, employment or better 4.3% 4.3% (Provisional) 3.6% NEW Provisional January 2018 performance was 4.2% « Policy, Performance
training or not known GREEN Resulting in the indicative Dec to Feb average of 4.2% if the figures remain the same ’ .
for Februar and Community
y
As a result of the new combined measure the methodology has changed, resulting in a
slight manufactured increase compared to last outturn. Performance remains better
than target
Learning &
a1 Number of apprentices (aged 16- | Bigger is 770 N/A N/A ; N/A N/A 2017/18 data has not yet been published by the Department for Education (DfE) on the Achievement
18) recruited in the borough better Further Education (FE) apprenticeship data library « Policy, Performance
and Community
Learning &
32 Number of apprentices (aged 19+) | Bigger is 1330 N/A N/A . N/A N/A 2017/18 data has not yet been published by the Department for Education (DfE) on the Achievement
recruited in the borough better Further Education (FE) apprenticeship data library « Policy, Performance
and Community

Opportunities: Dynamic development and infrastructure




Line.no

Indicator and Description

2017/18 Annual
Target

2017/18 Q3
Target

2017/18 Q3
Performance

Q2 2017/18

Short Term DOT against Long Term DOT against

Q3 2016/17

Comments

Service
& Supporting Service

33

New Hornchurch Sports Centre
planning application approved and
contract given to build the new
centre

N/A

Timescale
achieved

N/A

On Track

Off Track

NEW

At the time of writing, the planning application for the proposed new Hornchurch Sports
Centre is due to be considered by the Planning Committee on 5 April 2018. Tenders
have been received by SLM for the build, with Metnors being appointed to construct
the new facility subject to planning permission being granted. Construction is due to
commence in May 2018.

Culture and Customer
Access

34

New Romford Leisure Centre
opened by Spring 2018

N/A

Facility opened

N/A

On Track

On Track

NEW

The new Romford Leisure Centre has been named "Sapphire Ice and Leisure" to
celebrate the sapphire jubilee of Queen Elizabeth II.

Sapphire Ice and Leisure achieved Practical Completion on 8 January 2018, and the
building has now been 'handed over' to SLM. There are some minor works to be
completed before opening to the public, plus SLM's fit out is to be completed. This
includes, for example, the health and fitness kit installation. The opening date has
been brought forward to 3 February 2018. SLM has sold over 1,000 new memberships
for Sapphire Ice and Leisure through pre-sales

OneSource (Asset
Management)
« Culture and Customer
Access

Opportunities: A thriving local economy

35

abed

The number of businesses
expressing an interest to relocate to
the Borough with a turnover of
£10m+ or international recognition.

Bigger is
better

150

113

20
RED

11

NEW

Nine enquiries were received expressing an interest in the borough during Quarter 3.
Three of those businesses have taken on premises in the borough. This is a new
indicator and the target set was overly ambitious particularly in light of the increase of
permitted development activity in the borough.

Corrective Action: The Economic Development Strategy and Master Planning for
Romford Town Centre will seek to address the current retraction in commercial
development to create a balanced environment going forward. An inward investment
magazine and campaign have also been launched to an audience of industry leaders
from various development, planning and architecture organisations at an event in
central London.

Development
« Communications

(5174

Proportion of businesses showing
employment growth

Bigger is
better

79,790 (+1%
growth)

N/A

83,000
(2016)
GREEN

N/A

79,000 (2015)

This indicator measures the total employee count in Havering and is only available
annually using Business Register and Employment Survey data.

The data for 2016 has now been released. However the methodology of counting
employees has changed and therefore the old (2012-2015) data is not comparable.
Solely PAYE based businesses are now included in the count. The new methodology
has also been applied to 2015 data so it is possible to continue to set a target of 1%
growth. The target has been exceeded.

Development

37

Developments approved with an
obligation requiring a Skills and
Training Plan

Bigger is
better

100%

N/A

N/A

NEW

NEW

Data is only available on an annual basis with collection beginning once the
Employment, Skills and Training Planning Advice Note, which will set out basis for
when a skills and training plan is needed, has been published.

Development
« Policy, Performance
and Community

Places: A

clean, safe environment for all

38

The level of waste per head of
population presented to the East
London Waste Authority (ELWA)

Smaller is
better

441.01 kg per
head

330.75 kg per
head

340.05 kg per
head (provisional)
RED

235.65 kg per head
(Provisional)

NEW

This PI measures the total waste delivered to the ELWA. This includes collected
household waste, waste from the reuse and recycling centre and municipal waste from
Highways and Parks Management activities. If tonnages continue at this level
throughout the year we will outturn slightly above target, however tonnages are
projected to decrease through the winter months as the amount of garden waste
reduces.

Corrective Action: Various waste prevention campaigns focusing on home
composting, reuse, and Love Food Hate Waste, particularly through the Sainsbury’s
funded food waste reduction activities and through the Rewards and Incentives
Scheme’s Food Waste Challenge, are in place to help achieve the target. We are
also reviewing operations in Highways and Grounds Maintenance to reduce waste
and, with the ELWA, are considering strengthening policies targeting potential
commercial waste entering the domestic waste stream at the household reuse and
recycling centre. Without restrictions on the amount of waste we collect through the
household waste collection service, containing and reducing tonnages is very
challenging and relies on attitudinal change.

Environment
« Communications




Linene IcTeeier ene BEsarisien Value 2017/18 Annual 2017/18 Q3 2017/18 Q3 Short Term DOT against Long Term DOT against ST Service
. p Target Target Performance Q2 2017/18 Q3 2016/17 & Supporting Service
The total number of burglary offences is 30% higher than at the same point last year.
When broken down into types, the residential rate has increased by 37% and the non-
residential rate by 7%. This is despite pre-planned operations in the run up to
Christmas to disrupt offenders.
i . . . ) ) ) Policy, Performan
39 The number of burglary offences | Smaller is 1,812 1,350 S 1,070 1,366 Corrective Action: Delivery of Safe Zones will continue to increase awareness of olcy, ertor K ce
©) better RED X S . S X A and Community
crime prevention in areas which have historically experienced high levels of burglary.
Future messages from the Police will also focus on raising awareness of simple
proven methods, rather than using costly crime prevention products. Further
engagement opportunities will also be taken to disseminate messages, as was done
over the Christmas period in the pop-up safety shop in Mercury Mall.
The rate of non-domestic violence with injury offences has increased by 2.8%, which is
slightly less than the 3.2% increase seen across London. .
Policy, Performance
Corrective Action:Work continues with night-time economy partners to reduce crime . gﬁ'tljdga%r’rsm;:pvl'tges
The number of non-domestic Smaller is 1,002 in Romford town centre, which contributes a significant amount of non-domestic : :
40 . N 1,311 996 653 975 X L . X : ) (YOS)
violence with injury offences (C) better RED violence with injury. In December two multi-agency nights of action were held in
. . - . ) . « Culture and Customer
Romford and Hornchurch. These involved licensing inspections, swabbing of premises
S B X Access (Youth
for drugs, and stops and searches of individuals, which resulted in several arrests. Services)
Feedback from licenced premises and door staff was very positive, and further
operations are planned for the coming months.
Policy, Performance
A reduction of 623 calls against last year represents good progress towards achieving . gﬁ? dCor’nn;umlty
41-0 The number of anti-social Smaller is 6.100 4762 4,187 3037 4.810 our target of fewer than 6,100 incidents at the end of Q4. Our figure for the financial ! re\pgs ervices
QJ behaviour (ASB) offences (C) better ! ’ GREEN ’ ! year to date is 13% lower than at the same point last year, and the London-wide rate . Cult re(and (): stomer
has also seen a reduction, at 9% lower than the same period last year. uitu Y
(@] Access (Youth
D Services)
= Local Plan progressed and On 17th January 2018 Cabinet endorsed a number of material modifications to the
42.b suc;essful[y adopted in accqrdance N/A Tlmgscale N/A O Tk On Track NEW Local Plan arising from the public consy!tatlpn that Fook place in 2017. The (;ab!net Development
(O] withthe timeframe set out in the achieved and Council have agreed to these modifications which now enables the submission of
Local Development Scheme the Local Plan to the Secretary of State.
Making Safeguarding Personal: % There has been an increase in performance in this indicator when comparing Q2to
. . . Q3. There has also been an increase in performance when comparing December 2017
of cases where desired outcomes | Bigger is 96.2% X .
43 90% 90% 93.6% 92.1% to December 2016. As at quarter 3, 237 service users who had gone through the Adult Services
were expressed and these were better GREEN X X . A
either partially or fully met safeguarding process had expressed their desired outcomes. This compares
favourably with 228 at the same stage last year.
Places: High-quality homes
. The procurement process for the selection of the 12 sites Joint Venture (JV)
Delivery partner selected for the Delivery partner Development Partner will be concluding shortly. A Cabinet report to approve the
44 HRA regeneration programme by N/A v P N/A On Track On Track NEW opP . 9 Y. P pp ] Housing
March 2018 selected selection of the partner is due for 17 January 2018 and formal contract award is
scheduled for 10 March 2018, subject to the mandatory standstill period.
Places: Award-winning parks and open spaces
. . Environment
0, 0
45 % of Ear_ks su!’)ported bya Bigger is 17% 17% e 17% NEW 17 out of 100 parks and green spaces continue to be supported by a Friends Group « Policy, Performance
Friends” group better GREEN .
and Community
The Green Flag Award is the benchmark national standard for publicly accessible
parks and green spaces. Havering has been awarded a further two awards from last .
Bigger is 13 year increasing the total to 13. The parks that currently hold the award are: Harrow Enwronment
46 Number of Green Flag Awards better 13 3 GREEN 13 u Lodge Park, Haynes Park, Raphael Park, Bedfords Park, Cottons Park, Harold Wood : Pg::zyéz;r:lz:}?nce
Park, Hylands Park, Lawns Park, Lodge Farm Park, St. Andrew's Park, Upminster Y
Park, Rise Park and Central Park.

Places: A vibrant cultural and leisure destination




2017/18 Annual 2017/18 Q3 2017/18 Q3 Short Term DOT against Long Term DOT against Service

Line.no Indicator and Description Value Target Target Performance Q2 2017/18 Q3 2016/17 Comments & Supporting Service
The Romford Market Transformation Support Programme is progressing. A business
Deliver the Romford Market Transform:tion ghﬂ :ncrjobrrlaelfnlfn :elng prepared setting out the short, medium and long term objectives
47 Transformation Support N/A prz;'sg:]me N/A On Track On Track - NEW prog ’ Development
Programme for 2017/18 delivered A range of events was held in Romford Market over the Christmas period including the
Kingdom of Elves, a mini fun fair and Winter Wonderland.
Perception / Engagement Pls
This figure was at 32% a year ago and sat at this level until the survey covering the
period up to March 2017 when it rose to 33%, before falling to 29% in the most recent
survey.
) . 29% ;
0, 0, 0,
e e | Thner®| e | e | uiman i isany [t Acton o G
RED Reducing this figure relies upon disseminating the right messages to the public to Y
attempt to overcome these fears and demonstrate that the area is relatively safe. This
> will form the basis of the community safety aspect of the communications plan for the
2 year ahead
3
3 This figure has fluctuated between 14% and 15% for Havering over the last five
g periods data is available for, which covers back to July 2015. The London wide figure
z was at 20% a year ago and is currently at 23%
o
é Reducing this figure relies upon disseminating the right messages to the public to
o -U attempt to overcome these fears and attempt to demonstrate that the area is relatively
3 o . . 15% o o safe and this will form the basis of the community safety aspect of the communications .
= Q.) % of respondents worried about | Smaller is 15% 15% (01 17-18) 15% 14% plan for the year ahead Policy, Performance
[ {®) ASB in the area (R) better GREEN (Q4 16-17) (Q1 16-17) ' and Community
('D The Strategic Assessment highlighted a discrepancy between local and national
[N reporting rates; which shows that although concerns about ASB are higher in Havering
U.I than the national average, the rate of incidents reported is lower than average. This
O suggests that the level of worry is based on a wider perception rather than just issues
which residents have actually experienced and reported to police. As shown above,
there has been a significant improvement on last year’s reported level of ASB.
>
[} i 1 i i i i 0,
> Satisfaction Wllth the wgy Havering | Bigger is 65% N/A N/A R N/A B 61% Communications
a Council runs things better (2016)
0 n n . n n n
% Satisfaction with H_avermg asa Bigger is 88% N/A N/A R N/A R 88% Performance against thi_s Pl is measured bienqially. T_he last survey was completed in Communications
2 place to live better (2016) 2016. The next survey is scheduled to be carried out in 2018.
g Strength of belonging to the local | Bigger is 80% N/A N/A ) N/A } 79% Communications
:( area better (2016)
o . . ) Bigger is o . . 70% -
3 Trust in Havering council better 70% N/A N/A N/A (2016) Communications
2]
2 . ) ) ) . .
= Satisfaction with the service Bigger is i
I - R
tn & | provided by LBH Housing Services [ better 85% NIA NIA NIA NIA The 2017/18 survey has been sent to residents and the responses are being collated Housing
o ; and analysed. Results are expected to be available next quarter. No survey was
N2 Satisfaction that LBH Housing Bigger is completed in 2016/17. The outturns for 2015/16 were 85% and 73% respectively
3 Services listens to tenants' views 99 75% N/A N/A - N/A - N/A Housing
I better
and acts upon them
()
<t o . . . o
5 |werpeenspomgenol S| | owa [ owa || e[
= o ?
-g 2 The Adult Social Care Survey is completed annually. The 2017/18 survey was
g2 o , o -
B3 Overall satisfaction with the care | Bigger is 62.4% distributed in January 2018 and provisional results should be available for Q4 17/18 -
= . ] 61% N/A N/A - N/A - Adult Services
3 and support services received better (Annual 16-17)
< % of respondents reporting feeling | Bigger is o ; : 69% .
safe better 68% N/A N/A N/A (Annual 16-17) Adult Services




2017/18 Annual  2017/18 Q3 2017/18 Q3
Target Target Performance

Short Term DOT against Long Term DOT against
Q2 2017/18 Q3 2016/17

Service

Comments & Supporting Service

Line.no

Indicator and Description Value

Overall carers' satisfaction with the
support or services carers and

. . o
service users have received from Bigger is 35% N/A N/A N/A 34.2% Adult Services
. . . better (Annual 16-17)
Social Services in the last 12
months
P % carers reporting that, over the
2 last 12 months, they have been
> . - . . . .
%) involved or consulted as much as | Bigger is o 71.4% The Carers Survey is completed biennially. The last survey was completed last year, .
2 they wanted to be, in discussions |  better 66% N/A N/A N/A (Annual 16-17) |and is therefore not scheduled to be completed again until 2018/19. Adult Services
% about the support or services
O provided to the person they care for
% carers reporting that, over the
last 12 months, they have found it | Bigger is o 66% .
easy to find information and advice better 67% NIA NIA NIA (Annual 16-17) Adult Services
about support, services or benefits
(=%
% g Proportion of families who show Bigger is 67% Performance against this indicator is measured through the Outcome Star
- 2 continued overall progress after 99 50% 50% N/A N/A assessments. An outturn is now available for January to December 2017 and is Children’s Services
e S better (GREEN) "
3 %) their initial assessment. positive (67%).
< .
g P%r_cf ir:ﬁgg (gr::‘:?gr;s:mjes;%:g Smaller is Better than 7% 9.8% The most recent data available from Public Health England is for the period 2015-16.
£2 " P -4 N/A (2015/16) N/A . Havering's outturn of 7% is better than England's (8.8%, where smaller is better) and Public Health
< £ Overall, how happy did you feel better England (2014-15)
o " GREEN better than the year before.
I T yesterday?
L2 0
s 2 Percentage of respondents scoring
S EU . ; . 18% The most recent data available from Public Health England is for the period 2015-16.
o - 0,
&g “6 10in response to thg question | Smaller is Better than N/A (2015/16) N/A 21% Havering's outturn of 18% is better than England (19.4%, where smaller is better) and Public Health
Overall, how anxious did you feel better England (2014/15)
" GREEN better than the year before.
yesterday?
25 |‘>‘—‘ Questions to_ cover Environment N/A TBC N/A N/A N/A N/A The C_ouncn has plans to u_ndertake a full res_ldents survey which will include questions Enwronmen_t &
é 2 @-I services (TBC) covering Environment services. The survey is planned for early 2018/19. Communications
14
i_-




This page is intentionally left blank



‘eate 32|AIds ajelidoidde ay3 0A3I8IIP JUSS 3B pue Juade ue Aq ps|puey
‘S|SUURYD SA11D343 1500 1SOW DY) 01 PUBLISP SIYY SA0W 0] yoeoisdde sujjuo ue Juaws)dwi 03 un3aq sey 10U aue suLIo) pajesdajul duljuQ JuaBe ue Aq Buissad01d sa1Nb3I LIIOY 3Y1 5B $9IIAISS JBLIOISND UO PUBLISP B 31€81d [|1)S Ing S|auueys
1OM pue PayRuap! U33g aney ASO|OUYISY YIM PaTeIFAIU Aljny 318 Jey1 S32IAIBS ‘SaLIINbUS 40 AJXaIdWI0D pue Jlews 0} pa.sasa.d B1. SWIOY q3M PaINIINIIS Pa3RIFalul-UoU SUIUQ “39BIUOD JSLLIOISND 4O POYIaW paLiayaid ay3 aq 0} Sanuuod
o ) B N N S B Y21ym 2283002 SUoyda(a} JO UONINPAI BYY U] ISISSE |[IM SUIJUO B|qe|IBAB SIDIAISS YN JO Uollowold pue uonanporul pauue|d ay|

SWN|OA 3Y1 01 3NP AISAIIIP 3IIALSS UO $3UNSS3ud |BBI BY) S1E SUISNOH PUB JUBWUOIIAUT ‘SIBUDG ‘Xe] (1IUNo)

("23@ saoInIaS

(D) 81/LT02 (z0) 81/L107 {TO) 81/LT0C (¥0) £1/9107 | (co)sT/s10z@  (20)8T/2T0zD  (TO)8T/L1070 ?d?ﬂmSNl _ _

Page 153

0 swiio4 pajeiEaiy
Jawoisng ujwpy sjiewy -UON 3uljuQ 32e4 0} ade4 pieoqyanms suoydaja |
‘siel)siday
“YaesH - 000°07 o _
|elusWuOoNAU] 000°0Z
‘lonjuor , |
Buipiing ‘Jsv - oooor o8 A - 000°0F
‘adpeg anig 00009
‘Bunjieq ‘pred) 000°09 - B
193Q) 1343108 - r— - 000°08
syausg ® | 000°00T
| B Xel[punosl W = % - = 00008 7
= & 2 000°0ZT
juswuosAul @ ) [
= — - — _ 15 000°00T | — 000°0VT
SuisnoH 3 — :
E _ Auauenp “ 000°091T
pleoqyiums . e == e P 000°02T = _ —L 000‘081
(AJuo 9oe4 03 22e4 pue 2uoyda|aL) 831A13§ Aq 19€IUO) JBWOISN) S0 da [puuey) Ag 1B3U0) JBWOISN) 0 da
S3JINY3S ¥3IINOLSND S3DINY3AS YINOLSND
— — — — -
] 00T 1591D3u 03 papunoJ
039 auen |
_ 98( J0 dsealdul .m._ Henb 00T 152403u 03 papunol sanbly , s2inbi . *(%6€ 1e) uopuoq Ul aseaudul Jeuoitiodold 153ySiy paiyl ayl
SNOIASId 3Y3 U $53) AiGEIIOU SeM 3SERUDU| BY) JBRIMOH "8T/LT0T " 120z Aq spjoyasnoy pOg‘y Joyuny e Ag moud MBS MO|SUNOH PUE (%88 1e) asealoul 3saysiy ay3 sey uopsu (%
€0 PUE 81//TOT 70 US2MI3Q SUONLIISITDI |PUOIUPPE 7/ T Yim _ N ) e et L

01 paxaafoud si pue /TQg 03 TTOZ WOJS SPIOY3SNOY 00Z‘9 Ag umous |

18) 9TOZ-6€6T WOJ) UOpUOT Ul 9sealdul jeuoiuiodold 1sa8se| puodss
| Sey SuLi@ABH UJ SPIOYISNOY JO JSGUINU BY 1By 3IBJIPUI SIIBWIISS YD)

_ 4311enb 11783 35e3.0u1 03 BuInuiU0d due suonensiBal 4o s BuLionek 2yl usas sey uone(ndod s, ulianeH 1ey1 moys suonddfosd uonejndoy

(0} (zO} (D) {¥O} (eD) (O} (1TO) WD) (eO) (2O} (D)

5U0III3f014 PUBIY ULIRI-BUOY SPIOYISNOY PaSDG-9TOZ Y19 :324n0S suonafosd uopoindod puasy uLa3-buo) pasoq-9roz V1o [snsua) [1QT :a2inos
ST/LT SU/LT ST/LT LT/9T LT/9T LU/9T LT/91 9T/ST 9T/ST OT/ST O1/ST 5 8§ 8 8§ 8 & S § s & B & 8 BEoL bebL
—_ - . Ay — . Lo & 8 B 8 & & % &5 & B & K 2 1407 LEOT £207 £10z TI0Z  Sejewise  sejewisy
I_ . P — - - . . - e Lo - = uolafold uondafolg uonasfolq uondafold  snsua) 1e3A Pl JESAPIN
4 H 1 H 4 F - |+ ooo‘os B ERERN 1 oo'oz [ ‘
7 1 1 1 000°0s |
1 0 — =t 1 I -1 000°00T 4 11 L = 1 0 ‘
000°0Y 3 = - 00000T |
- 4 — iy - . ¥ [ ’ _
of ol bl bl el 00007 1H -1 - + 00009 H — 000°0ST
m ..”.m __..,Ucn m m W .....7._ % “ p..“ - ‘ | _ = — —1 N 000002
£ I B = A o N 4 £ S 0 e SV e - : 00008 | w @
al lel S M I 1= 1= B I I - w &
T__ (o O e O O 5] v 5 3 1812 H18 000052
> g T - 000°05T Bl == 000°00T w = S
| o A_ S e ,
| E S s ——— ———— | 000°00¢
- = — 000°00€ - ' 000'0CT S—
suonens3ay 4 €0 4@ E suo23f01d V19 - SPIOYISNOH 320 da [[renwwy | yamoun uopeindod Bupenen 110 d
NOILYINdOd NOILYINdOd NOILYINdOd

pJeoqyseq ainssald puewaq 8T/LT0Z € JoHeny :z xipuaddy



"PaA3IYIE UBIQ Sey (19118q S| JOMO| 3JaYM)

T
_ :
, "78 40 9SBIIIIP € /T UID
uonanpas adieusdsad e 1ey1 SulUESW ‘9IAIS JUBWD|GEDS B SUIAIRIAI Jagquiadaq ul %t 6€ 03 pasedwiod ‘sjuswiAed 10a.1p paaias Yoddns _ : ) ,
_

. ddns-
31doad 4O JOQUINU |B303 3Y3 U] 358310U} UE U SBY 2.3} JOAIMOH P123.1p-425 30 31233 U 3501 4O %p'°8E 'LTOZ 45qWIa23( 4O PU3 3u3 38 59 Lﬂm\“ﬂMMM M__“hwwomwﬂ_:MMM_MM_%%M“%MMF\_MMN_Umwﬂuu.hm_ wm:wp__”umm_wﬂuu.“
. P , Sy ° 1eaA 1se] adels swes ayl 1e (9seq 1ual|d syl Jo %T°Sg Sunuasaidai) y y N
9707 49qWwa32Q SulInp se awes ay1 ‘L TOZJI2qWaI9Q Ul SUILINIBI S13sN _ yd1ym ‘eJed Suisinu pue [ejluspisas 01 suoissiwpe Juauewsad pauoddns
b
33135 97 YHM PaUIRISS UBAQ SeY 3POSIda JUBWA|GER) |NYS5aIINS SLL'T 03 pasediiod (35eq L2 343 O %L'L8 Bulu3s3Idal) 1oddns -[15Un0D Ul p9-8T Padle SYNPE 0T U23G Pey 2134} ‘€D 40 PuB Y3 A |
e JaYe 5391038 UL BUo| Supinbas SI3SN BIAIAS 40 J3GUINY BYL Pe132J1p 4|35 BUIAIZD3) SI3SN 3DIMIBS 99/ T 3UBM BIBY1 ‘€D JO PUS BY3 Y ’ )
B - B = — = : T = = — o | — — —_—
(€D) 8T/L10T (T0) 8T/2102 (TD) 8T/£10Z (¥O) L1/9T0T (£D) L1/910T _ uoiyodoud e se syuswhed 193l poddns padalip-jas 0 _ +G9pasSyd  9-8T paSvE _
: ; 0 b —
L (€D) 81/L102 (Z0) 81/£10Z {TO) 8T/£10¢ (+0) LT/910¢ (€0) LT/9T0T (€0} 81/102 (20) 81/£10T (1D) 8T/£102 (¥O) £1/9T07 (€D) L1/9T02
= L —L ) — - O . - B - iy o
_— ot I _— i 00z . 01 B i
ST L — oot <
— — 009
— — —+ ot | 008 -
9T T 000T | _ o . - -
- ) — 00T'T
| =L Ly 3 Kl =i ‘- === —— e ==
- o€ o 13 2 S Nwwm 8
= - 2 — | 057 — = — 00€
annenwn)
Ju3w|qeay JaYy 9dIALeS uolHodoud e se sjuaiAed }a34ig sawoy aJe Juisinu
Sui08-uQ Buuinbay syuapisay :TT da pue uoddng pa12a.41Q J19S :0T dd pue |enuapisal 03 SUOISSIWPE JUdURWIR 60 dd <
VI WIDOS 11nav JHVI IVID0S 1Inav J4VYI TVID0S 11nav
— : - o - ——
o " wﬂ%o tlma *dMd 343 Aq paJa1siuiwWpe S| D pue Jyauag Suisnoy [@))

10 PEAISUL I WIRPD [[IM SISUWI0ISND MBU Jey3 udAIS SWIepd JO sIaquinu

103ye Ajpuedyiudis 1ou pip 30|01 {DN) HPSJD |BSISAIUN BY ] 7 J3enD

Ul Uy} € JaEND Ul swiepd Hoddng Xe] |1DUN0) MIU JaM3Y 9%/ T 2JaMm

| 3J3y3 J9ASMOH "8T/LTOT €D 03 8T/LTOT O Wo1) %6’ Aq pases.ou
| Sey Swie[d xe| [12uno) pue 31j3uag SuISNOH M3U JO 13qUUNU (8303 Y|

| J3yjoue wouy SuisAeH 03Ul SulAoul Jo AJ3unod ay3 03 mau ale sjidnd
aJaym Jsauenb siyy suonedyidde Auew pasualiadxa aaey apy “pasealdul
sey suonedy|dde 4o Jaquinu (301 8Yl ‘£ T/9T0Z £ 03 paJedw o)

Jeah ise| pousd swes sy pue Jsuenb a
1se| 01 paJedwi0d SUOIIIBSURI) BUIJUO Ul SBSIDU| UB UIDY SARY BI3Y | Dl

suones||ddy Alepuodas @ mco_umu__aa<>_m8_gn_ﬂ. ._ ——————e ; L — _..Mh.oaom,m.mco_umu__aa<l ﬂcm&.ﬁm YAID mucmE.>mn_|w:__|c0.ﬂ |
- — Hoddng D@ swie 1988HO | A .
(€0) 81/2102 (20) 81/2102 (TO) 81/£102 (+0) £L1/9T07 (€D) LT/9T0T (€0) 8T/£102 (20) 8T/£10¢ (T0) 81/2107 (+0) £1/9T02 (€0} LT/9T0T (s0) (o) (To) (vo) (e0) [
Y ; . s o ; ) . . A 81/LT0z  8T/LT0Z  8T/LT0T  LT/9TOT  (1/9T0 _
. - " 0
—| 00% |}— We b | 6oy |1 68€ | ooz ooe | _
0oy Tjo0E‘LY| . Ty LT0'6E}+ 000'0C
6TL LTLSS
= = — — —+ oov _ 009 = oo0'or |
| o
. o . =oal —1 009 _ 008 7ig t 000'09 |
| 000'T = ,
! . 00008
—————————————t 008 002'T 78957 200
00T —] 000007
—_— —_— ——— + 000°T
|

- 009'T | -~ 000'0ZT
| Alrapuen | . . I —— R — . | g |

. _ Apauenp _ |
suonedlddy (0oyds :80 da | swie[) xel [1pUN0)/1ousg SuiIsnoq maN :£0 dd _ suondesuel] auljuQ 90 dd

SNOILVYII1ddY TOOHIS 1i43N39 DNISNOH S3JIAYIS HIWOLSND



‘S|R4J3J24 PUB S1ORIUOD JO SJaquinu
_ 13431y Y1m s1e[2100 Sy Jeah 1se| pouad awes ayy 03 pasedwod |
[ asea.3p 3yYdi|s e 1nq Jauenb snoiasud 9y Uo %57 Jo dsealdul ue

‘8T//TOT 40 €D Ul SIUBWISSISSE SWEISQ 1eY) S|BIIdjal H(08 S43M dIaY| _
1

= = ———— — e —— |
i (€D) 8T/£107 (20) 81/£107 (TO) 8T/L102 (#D) L1/9107 (£D) L1/9T0Z
p - 0

— - —| =t 00T

— - — 002

— te L+ 00€
— —1 00t

Y49

9

|
£69

|

|

(=]
8

00L

814

Apauenp - 006

SIUBWSSISSe Suiwodsq |
S|essayal Jo JoquinN /T dg

SIJIAYIS S.NIHATIHD

"Sue|d d7 4O JOGUINU SU1 40 UOIIINP3I 3Y1 01 pasjul 3 01 Ajy)| |
S1 95U SIY "USS J9AS sey SulsneH 3saYSIy ay) Ajpua.Lna si pue (zD uo _
%vT+) €0 Ul aseasdul dieys Jayloue pey sey sueid NID 30 19quInu ay |

(€D) 81/£10¢ {20) 8T/L10T (TD) 8T/LT0Z (YD) £1/9T07 (€0) L1/9T0T

Tog

|

|

|
(=
&

vEE
SEE
vE
I
(=3
]

SIDIAYIS S.NIHATIHD

‘syiuow Suiwoadn syl ul Suiseadap siyl aredidiue am

05 ‘b Ul UMOP PSS 1l 8104aq £ T/9TOT Ul USIS Osje sem usaned siyy
Janamoy ‘ sapenb snoinaud sy yum pasedwod paseassul sey Ajianoe
11B48A0 "8T//TOT €D UI $|B4ID)3 SWEII] 1Y} S1ILIU0I 08/ DIIM 343y |

“1edA 15e| pouad
awes ay3 ueyy s21esud (%7 Ty) 004 INg ‘€S T S, TD Se Yy se aunb jou
‘8T/£T0C €O UL HSYIA / 98e11] Ul PIAISIRI SIDBIUOD TOP T 949m dJ4dy |

. (€0) 8T/L107 (20) 8T/L107 (TV) 8T/L10 (YD) LT/9T0Z (£D) £LT/9T02
= . 0

| — — 00€

— — 00v

B I}

ovs

0€9

— ~—1 008
Apauenp ===

. 006
34B) |BID0S S,U3IPJIY) O3 S|eLIDJDI
Suiwo23q s39e3U03 JO JBqUINN :9T dd

S3DIAYIS S,NIHATIHD

(€D) 8T/£107 (20) 81/L107 (TD) 8T/L10T (+D) £1/9107 (€D} L1/9T07

—+ 000'T

T0L'T

— 00S'T

(fard

000T

0057

000'¢
Apapenp

HSYIAI / @8eu)

Ul PaAIRIAI S}ILJUOD JO JIqWINN :ST dd

SIJIAY3IS S,NIUATHD

_ *Jeah 3se| Juiod syl 1e ueyy Jamo|
| Ajuaund si pue ‘/1/9107 D 01 pasedwod (%g°€T-) Aq pasealdsp sey
| (£57) s8sed ¢) 4o Jaquinu aya (€£z) “Jauenb ayy 03 Jels ysiy e audssq
|

*(AInf ur U23S) T9Z 40 YSIy Wil ||B N0 URY) JIMO|
1113s sl JdAamoy 7D 33uls Aj3ySi|s AJan paseaudul sey HOYod a3y} JO 3zis
9yl ‘(%/4'TT 0 @seasnul ue) JesA 1se| julod Swes ay} Je ueyy Jaysy
AjgQeapisuod si (857 18) £ Ul UBJP|IYD ISR PIYOO| JO JAqWInU 3y |
|

(€D) 8T/£107 (20) 8T/£T0 (10) 8T/£10Z (¥O) £1/9107 (€D) L1/9T0T

0ET

_ ove
== - 0sz

S9¢

— —+ 092

— e —] —t oLz

PRS- . — — 08¢

B |+ ost
[+

sueld (d2) uoiIR0Id PIIYD O JBQUINN €T da

SIDIAYAS S.NFHANHD

(€0) 8T/£10Z (ZD) 81/£107 (TD) 8T/L10Z (VD) L1/910Z (€D) £1/9T0 _
— . - 14

1314

W | 0wt
™ — ose

(-<]

LSC

e —————t= 092

— L oz

[[sousdeus | (av1) uaspiu 4oy paroor

§0 13qWInN 7T da

SADIAYIS S.NIHATIHD

Ln
L0
—
(B)
(@)
©
ol



B ]

"Auenb ey aylel salgns seak 1sef polsad “joued ay1 03 paLiayas st uoddns
sl 4o uoissnasip Ayijenb uo siseydwis ue yum ‘pawnsal aney sgunasw 3UIES 3L3 Yam PAIEAUI0) %ST Aq p 3sea.oul 3Aey sjel a3l €D ‘sjaued SP33U OYM SUDAIIAS BINSUS 0) LOYS UE U $5330.d 33 JO SSaUBIBME
Ajyauow pue ‘paiyiIdas USAQ MoU sey SIy| ‘931|0d BY3 WOy eIEP 4109 1e pajussasd Suraq sased Jo uollesljdnp 3anpaa 03 9TOZ Asenuer 351EJ 01110 PALLIED SEM YJOM JALE €1 JOJ PASEaIUI S|eLIaY
Buinlazal yum wajqoud e 01 anp T Ut paY 10U 319Mm sSuSaW ADS Ul pauIquIod 2Jam S8UIP3W DYYY I AHUNWIWOY pue [aued 95V 3yl ’
(€0} 81/£70C (T0) 8T/LT07 (TO) 8T/LT0T (¥O) LT/9T0T (€D) LT/9T0T (€0) 81/£707 (20) 8T/£102 (TD) 8T/LT0Z (D) L1/9T0Z (£D) LT/9T0T “ (€D} 81/£102 (20) 8T/£T0Z (TO) 8T/£10Z (¥O) £1/9T07 (€V) L1/9T0C
v 4 ! 0 t 4 = - 0 : = - : + 0
— — -~ 0T L oT
b - ON 1
—] - | — oz | oz
o — — |-— -+ o€ |
] ol | T [0} _
09 = - or |
2 1 =« M _ o8
—+ 08 = - 09 0§ _
_ = & oL — 09
+ -]
00T B 08 oL
ozt | | _ Ajlsauen)d _ o6 _
- - e - 0g |
| Ausuenp | [3ued (ADS) 92U3[OIA Sunasy JVHYIN Alunwiwo) Ausuenp IVHVIA 9IU3|0IA dsaWoq
dnoug snouas ay) 01 Juiwod sase) €7 dd 3 @SV 9Y1 0} PA1Id4DJ SISEI JO JAqWINN :7Z dd 9Y3 0] paliajal sased Jo Jaquinp :T1Z da _
Al3dVS ALINNDWINOD Al34VS ALINNIWINOD AL34VS ALINNININOD
e — —
'$324N0S$3J JUSLIND YUM INO _ "AlpaxJew paseasdul Jou sey *djoH Ape3 o1 patiasal ()]
P3141eD 9 UED 3J0M SAIIIDYS 18Y) PUE ‘DIIAISS SY} JOJ PUBWIP SI BIBY3 | s@aueidadde JO J2qUINU By} JIAIMOH “Je3A Ise| polsad Swes ay3 3duls 3ulaq $1983U0D GQ’E JO UONIB(0Id B YUM ‘UINIINO PUD JedA Jno (@))
1BY31 Y30Q $31eJISUOWIIP €7 JO pud 3y1 1e suosiad 9/ Jo Loyod e ‘T ul %V £ AQ pasealdul sey SUOISIIP SS3[BWOY JO J3qUINU BY| "35B3I0U 104 Buinsseal AJaA s1SIY] €D J0J S1IBIUOD GTE 03 9Se.dU| dieys e uaas a
uey3 1amo| uisq andsaq “suosiad g s1 dno.d aya jo Aydedes [eapi ay | 03 3NUIUO? $33ULIHIIIE PUR SUOISIDAP SSIIBWOY JO JBqUINU Y| sey djaH AjJe3 03 paLIajal $1983U0D JO JBqUINU DY3 ‘35ea103p 5,70 4y |1
— —————————— = e e — - i
s2ouedaddy ssa|awo| SUOISIIA( SSIPWO
(€D) 81/£10Z (20) 8T/£102 (10} 81/£10Z (¥D) £1/9T07 (€D) £T/9T0T | SUeI0e0y SSeeuionm : nw ! _.A:wu | | (e0) 81/£107 (ZD) 81/£707 (TO) 8T/L10Z (¥O) LT/9T0Z (€D) £T/9T0T _
\4 € . 4 : . Lo
» (D) 8T/£107 (2D) 81/£T07 (TD) 8T/LTOZ  LT/9T0T L1/910T | L |_ 001 _
1 89 . = ot - -4 3 _
—+ 00¢
— H— -+ oL
IN L 00¢
= = 1 K42 |
| 9 ﬁ I..._ 00F
_— - — — . ~d
3 YL e A 2 [ S— .‘I.m — 00S
— —1 o T - e V\\\\ + 009
= = - [ 8 [ 2 3 ost | = - 00z
— — — 1 | N —
(] 08 5 00z | 008
- — | 78 — , _ : —— 006
E : -- L 8 !_ Ausauenp osz | R ——————— o001
d . _ di3y Apez o1
WOI Y3nouyy pauoddns siapuayo :0z da s3due3daddy pue suojs1IaQ SSIJSWOH 6T dd

| P2143435 S1PBIUOI JO JIqUINN 8T dd

A134VS ALINNWINOD SSANSSITINOH SIDIAY3IS S,NIUATIHD




	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	5 Romford Business Improvement District Proposal
	Romford BID Cabinet Report_ Appendix A

	6 Integrated Community Equipment Service
	Appendix 1_ICES_FINAL 030418

	7 Employment and Skills Plan
	FINAL Havering Employment and Skills Plan 2018- 2021
	Appendix 2 - Data Story (2)
	APPENDIX 3 Employment and Skills Strategy Year 1 Implementation Plan
	APPENDIX 4 Equality-Impact-Assessment

	8 Quarter 3 Corporate Performance Report 2017/18
	Corporate Performance Report Quarter 3 v4
	v3 Demand Pressures Dashboard


